Committee Agenda

Webcast
Meeting

Epping Forest
District Council

AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH
Wednesday, 23rd November, 2016

You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee South, which
will be held at:

Roding Valley High School, Brook Road, Loughton, Essex. IG10 3JA.
on Wednesday, 23rd November, 2016

at7.30 pm .
Glen Chipp
Chief Executive
Democratic Services J. Leither Tel: (01992) 564243
Officer Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
Members:

Councillors G Chambers (Chairman), A Patel (Vice-Chairman), R Baldwin, A Beales,

R Brookes, K Chana, L Girling, S Heap, R Jennings, J Jennings, H Kauffman, J Knapman,
A Lion, L Mead, G Mohindra, S Murray, C P Pond, C C Pond, C Roberts, D Roberts,

B Sandler, L Wagland, S Watson and D Wixley

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is being filmed. The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by
third parties with the Chairman’s permission.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the
Council’s published policy.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the public seating area, you are
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not
wish to have their image captured they should speak to the webcasting officer or
otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the meeting.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Public Relations Manager
on 01992 564039.




Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 23 November 2016

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
1. This meeting is to be webcast;

2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before
speaking; and

3. the Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such
third parties).

If you are seated in the public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras will
capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will become
part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this
you should speak the webcasting officer.”

2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING
SUB-COMMITTEES (Pages 5 - 10)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan
showing the location of the meeting.

3.  MINUTES (Pages 11 - 42)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 26 October
2016.

4, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, requires that the permission of
the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, before urgent
business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda of which the
statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

7.  DEVELOPMENT CONTROL (Pages 43 - 120)

(Director of Governance) To consider planning applications as set out in the attached
schedule

Background Papers: (i) Applications for determination — applications listed on the
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are
summarised on the schedule. (ii) Enforcement of Planning Control — the reports of
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control.

2



Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 23 November 2016

8. PROBITY IN PLANNING - APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 121 - 174)

(Director of Governance) To consider the attached report.

9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information
Paragraph Number
Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.

Background Papers: Article 17 - Access to Information, Procedure Rules of the
Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political
advisor.

The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date of the
meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background papers.



This page is intentionally left blank



Advice to Public and Speakers at the Council’s District Developégﬁmg%nltem 2

Committee and Area Plans Sub-Committees
Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public
excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and Members of the Committee.

Meetings of the District Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East
and Area Plans Sub-Committee West are held at the Civic Offices in Epping. Meetings of Area
Plans Sub-Committee South are held at Roding Valley High School in Loughton.

Can | speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day
before the meeting, by ringing the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda.
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak; you must register with Democratic
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are generally allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the
local Parish or Town Council and the applicant or his/her agent. In some cases, a representative
of another authority consulted on the application may also be allowed to speak.

What can | say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating
to their presentation and answer questions from Committee members.

If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Committee will determine the
application in your absence.

If you have registered to speak on a planning application to be considered by the District
Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East or Area Plans Sub-
Committee West, you will address the Committee from within the Council Chamber at the Civic
Offices. If you simply wish to attend a meeting of any of these Committees to observe the
proceedings, you will be seated in the public gallery of the Council Chamber.

Can | give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to
the Planning Officer dealing with the application.

How are the applications considered?

The Committee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to an
outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ presentations.

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her
agent. The Committee will then debate the application and vote on either the recommendations of

Revised ST (October 2016)

Page 5


http://www.eppingforesdc.gov.uk/

officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Committee. Should the Committee propose to
follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, it is required to give its reasons for
doing so.

An Area Plans Sub-Committee is required to refer applications to the District Development
Management Committee where:

(a) the Sub-Committee’s proposed decision is a substantial departure from:
(i)  the Council's approved policy framework; or
(i) the development or other approved plan for the area; or
(iii) it would be required to be referred to the Secretary of State for approval as
required by current government circular or directive;

(b) the refusal of consent may involve the payment of compensation; or

(c) the District Development Management Committee have previously considered the
application or type of development and has so requested; or

(d) the Sub-Committee wish, for any reason, to refer the application to the District
Development Management Committee for decision by resolution.

Further Information?

Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet “Your Choice, Your Voice’

Revised ST (October 2016)

Page 6



Area Plans Subcommittee South — Location Plan

= |

JGHTON |

e W

o

1T ——"

e
E
Lo Lo

o ] WL E A Y R H
Ve Friar el Sathd
LN | O De, High Sirest

Epgrg, Sie, CHIE 422
T

o, v ——

b

T ET e e i
=

=

= s

T el G 11 065 O Pt e T o
ORI DT o A T vl M T MR 3 T
Canirsls’ £fl b inkaty's Shadior-#p (2] Crowr Copnght

Ui rro N |18 1 o gl g and

Page 7

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.software-partners.co.uk



http://www.software-partners.co.uk
http://www.software-partners.co.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Area Planning Subcommittee South 2016-17
Members of the Committee and Wards Represented:

Chairman

Clir Chambers
Buckhurst Hill

Vice-Chairman

CliIr Patel

Buckhurst Hill

West

ClIr Baldwin
Loughton
Forest

Loughton
Forest

Clir Beales

Loughton
Roding

ClIr Brookes

Clir Chana
Grange Hill

Clir Girling
Loughton
Broadway

Clir Lion
Grange Hill

Clir Heap
Buckhurst
Hill East

S

Cllr Mead
Loughton
Fairmead

Clir B Jennings
Loughton St
John’s

Clir J Jennings

Loughton St
Mary’s

Clir Mohindra
Grange Hill

Segier

Clir Murray
Loughton

n

Clir Kauffman
Loughton St
Mary’s

Clir C C Pond
Loughton
Broadway

N

Clir Knapman
Chigwell
Village

=T

Clir C P Pond
Loughton St
John’s

Clir C Roberts Clir D Roberts Clir Sandler Clir Wagland Clir Watson Clir Wixley
Loughton Loughton Chigwell Row Chigwell Buckhurst Hill Loughton
Alderton Alderton Village West Fairmead

Page 9


http://haako/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=397

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee Date: 26 October 2016
South

Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook Time: 7.30 - 11.00 pm
Road, Loughton, Essex. IG10 3JA.

Members A Patel (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), A Beales, R Brookes, K Chana,

Present: S Heap, R Jennings, JJennings, H Kauffman, JKnapman, L Mead,
G Mohindra, C P Pond, C C Pond, C Roberts, D Roberts, B Sandler and
D Wixley

Other

Councillors:

Apologies: G Chambers, R Baldwin, L Girling, A Lion and S Murray

Officers S Solon (Principal Planning Officer), A Hendry (Senior Democratic Services
Present: Officer), S Kits (Social Media and Customer Services Officer) and S Mitchell
(PR Website Editor)

30. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the
webcasting of its meetings.

31. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN

In the absence of the Chairman, who had tendered his apologies, the Vice-Chairman
chaired the meeting and requested nominations for the role of Vice-Chairman.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor K Chana be elected Vice-Chairman for the duration of the
meeting.

32. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 21
September 2016 be agreed subject to noting that Councillor C C Pond
commented on an omission on page 16 of the agenda (EPF/1758/16 — Land

and Garages, Ladyfields) where the Committee agreed that there should be
no issue of parking permits for the inhabitants of the property.

Page 11 1



Area Planning Sub-Committee South 26 October 2016

33.

34.

35.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(a) Pursuant to the Council’'s Code of Conduct Councillors C C Pond, C P Pond,
R Brookes, J Knapman and D Wixley declared a non pecuniary interest in the
following item by virtue of knowing the speaker. The Councillors advised that they
would remain in the meeting for the duration of the discussion and voting thereon:

. EPF/1545/16 — 256 High Road, Loughton, Essex, IG10 1RB

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Conduct Councillor H Kaufman declared a
non pecuniary interest in the following item by virtue of the applicant being a near
neighbour. The Councillor advised that he would remain in the meeting for the
duration of the discussion and voting thereon:

. EPF/2159/16 — 38 Chigwell Lane, Loughton, Essex, IG10 3NY

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.
RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 — 17 be determined as set out in
the attached schedule to these minutes.

CHAIRMAN

Page 12 2



Report Item No:1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1545/16
SITE ADDRESS: 256 High Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1RB
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton St Marys
DESCRIPTION OF Demolition of the existing structures. Comprehensive residential
PROPOSAL: development including the provision of amenity areas, secure cycle
parking, car parking, refuse and recycling areas, landscaping,
access and other associated development
DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585153

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of its height, bulk, scale and unsympathetic design the proposed
development would appear incongruous in relation to the style and scale of
surrounding buildings, many of which are of domestic scale, and would appear
excessively dominant when seen from the rear gardens of houses fronting Habgood
Road. As a consequence the proposed development would cause harm to the
character and appearance of the locality and detract from its visual amenities,
contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policies CP2(iv), CP7, DBE1(i) and DBE2,
which are consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework.

2 By reason of its height, bulk, scale and siting in relation to the Loughton Methodist
Church and church hall, the proposal would cause an excessive degree of
overshadowing of windows and space between the buildings such that it would have
a detrimental effect upon the functioning of the Church and church hall, contrary to
Local Plan and Alterations policy DBE2, which is consistent with the National
Planning Policy Framework.

3 By reason of the relationship of the connecting wing of the proposed building to its
southern and northern wings, habitable rooms in adjacent flats would be significantly
overshadowed causing a harmful reduction in light received by them. Flat numbers
APP 02, APP 07 and APP 10 are likely to be most severely affected. Furthermore,
the relationship is such that excessive overlooking between flats, particularly but not
only from balconies, would result in a significant number of flats experiencing an
excessive loss of privacy. As a consequence the proposed development would
create dwellings that are likely to have poor living conditions, contrary to Local Plan
and Alterations policy DBE9, which is consistent with the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Page 13 3



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585153

Way forward:

Members considered an amended proposal of reduced height and bulk designed to appear more
congruent in the locality and address potential harm to amenity, especially from overshadowing,

could address the objections raised.

4 Page 14



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1919/16

SITE ADDRESS: 185 High Road

Chigwell

Essex

IG7 6NU
PARISH: Chigwell
WARD: Chigwell Village

DESCRIPTION OF

Demolition of existing buildings to create new residential

PROPOSAL: development providing 14 new flats and ground floor
commercial/retail space.
DECISION: Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585949

CONDITIONS

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos:

FMN_001

FMN_002

FMN_100 revision C

FMN_101 revision D

FMN_105 revision C

FMN_106 revision C

Noise and Vibration Assessment report by Temple dated 12 September 2014
Arboricultural Report by Andrew Day dated 29 September 2014 with Tree Protection
Plan

Design and Access Statement

No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and

Page 15 5


http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585949

associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance
with the management and maintenance plan.

The refuse storage facility shown on the approved planFMN_100 revision C shall be
completed prior to the first occupation of the development and shall thereafter be
retained free of obstruction and used for the storage of refuse and recycling only and
for no other purpose, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials

3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate

5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including
wheel washing.

6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works.

The ground floor commercial unit shall be used solely for purposes within use class
A1 (shops) of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as
amended) and for no other purpose unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until detailed design
and method statements (in consultation with London Underground) for all of the
foundations, basement and ground floor structures, or for any other structures below
ground level, including piling (temporary and permanent), have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority which:

- provide details on all structures

- accommodate the location of the existing London Underground structures

- demonstrate access to elevations of the building adjacent to the property boundary
with London Underground can be undertaken without recourse to entering our land
- demonstrate that there will at no time be any potential security risk to our railway,
property or structures

- accommodate ground movement arising from the construction thereof

- mitigate the effects of noise and vibration arising from the adjoining operations
within the structures

The development shall thereafter be carried out in all respects in accordance with
the approved design and method statements, and all structures and works
comprised within the development hereby permitted which are required by the
approved design statements in order to procure the matters mentioned in
paragraphs of this condition shall be completed, in their entirety, before any part of
the building hereby permitted is occupied.

Page 16



9 Prior to first occupation of the development the vehicle parking and turning areas
indicated on the approved plans shall be provided and retained in this form at all
times and shall not be used for any other purpose unless otherwise agreed with the
Local Planning Authority.

10 Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements, vehicle
parking and turning areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided,
hard surfaced, sealed and marked out. The access, parking and turning areas shall
be retained in perpetuity for their intended purpose.

11 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council.

12 The privacy screen, as shown on the roof plan to drawing FMN_101 and rear
elevation to drawing FMN_105, shall be constructed of a opaque and solid material
prior to first occupation of either third floor flat and maintained as such thereafter.

13 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

13 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

Subject to the completion, within 6 months, of an agreement under $106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 in respect of a contribution of £11,000 towards the provision of
a local bus service in Chigwell.

Page 17 7



Members requested Chigwell Parish Council be consulted on applications for approval of details of
external materials submitted pursuant to condition 3 of the planning permission.

8 Page 18



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No:

EPF/0513/16

SITE ADDRESS: Land r/o 33-37 Hillyfields
Loughton
Essex
IG10 2PT

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Fairmead

Loughton St Johns

DESCRIPTION OF

Proposed demolition of existing garages and erection of 8 no.

PROPOSAL: dwellings (6 x three beds and 2 x two beds), with associated
access and parking
DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=582895

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of the scale and siting of the proposed detached house adjacent to the
rear garden boundaries of numbers 3 and 4 Cotford Close, the development would
appear excessively overbearing when seen from those gardens, causing an
unacceptable degree of harm to the living conditions of 3 and 4 Cotford Close.
Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policy DBE9,
which is consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Way forward:

Members considered an amended proposal that deleted the detached house from the
development and proposed appropriate screening on the boundary could address the objections
raised. They did not consider a single-storey house as an alternative would be likely to do so.

Report Item No: 4

Page 19 9



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=582895

APPLICATION No: EPF/1990/16

SITE ADDRESS: 2 Connaught Avenue
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4DP
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton Forest
DESCRIPTION OF Demolition of existing building and erection of a part 2 and part 3
PROPOSAL: storey building containing six 2 bedroom flats, with provision of 6

ground level car spaces. (The application is for approval of the
building shape (bulk, mass, volume), and door and window
openings - with materials to elevational treatment to be conditioned
as part of any planning approval.)

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586116

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed building, by reason of a combination of its height, massing, and
proximity to side boundaries, would result in an inappropriately large and cramped
development on a constrained site that would appear incongruous within its setting.
The proposal would cause significant harm to the character and appearance of the
locality, amounting to a poor design that would not compensate for the loss of a non-
designated heritage asset. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Local Plan and
Alterations policies CP2(iv), CP7 and DBE1, which are consistent with the National
Planning Policy Framework.

Way forward:

Members considered an alternative development based on the restoration and sensitive
enlargement of the existing building could address the objections raised.

10 Page 20



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586116

Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No:

EPF/0403/16

SITE ADDRESS: 156 High Road

Loughton

Essex

IG10 4BE
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton Forest

DESCRIPTION OF

Two storey rear extension, conversion of rear ground floor and first

PROPOSAL: floor to two self contained flats with access from the rear via
Smarts Lane, together with retention of ground floor shop with
amended store and WC facility.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=582604

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: 156-HR-1, 3G, 4, 5B and 6 with the exception of the
specification of obscure glazing for the east facing first floor window.

3 Prior to the commencement of the development, details of:

i. external lighting to the site entrance,
ii. design of the refuse store,
iii. design of the bicycle store

shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Works as
agreed shall be fully implemented prior to first occupation of the residential units
hereby approved.

4 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 21 11



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=582604

Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/1008/16
SITE ADDRESS: 56 Tycehurst Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1DA
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton St Marys

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL.:

Demoilition of existing dwelling and replacement with two and a half
storey house with basements.

DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=583976

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos:
FHE 2050 revision B

FHE 70
FHE 80
FHE 4000

FHE 4050 revision C

FHE 4100
FHE 3000
FHE 3050
FHE 3100
FHE 3150
FHE 3200
FHE 4150
FHE 2100

3 Prior to first occupation of the house hereby approved, the proposed window
openings in the first floor southern elevation, to the laundry room, bathroom and
dressing room 2 of bedroom 1,shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have
fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the
window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

4 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

12

Page 22



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=583976

10

No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory
Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order), the basement parking hereby
approved shall be retained so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars
together with any ancillary storage in connection with the residential use of the site,
and shall at no time be converted into a room or used for any other purpose.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally
permitted by virtue of Classes A, B, C or E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall
be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives
its written consent to any variation.

Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Page 23 13



11

12

13

14

15

14

The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first
occupation of the house and shall be retained free of obstruction for the parking of
occupiers' and visitors' vehicles.

A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance
with the management and maintenance plan.

The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating
uses having been identified for this site.

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of
development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no
unexpected contamination was encountered.

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Page 24



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/2173/16
SITE ADDRESS: Little London Farm
Gravel Lane
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 6DQ
PARISH: Chigwell
WARD: Chigwell Village
DESCRIPTION OF Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 2 detached houses
PROPOSAL: with detached double garages including formation of new vehicular
access.
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586556

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos:
Site location plan 3373/2A received 13 October 2016
3373/1A
1761.10
1761/11
1761/12
1761/13
1761/14
SKO05
Ownership plan 3373/3
Planning Statement

3 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules

Page 25 15



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586556

16

of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives
its written consent to any variation.

A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance
with the management and maintenance plan.

No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11",
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition
that follows]

Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out.
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline

Page 26



10

11

12

remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that
follows]

Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that
follows]

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and
maintenance programme shall be implemented.

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above
condition.

No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation
of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by
the Planning Authority.

Page 27 17



13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

18

No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes of the houses
and garages have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority,
in writing. The development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved
details.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage(s) hereby approved shall be retained
so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary
storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be
converted into a room or used for any other purpose.

The development hereby approved shall not be commenced until details of the limits
to the curtilage of the houses hereby approved have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Notwithstanding the extent of
the application site, the curtilage of the houses shall be confined to the approved
limits.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally
permitted by virtue of Classes A or E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

No development shall commence until a scheme to enhance the nature
conservation interest of the site has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in full prior to the
occupation of the development hereby approved.

The carriageway of the proposed estate road shall be constructed prior to the
commencement of the erection of any dwelling proposed to have access from such
a road. The footways commensurate with the frontage of each dwelling shall be
completed prior to occupation of the dwellings they are to serve.

Prior to the first occupation of the development the access at its centre line shall be
provided with visibility splays as shown on EAS drawing no.SK05. The visibility
splays shall be retained as such and free of obstruction above 600mm in height in
perpetuity.

Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements as
indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed and
marked out. The access shall be retained as such in perpetuity.

Page 28



21

22

23

24

25

26

27

No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

Any gates provided at the vehicular access shall be inward opening only and shall
be set back a minimum of 6 metres from the back edge of the carriageway.

Demolition of any building on the site and vegetation clearance in connection with
the development hereby approved shall only take place between September and
January. Prior to commencement of the development the local planing authority
shall provide written acknowledgement that an appropriately accredited ecologist
has submitted written confirmation that no active nest would be affected by
commencement of development.

Prior to removal of the dead Ash tree to the west of building 2 as shown on the
approved plans, a detailed method statement shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. Subsequent removal of the tree shall be
undertaken under ecological supervision.

No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials

3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate

5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including
wheel washing.

6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works.

7. Traffic management

8. Lighting during construction

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 29 19



Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2125/16

SITE ADDRESS:

21 The Broadway
Debden
Loughton

Essex

IG10 3SX

PARISH:

Loughton

WARD:

Loughton Broadway

DESCRIPTION OF
PROPOSAL.:

Change of use from use for purposes within Use Class A1 (shops)
to use for purposes within Use Class A5 (hot food take-away).

DECISION:

Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586475

REASON FOR REFUSAL

Way forward:

The proposed development would, without proper justification,
result in over 30% of the key frontage of the Loughton
Broadway town centre in non-retail use and, as a consequence
would fail to safeguard its retail function, contrary to Local Plan
and Alterations policy TC4, which is compliant with the National
Planning Policy Framework.

Members considered a revised proposal accompanied by robust evidence that the shop premises
is not viable for a retail use could address the objections raised.

20

Page 30



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586475

Report Item No:9

APPLICATION No: EPF/2159/16
SITE ADDRESS: 38 Chigwell Lane
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3NY
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton Alderton
DESCRIPTION OF Change of use and conversion of part of existing ground floor office
PROPOSAL: (Use Class B1) to a convenience store (Use Class A1) including
new cladding to front elevation and new pedestrian access.
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=586541

CONDITIONS

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: FPU-099, FPU-101, FPU-102, FPU-201, FPU-202 and
FPU-203

Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall
match those as outlined on the planning application form and shown on drawing no.
FPU-202 of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

The A1 retail use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the hours
of 8am - 6pm on Monday to Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Page 31 21



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586541

Report Item No: 10

APPLICATION No: EPF/1937/16
SITE ADDRESS: Bus Shelter on pavement outside Barclays Bank
near 207 High Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1AZ
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton St Marys
DESCRIPTION OF Advertisement consent for proposed internally illuminated digital
PROPOSAL: panel forming integral part of bus shelter.
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585994

CONDITIONS

1 The advertising to be shown on the digital panels hereby approved shall be static
and not sequential, changes of image shall occur at intervals of a minimum of 10
seconds, and image changes shall be carried out via a smooth fade and not abrupt
change.

22 Page 32



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585994

Report Item No: 11

APPLICATION No: EPF/1938/16
SITE ADDRESS: Bus Shelter on pavement outside Pink Accessories Ltd
252A High Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1RB
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton St Marys
DESCRIPTION OF Advertisement consent for proposed 1x digital panel forming
PROPOSAL: integral part of bus shelter.
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585995

CONDITIONS

1 The advertising to be shown on the digital panels hereby approved shall be static
and not sequential, changes of image shall occur at intervals of a minimum of 10
seconds, and image changes shall be carried out via a smooth fade and not abrupt
change.

Page 33 23



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585995

Report Item No: 12

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1969/16

SITE ADDRESS: 352 Willingale Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 2BW
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton Broadway

DESCRIPTION OF

Retention of single storey ground floor rear extension (as an

PROPOSAL: amendment to EPF/3268/15 which gave approval to a ground floor
rear extension and two storey side extension).
DECISION: Grant Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586076

CONDITIONS

NONE.

24

Page 34



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586076

Report Item No: 13

APPLICATION No: EPF/1695/16
SITE ADDRESS: 86 Tycehurst Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1DA
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton St Marys
DESCRIPTION OF Ground floor and first floor front, rear and side extensions.
PROPOSAL.: Remodelled roof and elevations. Solar panels, extended drive

access and crossover. Raised rear patio.

DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585457

CONDITIONS

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives
its written consent to any variation.

No development, including site clearance, shall take place until a scheme of soft
landscaping and a statement of the methods, including a timetable, for its
Implementation (linked to the development schedule), have been submitted to the
Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The landscape scheme shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details and the agreed timetable. If any
plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a period of 5 years from the

Page 35 25



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585457

26

date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by
another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand in writing.

Page 36



Report Item No: 14

APPLICATION No: EPF/1813/16
SITE ADDRESS: 1 Chigwell Rise

Chigwell

Essex

IG7 6AB
PARISH: Chigwell
WARD: Chigwell Village

DESCRIPTION OF

Proposed part single, part two storey side, rear and front

PROPOSAL.: extensions, alterations and new roof accommodation including
front and three rear dormer windows.
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585713

CONDITIONS

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory
work, until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree
planting) and implementation programme (linked to the development schedule)
have been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
These works shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall
include, as appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be
retained: proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking
layouts; other minor artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and
functional services above and below ground. The details of soft landscape works
shall include plans for planting or establishment by any means and full written
specifications and schedules of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers /densities where appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date
of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or
plant or any replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes
seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species
and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the

Page 37 27



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585713

28

Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 38



Report Item No: 15

APPLICATION No: EPF/2119/16
SITE ADDRESS: 4 The Meadway
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5PG
PARISH: Buckhurst Hill
WARD: Buckhurst Hill West
DESCRIPTION OF Single storey rear extension
PROPOSAL:
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586462

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 39 29



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586462

Report Item No: 16

APPLICATION No: EPF/2236/16
SITE ADDRESS: 73 Meadow Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4HY
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton Forest
DESCRIPTION OF Rear single storey extension (reduced length), conservatory set 1m
PROPOSAL: from neighbours' boundary and side first floor extension over
existing utility room
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586721

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle

movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

30 Page 40



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586721

Report Item No: 17

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1103/16

SITE ADDRESS: 1 Knighton Lane
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
1G9 5HH

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

DESCRIPTION OF

Two storey front/side extension. Single storey rear extension. New

PROPOSAL.: basement level at rear to provide additional accommodation.
Rooms in the roof space with six roof lights.
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=584215

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle

movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

4 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

5 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

Page 41 31



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=584215

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Agenda ltem 7

AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH

23 November 2016

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES

ITEM

REFERENCE

SITE LOCATION

OFFICER
RECOMMENDATION

PAGE

EPF/2042/16

Royal Oak PH
Forest Road
Loughton
Essex

IG10 1EG

Grant Permission 46
(With Conditions)

EPF/1904/16

Land to the rear of Hatfield
House

E15 Acting School
Rectory Lane

Loughton

Essex

Grant Permission 58
(With Conditions)

EPF/1665/16

21 Alderton Hill
Loughton
Essex

IG10 3JD

Grant Permission 68
(With Conditions)

EPF/2256/16

Willow Park Farm
Millers Lane
Chigwell

Essex

IG7 6DG

Refuse Permission 74

EPF/2445/16

Flat C

66 Valley Hill
Loughton
Essex

IG10 3AT

Grant Permission 80
(With Conditions)

EPF/1214/16

17 Algers Road
Loughton
Essex

IG10 4NG

Grant Permission 86
(With Conditions)

EPF/2817/16

Car park adjacent to Buckhurst
Hill Underground Station
Victoria Road

Buckhurst Hill

Essex

IG9 5ES

Prior Approval 92
Required and
Granted

EPF/2269/16

16 Scotland Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex

IG9 5NR

Grant Permission 96
(With Conditions)

EPF/2295/16

33 Amberley Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex

1G9 5QW

Grant Permission 102
(With Conditions)

Page 43



10. EPF/2406/16 131 Queens Road Grant Permission 108
E“Ckh”rSt Hill (With Conditions)
ssex
IG9 5BH
11. EPF/2321/16 131 Queens Road Grant Permission 114

Buckhurst Hill
Essex
1G9 5BH

(With Conditions)

Page 44




This page has been intentionally left blank

Page 45



@ Epping Forest District Council

Agenda Item Number 1

e\ ‘Q
S B

Unauthorised reproduction infringes

Application Number: | EPF/2042/16

Site Name: Royal Oak, Forest Road, Loughton,

nnnnnnnn ance Survey Data. © IG10 1EG
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:

prosecution or civil proceedings.

Scale of Pbtage 449 1/1250




Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/2042/16
SITE ADDRESS: Royal Oak PH
Forest Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1EG
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton Forest
APPLICANT: Mr Steve Hancocks

DESCRIPTION OF

Partial demolition and extension of the former Royal Oak public

PROPOSAL: house and change of use to provide 5 flats, demolition of 171
Smarts Lane and redevelopment for 9 flats, and associated parking
and landscaping (14 flats in total).

RECOMMENDED Grant Permission (With Conditions)

DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586274

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: 1496-LOC, 914170E, 914170E3, 914170G, 914170_C,
914170R, 1496-P001, 1496-P002, 1496-P003, 1496-P004, 1496-P005, 1496-P101,
1496-P102, 1496-P103, 1496-P107, 1496-P108, 1496-P109, 1496-P110, 1500-
P104 and 1500-P105.

3 No development shall have taken place until details of the types and colours of the
external finishes, including windows and doors, have been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of
the development. The development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details. For the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made
available for inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application

site itself.

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window
opening in the flank elevation of the main Public House building (extension) facing
No. 150 Forest Road shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed
frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is
installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

Page 47



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586274

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed first floor
window opening in the flank wall serving 'plot 14' as shown on plan no. 1496-P102
shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7
metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be
permanently retained in that condition.

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed high
level window openings in the first floor and above on the north west elevation shall
be no lower than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is
installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives
its written consent to any variation.

No development shall take place, including any ground works or demolition, until a
Construction Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The approved Plan shall be adhered to throughout the
construction period. The Plan shall provide for the following all clear of the highway:
Safe access into the site

The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

Loading and unloading of plant and materials

Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

Wheel and underbody washing facilities

Page 48



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements, vehicle
parking and turning areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided,
hard surfaced, sealed and marked out. The access, parking and turning areas shall
be retained in perpetuity for their intended purpose.

Prior to the first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council.

There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

The footpath as shown on plan No. 1496-P001, known as Footpath 129, shall be
permanently retained in a good state of repair and accessible by the public at all
times unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

No development shall take place until details of the construction of the footpath have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

No works shall take place until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the
site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the
hydrological and hydro geological context of the development, has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall
subsequently be implemented prior to occupation and should include but not be
limited to:

Surface water run-off from the development restricted to no higher than 8I/s for all
storm events up to the 1 in 100 inclusive of climate change (40%) storm event. This
is subject to confirmation from the relevant authority to discharge up to this
maximum rate into the off-site surface water drainage network.

Surface water managed on site up to the 1 in 100 inclusive of climate change (40%)
storm event. It should be demonstrated that all properties are safe from flooding up
to this design event.

Groundwater testing.

Final detailed modelling of the whole pipe network and storage on site.

An appropriate amount of treatment for all areas of the site which is demonstrated to

Page 49



be in line with the CIRIA SuDS Manual C753.

Detailed engineering drawings of each component of the drainage scheme.

A final drainage plan highlighting conveyance and exceedance routes, location and
sizing of storage features, FFLs and ground levels, outfalls and discharge rates from
the site.

18 No works shall take place until a scheme to minimise the risk of offsite flooding
caused by surface water run-off and groundwater during construction works and
prevent pollution has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local
planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

19 No works shall take place until a Maintenance Plan detailing the maintenance
arrangements including who is responsible for different elements of the surface
water drainage system and the maintenance activities/frequencies, has been
submitted to and agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Should any part be maintainable by a Maintenance Company, details of long term
funding arrangements should be provided.

20 The applicant or any successor in title shall maintain yearly logs of maintenance
which shall be carried out in accordance with any approved Maintenance Plan.
These shall be available for inspection upon a request by the Local Planning
Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Planning Services — Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1,
Appendix A.(g)), since it is for a type of development that cannot be determined by Officers if
more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal to be approved are
received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3) and since
it is an application for residential development consisting of 5 dwellings or more (unless approval
of reserved matters only) and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part
Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application site is an elongated irregular site covering the extent of the Royal Oak Public
House and associated outbuildings and car parking areas along with No. 171 Smarts Lane. The
site has frontages onto both Forest Road and Smarts Lane, with the main 2 storey Pub building
fronting onto Forest Road with car parking to the rear and access to No. 171, from Smarts Lane.
The site is currently hoarded up and the Pub has ceased trading for some time but access for the
Public Footpath which runs through the site is still available. There are protected trees to the rear
of the site (close to the Smarts Lane frontage) and the main Pub building is on the Council’s Local
List of Buildings of Local Architectural or Historic Interest. The site is located between Smarts
Lane and Forest Road which are residential streets made up of two storey terrace housing
predominantly. Directly to the south east is another Public House — The Victoria Tavern, with
residential gardens and properties to the north east. To the south west is Forest land which is

Page 50



within the Metropolitan Green Belt but this site is not within the Green Belt or within a Conservation
Area.

Description of Proposal:

The application seeks consent for the partial demolition and extension of the Public House and
change of use of this building to provide 5 flats, the demolition of No. 171 Smarts Lane and
redevelopment of this and the land fronting Smarts Lane to provide 9 flats with associated parking
and landscaping. The proposal retains the public right of way through the development which will
lead onto Forest Road through an undercroft extension to the main Public House.

A projecting wing will link the main Public House building with the new elevation fronting onto
Smarts Lane. Vehicle access will be from Smarts Lane with a parking court contained within the
centre of the site. Parking spaces are also proposed in a driveway style to both the Smarts Lane
and Forest Road frontages.

The applicant’s Design 7 Access Statement indicates the mix of dwellings would be 2 x one-
bedroom and 12 x two-bedroom units. However, having regard to the submitted floor plans
Officer's understand the proposed mix is 1 x one-bedroom, 10 x two-bedroom and 3 x three-
bedroom units. This report assesses the merits of the proposal on the basis of Officer’s
understanding.

Relevant History:

EPF/2508/14 - Demolition of existing building and redevelopment of the site to provide nine
terraced houses, together with associated amenity space in the form of gardens, and car parking —
Withdrawn (Royal Oak)

EPF/1488/16 - Demolition of existing dwelling and garage replacement with two maisonettes,
associated garden bin store and car parking — Refused (171 Smarts Lane)

Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations

CP2 — Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
CP3 — New Development

CP5 — Sustainable Building

CP6 — Achieving sustainable urban development patterns
CP7 — Urban Form and Quality

GB7A — Development adjacent to the Green Belt

DBE1 — Design of New Buildings

DBE2 — Effect on Neighbouring Properties

DBE3 — Design in Urban Areas

DBES8 — Private Amenity Space

HC13A — Local List of Buildings

ST1 — Location of Development

ST4 — Road Safety

ST6 — Vehicle Parking

H2A — Previously Developed Land

H4A — Dwelling Mix

LL8 — Works to preserved trees

LL9 — Felling of preserved trees

LL10 — Adequacy of provision for landscape retention

Page 51



LL11 — Landscaping schemes

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans
according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

The site is listed in “Draft Policy P 2 Loughton”, which forms part of the Epping Forest District Draft
Local Plan Consultation October 2016, as site SR-0527 for approximately 14 houses. At the
current time, only limited material weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan. However, the
Draft Plan, and evidence base, should be considered as a material consideration in planning
decisions. The site has been through the sifting process for suitable sustainable sites and
has made the current Draft Local Plan that is currently out to consultation to which this
proposal in principle is in accordance with.

Summary of Representations:

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: The Committee OBJECTED to this application on the following
grounds.

The proposal was considered an overdevelopment of the site and the excessive bulk, out of
character with the local area, which would cause loss of amenity to neighbours from overlooking.
Members also voiced concern over the loss of the trees.

Members expressed concern that the Public Right of Way footpath was shown on the plans to be
positioned in the middle of the access road to the development. This was considered to be
dangerous to pedestrians using the PROW and therefore totally unacceptable and a highway
safety issue.

The Committee was very concerned that the loss of parking was not taken into account into the
scheme. The parking provision proposed was considered inadequate for the number of flats and
the resultant on-street parking would exacerbate the existing congestion on Smarts Lane and
Forest Road.

The Committee supported a member of the public’s concern that the plans did not appear to match
the information given in the Design and Access Statement on the number of bedrooms of the flats
in the scheme and that this should be clarified.

However, if the District Council was minded to grant this application, the Committee commented
that future occupants of these flats should not be eligible for residents parking schemes in the
town.

133 Neighbours were consulted and two Site Notices posted. The following responses were
received:

58 OBJECTIONS were received from the following addresses:

LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCATION (PLANS GROUP)

FOREST ROAD Nos: 37, 50, 67, 70, 75, 79, 95, 107, 110, 111, 115, 123, 128, 136, 139, 141, 150,
152, 153, 154, 2 Forest Court — 157, 156, 158, 160, 162, 170, 176 and 7 UNKNOWN NUMBERS
ON FOREST ROAD

Page 52



SMARTS LANE Nos: 24, 91, 112, 114, 116, 143, 151, 177, 175, 181, 185, 187, 203, 215, 2
LOWER BELLE VIEW COTTAGE, 3 LOWER BELLE VIEW COTTAGE and ONE UNKNOWN
NUMBER ON SMARTS LANE

HIGH BEECH ROAD Nos: 61 and 62

FOREST VIEW ROAD Nos: 4

MEADOW ROAD Nos: 34

COLES GREEN No: 3

1 UNKNOWN ADDRESS

The responses can be summarised as follows:

Objections to parking issues — already difficult in area due to commuter parking, High Street
parking and local business parking, loss of parking due to parking proposed at Forest Road side,
insufficient parking proposed. Area needs residents parking. Leading to problems of congestion
and highway safety.

Out of character and unsympathetic to surrounding terrace properties, overdevelopment of the
site, loss of a community facility, public right of way through site, disturbs Green Belt, concern over
construction process (including further parking issues/congestion), loss of privacy, loss of value,
loss of view, insufficient amenity space proposed, impact on local wildlife, impact on local schools,
tower detail too high, concern with regards to refuse collection.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with this proposal relate to suitability of site, design and the Locally Listed
Building, impact on amenity, highway/parking issues and tree and landscape issues.

Suitability of Site

The site is within the built up area of Loughton and is classed as a brownfield site. The site is
within 1 km of Loughton Underground Station and within 500m of the extensive shops, services
and facilities of Loughton Town Centre and therefore this is considered a very sustainable location.

The proposal provides for some communal amenity areas in the region of 250m? which is 100m?
short of the policy requirement of 25m? per unit. The amenity space is also located in the main
within the central courtyard area adjacent to the car parking area or to the front of the Smarts Lane
elevation adjacent to the road which is not ideal. However, with access to Epping Forest just
opposite the Smarts Lane access this is considered more than adequate for this town centre
location.

Design and Locally Listed Building

The proposal was the subject of a pre-application process, with the original scheme proposing the
demolition of the Public House main building. Officers were against the loss of this Locally Listed
building and have negotiated for its retention with this current scheme.

The building was Locally listed in the main due to its prominent fagcade onto Forest Road and it
was noted that it is:

‘A two storey brick and render building with flank chimneys, half-timbered gables with strong barge

board details and finials, casement windows with fan lights on the ground floor. There is a varying
range of extensions and out buildings and the setting is dominated by car parking’.

Page 53



The amount of demolition to the main building is minor. Areas that are being demolished offer little
local architectural or historic interest and the bulk of the Public House is to be retained. Although
the building will be extended to a large degree, the prominent fagcade which formed the main
reason for its local listing is to be retained.

The proposed design of the extensions was also the subject of pre-application discussions and it is
considered to be acceptable in that it preserves the special interest of the locally listed building.
The design utilises traditional detailing, materials and massing and reads as additional
accommodation and service buildings for the pub. The elevation fronting Smarts Lane consists of
a row of three cottages that are sympathetic to the scale of surrounding buildings.

The extension directly to the rear of the existing Royal Oak building is unusual in that it is taller
than the ridge height of the Royal Oak. This creates a feature element that forms a separation
between old and new which is considered an acceptable feature.

The proposal will be a large addition to the rear of the Victoria Tavern, but it is not considered
overbearing particularly given the level of separation. The Victoria Tavern has exceedingly small
proportions and therefore it would be difficult to achieve a modern development to these
proportions.

Amenity

The application site is bounded by the Victoria Tavern to the south east and residential dwellings
to the north west of the site and dwellings opposite the site on Forest Road. Due to the dense
character of the area it is likely that there will be some change to the amenities of surrounding
neighbours.

With regards to No. 150 Forest Road, this is a bungalow with a garden parallel to the development
site. The built form directly adjacent to No. 150 will remain broadly the same but with the removal
of the large flat roof extension to the main pub building. There is a first floor side facing window
proposed on the small first floor side extension, however this is secondary window for a bedroom
and can be obscured glazed to avoid any actual, or perception of overlooking.

The removal of the flat roof single storey element will move development away from the shared
boundary with No. 150, albeit now at two storey. A two storey with attic extension is proposed to
the rear of the main Public House building which will link to the proposed development fronting
onto Smarts Lane; however this will be set in from the shared boundary with No. 150 by a
minimum of 7m. This is considered a sufficient distance to avoid the development appearing
overbearing to No. 150 and the subsequent properties along Forest Road. Side facing windows
are proposed along this two storey section, however these are high level windows to dual aspect
rooms. Therefore it is considered that again this will mitigate against any actual or perception of
overlooking from these windows across the rear garden of No. 150 Forest Road and beyond.

With regards to the rear facing windows from the block which fronts Smarts Lane there is a back to
back distance of some 26m with the properties on Forest Road and 15m to the rear boundary of
No. 150. This is just over the Essex Design Guide suggested 25m and will avoid any close
overlooking with only far reaching views, if any possible.

The proposal will be located within 3m of a large swimming pool outbuilding located within the rear
garden of No. 152 Forest Road which is ‘L’ shaped around the garden to No. 150. Concern has
been raised by the neighbour regarding overlooking and loss of light to this outbuilding. There is a
side facing window directly overlooking this building and the other Forest Road gardens beyond.
Although this would only provide views over the rear, less private areas as it is a third window to a
living space and therefore could be obscured glazed this would avoid any actual overlooking. With

Page 54



regards to loss of light this is not considered a significant issue given the distance from the main
house and that this is an outbuilding.

Parking is proposed on this boundary but it is not considered give rise to any excessive harm to
amenity in terms of noise or disturbance above that of the use of the site as a Public House.

With regards to the element fronting Smarts Lane, this is set back from the road edge by a
maximum of 15m which is far behind the building line of the adjacent terrace properties No. 175
onwards. Due to the orientation of the proposal against the existing properties it is not considered
to result in any significant loss of light or outlook to this property.

Concern has been raised with regards to the proximity of parking spaces 18, 17 and 16 on Smarts
Lane to No. 175. However, this is the garage forecourt area (presumably to 171 Smarts Lane) and
parking could take place in this area in any event — it is therefore not considered to result in any
excessive harm to the amenities of No. 175 above that of the existing situation.

To the south east of the site is the Victoria Tavern. The proposed extension to the main Public
House will be within 1m of this shared boundary, however this is adjacent to the car park and no
amenity issues are raised. The central connecting two storey with attic area will be within 5.5m of
the shared boundary, however the first floor of the Victoria Tavern (which presumably is living
accommodation) has no windows and therefore overlooking is not an issue. The 5.5m separation
avoids any unacceptable loss of light to the ground floor windows of this building.

The proposal will certainly be visible to many surrounding properties due to its overall footprint and
height, including those on the opposite side of the road but this does not harm the outlook to these
properties. Loss of view is not a planning consideration.

Highways and Parking

A key issue raised by neighbours is the impact this proposal will have on the existing parking
available for surrounding residents and the proposed number of parking spaces for the
development.

Essex County Council Highways has no objection to the scheme in terms of highway safety but
has requested conditions which include the requirement of a construction management plan to
limit construction vehicles parking on nearby roads.

With regards to parking provision this is passed down to District level but the Highways Officer has
commented that the development is ‘in a very accessible location with regards to easy access
to other modes of transport so a relaxation of the parking standards can be allowed’. The
proposal provides for 18 parking spaces for 14 flats which equates to 1 space per a dwelling,
plus 4 visitor spaces. The Essex Parking Standards suggests parking provision should
provide 1 space per a 1 bedroom dwelling and 2 spaces per a 2 bedroom (and above)
dwelling together with 25% visitors parking, generating a total requirement of 34 parking
spaces. However, this is caveated by the possibility that a reduction in standards can be
applied if there is development within an urban area (including town centre locations) that has
good links to sustainable transport (pg. 64).

It is appreciated from Officer site visits to the development site and from the neighbour objections
received that parking along Smarts Lane and Forest Road can be difficult. However, as stated
above this site is within the built up area of Loughton within walking distance of a good level of
services, shops, facilities and public transport including the Central Line. It is therefore considered
unreasonable to expect any further parking than that proposed given the very sustainable location.

Page 55



The existing on-street parking offers limited scope to accommodate any additional on-street
parking as it is restricted by private accesses and existing parking restrictions (i.e. double yellow
lines at junction). Therefore it would be the case for future occupiers of ‘buyer beware’ as any
further parking outside of the development site if required would be challenging — but this is not
considered sufficient justification to refuse this development as sufficient parking is provided given
the location of the development.

With the regards to the ‘loss’ of on-street parking, raised by neighbours, on Forest Road due to the
proposed front 7 parking spaces, this area was the existing front forecourt of The Royal Oak when
it traded as a Public House and this area was used for parking. As the site has been hoarded up,
on-street parking currently continues across the full frontage, however, if the hoarding were
removed only a small section of raised kerb would remain (offering on street parking for perhaps
two cars) and therefore the resultant loss in on-street parking is considered minimal given the
extent of the road frontage of the building.

It is also considered that the prevention of the development until such time as ‘resident’s parking’
scheme is implemented would be unreasonable, particularly in the absence of a timetable of
implementation. In addition resident’s parking schemes are outside of any planning control and
therefore not relevant to planning or to the development itself which provides sufficient parking.

In relation to a suggested condition prohibiting issue of residents parking permits to occupants of
the development in the event of a residents parking scheme being introduced in the locality, that is
considered to be both unreasonable and unenforceable. That is because no scheme is proposed,
if one were it's operation would be outside of planning control and any enforcement action taken
by the District Council would have to be against the District Council.

It is noted that the developer will have to relocate 2 lamp columns and a utility pole to provide
the vehicular accesses as shown on the submitted plans. All costs associated with the
aforementioned will be borne by the developer.

The proposal therefore complies with the Essex Parking standards and the proposal is not
considered contrary to policies ST4 and ST6 of the Local Plan.

Public Right of Way

A Public Right of Way (PROW) runs through the site from Smarts Lane to Forest Road. The
Essex County Council PROW Team has raised no objection to the proposal and are aware that
the PROW will follow the vehicular access from Smarts Lane. It is noted that this is no different to
the use of the PROW when the Public House was still trading as it was through the car park to this
Public House.

Trees and Landscaping

The Tree and Landscape Officer has no objection to the proposal subject to conditions requesting
tree protection and hard and soft landscaping. A protected Field Maple is to be removed as part of
the development proposals, however the Tree and Landscape Officer has no objection on the
basis that satisfactory replacement landscaping is to be implemented.

Other issues
- Refuse Collection

Concern has been raised by neighbours regarding the collection of refuse from the development a
bin store that has been proposed within the extension to the main Public House building which will

Page 56



open onto the walk through under croft. The Council’'s Waste Management Team has no objection
to the proposed arrangements for the storage and collection of waste.

- Discrepancies in plans
The plans were initially submitted incorrectly labelled for a site in Great Dunmow this was
corrected by the Architects as soon as they were informed.

Concern has been raised by neighbours with regards to balconies shown on the floor plans of the
Smarts Lane elevation block that are not shown on the elevation plans. These are not external
balconies but full height voids to the floor below and the plans do accurately portray this.

An additional concern is the discrepancy between the proposed bedroom numbers in the design
and access statement and those shown on the plans (the plans show more bedrooms or areas
that could be used as bedrooms). It is the plans that are approved should planning permission be
granted and it is clear from the plans the number of rooms proposed. The proposed mix as
understood by Officer’s is stated earlier in this report under the heading Description of Proposal.
Officer's assessment the number of parking spaces required is on that basis.

Conclusion:

The proposal is considered acceptable retaining (albeit with extensions) the locally listed building,
with a satisfactory design, resulting in limited impact on amenity and the development is in a very
sustainable location. Although concerns have been raised regarding the existing parking situation,
it is considered that the proposal provides sufficient parking for this town centre location and other
factors outside of planning control (such as a residents parking scheme) may help to alleviate the
existing parking problems. It is a site put forward in the Draft Local Plan currently out to
consultation and the evidence basis supports the principal of the development and given that the
proposal will make a meaningful contribution towards new homes in the District, in a desirable
location outside of the Green Belt, approval with conditions is recommended.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564414

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 57



Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Iltem Number 2

Unauthorised reproduction infringes

Crown Copyright and may lead to Application Number: EPF/1904/16
prosecution or civil proceedings. - -

Site Name: Land to the rear of Hatfield House,
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © E15 Acting School, Rectory Lane,
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: L ht
100018534 ougnton

Scale of Plot: 1/2500
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail

Copyright & Database Right 2013 Paqe 58




Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1904/16

SITE ADDRESS: Land to the rear of Hatfield House
E15 Acting School
Rectory Lane
Loughton
Essex
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton St Marys
APPLICANT: Mr Mark Freeman

DESCRIPTION OF

Phased development to provide higher education facilities (Use

PROPOSAL: Class D1) and permission for the permanent retention and external
upgrade of the two existing studio buildings, together with
associated landscaping and highways works.

RECOMMENDED Grant Permission (With Conditions)

DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585934

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: 31464-IW-SA-00-DR-A-100 SITE LOCATION PLAN,
31464-IW-SA-00-DR-A-101 EXISTING SITE PLAN,
31464-IW-SA-00-DR-A-102 EXISTING SITE SECTIONS,
31464-IW-SA-00-DR-A-0001 PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR,
31464-IW-SA-01-DR-A-0001 PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR,
31464-IW-SA-XX-DR-A-0001 PROPOSED SITE ELEVATONS,
31464-IW-SA-XX-DR-A-0002 EXISTING AND PROPOSED ELEVATIONS -
EXISTING STUDIOS, 31464-IW-SA-XX-DR-A-0003 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS -
TECHNICAL BLOCK AND LARGE STUDIO BLOCK, 31464-IW-SA-XX-DR-A-0004
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - MAIN STUDIO BUILDING, 31464-IW-SA-00-DR-A-
1010 PROPOSED SITE PLAN,
31464-IW-SA-XX-DR-A-1011 PROPOSED SITE SECTIONS and
31464-IW-SA-XX-DR-A-1012 PROPOSED LANSCAPING PLAN

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall
match those as outlined within pages 32, 33 and 36 of the Design and Access
Statement which corresponds with plan no's: 31464-IW-SA-XX-DR-A-0002
EXISTING AND PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - EXISTING STUDIOS, 31464-IW-SA-
XX-DR-A-0003 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - TECHNICAL BLOCK AND LARGE

Page 59



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585934

STUDIO BLOCK and 31464-IW-SA-XX-DR-A-0004 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS -
MAIN STUDIO BUILDING, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

No development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried
out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that
follows]

Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that
follows]

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and
maintenance programme shall be implemented.

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation

Page 60



10

11

12

13

scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above
condition.

The recommendations as shown in Innovation Group environmental services Phase
1 habitat survey dated May 2016 shall be followed unless otherwise agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority.

No conversion/demolition or preliminary groundwork's of any kind shall take place
until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological
work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted
by the applicant and approved by the local planning authority'.

No works shall take place until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the
site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the
hydrological and hydro geological context of the development, has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme should
include but not be limited to:

-Provision of infiltration tests results in line with BRE365. If infiltration is found
unviable, the runoff discharged from the development should be limited to not more
than 5l/s.

-Provide attenuation storage for all storm events up to and including the 1 in 100
year storm event including 40% climate change uplift.

-Provide detailed modelling of the different SuDS features i.e. source control
features dimensions and storage volumes (including design drawings).

-Provide demonstration of enough treatment from all parts of the development in
accordance with the CIRIA SuDS Manual C753.

-Provide details of the final outfall from the development/pond. If the final outfall is to
the surface water sewers, provide written permission from the relevant Water
Authority to discharge into their surface water network.

-Provide a drainage layout showing the exceedance flow routes.

No works shall take place until a scheme to minimise the risk of offsite flooding
caused by surface water run-off and groundwater during construction works has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The
scheme shall subsequently be implemented. The scheme shall be implemented as
approved.

No works shall take place until a Maintenance Plan detailing the maintenance
arrangements including who is responsible for different elements of the surface
water drainage system and the maintenance activities/frequencies, has been
submitted to and agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

The applicant or any successor in title shall maintain yearly logs of maintenance
which shall be carried out in accordance with any approved Maintenance Plan.
These shall be available for inspection upon a request by the Local Planning
Authority.

Page 61



14

15

16

17

18

No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials

3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate

5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including
wheel washing.

6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works.

No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

No development shall take place, until full details of both hard and soft landscape
works (including tree planting) and implementation programme (linked to the
development schedule) have been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. These works shall be carried out as approved. The hard
landscaping details shall include, as appropriate, and in addition to details of existing
features to be retained: proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure;
car parking layouts; other minor artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting
and functional services above and below ground. The details of soft landscape
works shall include plans for planting or establishment by any means and full written
specifications and schedules of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers /densities where appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date
of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or
plant or any replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes
seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species
and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the
Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives
its written consent to any variation.

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 62



This application is before this Committee since it is an application for major commercial and other
developments, (e.g. developments of significant scale and/or wide concern) and is recommended
for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application forms part of the University of Essex drama and acting campus which includes the
listed Hatfield House and also the listed Corbett Theatre. The application site is located directly to
the rear of Hatfield House and is an open area of unmaintained land with two ‘temporary’ buildings
used as studios to the south east of the application site. The land rises up and is higher than
Hatfield House. To the north of the site are further university buildings, to the North West are
relatively new residential dwellings that are part of the old Epping Forest College land estate. To
the south west is a similarly unmaintained area of land which is understood to be within the
ownership of Epping Forest College. The site is designated as urban open space. The site is not
within the Metropolitan Green Belt or a Conservation Area.

Description of Proposal:

The application seeks consent for the retention and upgrade of the existing ‘temporary’ studio
buildings along with the erection of 3 two storey connected blocks providing additional teaching
accommodation and studio/storage space for the University. The buildings will be contemporary in
appearance and have flat roofs to a maximum height of 10m for a feature section. The proposals
will be located around a central courtyard area which is accessed through an existing gap in a
historic wall to the rear of Hatfield House. The proposals result in an increase in floor area of
3,551.4m. The proposal is due to the need to consolidate existing off site buildings (for example
those in Oakwood Hill) to one campus site.

Relevant History:

EPF/0499/16 - Demolition of existing modern extensions, and erection of a part single-storey, part
two-storey extension, with associated hard and soft landscaping — App/Con

EPF/0505/16 - Grade I listed building application for works in connection with the demolition of
existing modern extensions, and erection of a part single-storey, part two-storey extension, with
associated hard and soft landscaping — App/Con

Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations

CP1 — Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
CP2 — Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
CP3 — New Development

CP7 - Urban Form and Quality

ST1 — Location of development

CF5 — Educational buildings outside of the Green Belt
DBE1 — Design

DBEZ2 - Impact on amenity

DBE3 — Design in Urban Areas

HC12 — Setting of listed buildings

LL5 — Protection of urban open space

LL6 — Partial development of urban open space

LL11 — Landscaping scheme

Page 63



The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans
according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Summary of Representations:

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: The Committee has NO OBJECTION to this application.

45 Neighbours were consulted and a Site Notice posted: No responses received

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with this proposal relate to the principle of the development, design and the
setting of the Listed Building, impact on amenity and tree and landscape issues.

Principle of Development

The proposal is an extension to an existing educational facility. Policy CF5 promotes replacement
buildings or extensions to educational buildings provided the proposal would not result in an
excessive adverse effect on townscape due to loss of open space and that it does not involve the
loss of playing fields. In this case only the first part of the policy applies, as no playing fields are to
be lost. The proposals are located within a relatively well screened location with only residents to
the north being able to view the site and the current unmaintained land certainly is not of any
townscape merit.

The whole of the university site is classed as urban open space, as are the sites to the south and
west forming quite a large continuous area of urban open space. Historically the site to the north
west formed part of a school with playing fields but this has been developed in recent years with
housing. Policies LL5 and LL6 do allow for partial development of urban open space provided
there would not be any excessive adverse effect on the spaces or to the surrounding amenity. As
stated above, the site has few public view points, no public access and is of little value as open
space and therefore in terms of this policy the proposal is considered acceptable.

Although designated as urban open space the site is previously developed and therefore suitable
for redevelopment. Additionally the site is well located close to Debden Station and to surrounding
bus networks and the site is considered sustainable. Although there is no highways work
proposed Essex County Council Highways were consulted on the scheme as it is a major
application — they returned no objection and noted that:

The proposal is not going to intensify the vehicular use of the site and there is sufficient staff
parking existing. It is noted that students are not allowed to park on site and the applicant is
increasing the cycle parking accordingly. Further to this the site is extremely well located with
regards to access to public transport. Consequently the proposal will not be detrimental to
highway safety, efficiency or capacity at this location or on the wider highway network.

Design and setting of the Listed Building

The site is situated to the rear of Hatfield House, a grade Il listed building dating from the late 18®
with 19™ century alterations. The building is yellow stock brick under a plain clay tile roof and
benefits from a green and well-treed outlook to the front. The site to the rear is a mostly derelict

Page 64



and unkempt piece of land behind a high red brick historic wall, with this area of land contributing
little to the setting of the building, particularly as the brick wall offers a degree of visual separation
between the building and the site.

The principle of redeveloping the vacant site to expand and improve the current campus raises no
objections. The proposed buildings are large in scale and modern in design; however, they are
considered to be well designed buildings with an appropriate landscaping scheme which will
improve the appearance of the site. As an established acting school, the proposed buildings
contribute to the present day character and appearance of the wider site and therefore do not
appear as incongruous additions within the setting of Hatfield House.

The proposed contemporary design reflects the uses of the buildings and does not compete with
the listed building, preserving it as the only traditional building on this part of the site and providing
a clear visual distinction between the two building elements. The materials proposed balance both
modern materials needed to achieve a finish appropriate to the contemporary design of the
buildings, along with more traditional brickwork panels to integrate the proposed buildings into the
site and into the setting of Hatfield House.

The buildings are centred around a courtyard, which is located adjacent to the existing opening in
the historic wall and although the new development will be distinct from the historic wall and
Hatfield House, this arrangement creates an effective link between the old and new parts of the
site.

The upgrading and retention of the temporary buildings is also an acceptable part of the scheme
as they make little contribution to the overall appearance of the site. Although they are located
outside of the main courtyard area they have been incorporated into the overall scheme with an
upgrading of the external materials which includes the replacement of fascias and the staining or
cladding of external walls. This has removed the more temporary nature ‘portakabin’ appearance
of these two buildings which forms a more acceptable development and one that can be
considered to have a degree of permanence.

Amenity

The nearest residential properties are the relatively new build properties on Leaden Close. These
properties are slightly to the west of the site and do not directly front onto the proposed
development. However, the development will be very clearly visible and the nearest property will
be within 20m of the proposed development. Although visible the proposal is not considered to
result in any excessive harm to amenity given the offset location and the ample separation
distance. No other amenity concerns are raised given the distances to next nearest properties.

Trees and Landscaping

The existing site is woefully lacking in any landscaping, other than some existing trees outside of
the site boundaries. The proposal will introduce a significant amount of landscaping to the site
boundaries and within the site itself, greatly improving the visual amenity of the site. The Tree and
Landscape Officer has no objection to the scheme subject to conditions relating to tree protection
and hard and soft landscaping.

Conclusion:

The proposal is a large scheme for consolidation of this existing educational facility within
Loughton. It is considered a well designed development, with minimal impact on adjacent amenity
or the adjacent listed building. Although it results in the loss of an area of designated urban open

Page 65



space this was very poor quality and of little public value. On this basis the application is
recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564414

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qgov.uk

Page 66



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 67



Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 3

fs

HOGARTH RE

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Application Number:

EPF/1665/16

Site Name: 21 Alderton Hill, Loughton, IG10
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 34D
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534py g Scale of Plot: 1/1250
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013
Fage bo



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1665/16
SITE ADDRESS: 21 Alderton Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3JD
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton Alderton

Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT: Mr R Spencer

DESCRIPTION OF Demolition of existing property and erection of a replacement
PROPOSAL: dwelling.

RECOMMENDED Grant Permission (With Conditions)

DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585386

CONDITIONS

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos:

Site location plan

1915:01

1915:02

1915:11 revision E

1915:13 revision B

1915:21

1915:22

1915:23

No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as

Page 69



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=585386

appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives
its written consent to any variation.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally
permitted by virtue of Class A of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window
opening in the western flank elevation shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and
have a fixed frame to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the
window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 70



This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

Plot of a now demolished detached house on the southern side of Alderton Hill. The junction with
Brook Road is nearby to the west. The property has an “in and out” driveway arrangement and has
railings and two sets of double gates along the front boundary. A mature tree, the subject of a
TPO, is set just behind the railings next to one of the pairs of gates.

This part of Alderton Hill is at the foot of the hill, not far from Loughton Brook to the west.
Nevertheless there is a noticeable slope to the surroundings to the site with ground levels falling to
the west, to the right hand side when viewing the front of the site, and rising to the east, to the left
hand side when viewing the front of the site. The rear garden of the application property falls to the
rear, to the south.

Description of Proposal:

Demolition of existing property and erection of a replacement dwelling.

The replacement house would be 20.8m wide across the front elevation leaving a space of 1.2m
from the side boundary with no. 23 and a space of 2.2m from the side boundary with no. 19. The
front elevation of the replacement house would have a centrally placed two-storey front bay 5m
wide by 1.6m deep. The two-storey bay would have a front gable with a height to the ridge of
8.2m. A segment shaped balcony would be set across the width of the front bay. This balcony
would be 1.8m deep at its centre and act as an open fronted and open sided porch at ground floor
level. Ornamental pillars would be set on the front corners of the front bay at ground floor level,
beneath the edges of the balcony. A Venetian style window would be set on the front bay at first
floor level, behind the balustrade of the front balcony. The replacement house would have a crown
roof with a maximum height of 9.3m and the front elevation would be some 5m to the eaves. Two
gable roofed dormers would be set on the front roof slope, one to either side of the front gable of
the centrally placed front bay. The front elevation would have a symmetrical design save for the
vehicular door of an integral double garage to the right hand side of the house when viewed from
the road.

External materials would essentially be of facing brickwork to the walls and a slate roof. Stone
quoins, lintels and cills would be used and windows would have white uPVC frames with the
elevational drawings suggesting that the windows would be of a vertical sash type. It is understood
that the relatively recent house at 25 Alderton Hill has informed the applicant’s choice of materials.

The front wall of the front bay would be set back some 14m from the carriageway edge of Alderton
Hill.

The two-storey form of the house, beneath the crown roof, would have a footprint 20.8m wide by
16.2m deep (excluding the front bay). A single storey rear projection 3.3m deep would be set
across the full width of the house. A rear balcony would occupy a width of 13m on the some 21m
wide flat roof of the rear projection. The rear balcony would be set centrally. One side of the
balcony would be some 5m from the boundary with no. 23, the other side of the balcony would be
some 5m from the side boundary with no. 19.

Four flat roofed dormers, each 1.6m wide by 1.6m tall, would be set across the rear roof slope.

Page 71



A single storey rear projection, 9m wide and 19.8m deep from the main body of the house, would
create an “L” shaped footprint to the house as a whole. This element of the house would
accommodate a swimming pool, 5m wide by 10m long, and a gym. A shower, changing room,
sauna and steam room would be set off the pool room. This part of the replacement house would
be set to the right hand side of the rear of the house when viewed from the rear garden and would
be set 0.4m from the eastern boundary, the boundary with 23 Alderton Hill. The flat roof of the
swimming pool rear projection would have a maximum height of 3.3m.

The replacement house would have six bedrooms, all with en-suite dressing rooms and bathroom
or shower-room.

Relevant History:

EPF/2682/15 - Demolition of existing property and erection of a replacement dwelling. — Allowed at
appeal 02/03/2016

EPF/0697/16 - Demolition of existing property and erection of a replacement dwelling. — Allowed at
appeal 24/08/2016

Policies Applied:

CP1 Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
CP2 Protecting the Quality of Rural and Built Environment
CP4 Energy Conservation

CP5 Sustainable Building

H3A Housing Density

DBE1 Design of New Buildings

DBE2 Affect on Neighbouring Properties

DBE3 Design in Urban Areas

DBEG6 Car parking in new development

DBES Private Amenity Space

DBE9 Loss of Amenity

LL7 Planting, Protection and Care of Trees

LL10 Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention
LL11 Landscaping Schemes

ST6 Vehicle Parking

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans
according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

SPG Essex Design Guide

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received

Number of neighbours consulted: 12
Site notice posted: No, not required

Responses received:
19 ALDERTON HILL — object — limited space to sides of proposed house would appear more of a

terracing effect, very little different from a previous proposal that was refused, the size of the
proposed property is excessive, overall depth would be excessive presenting a long and unsightly

Page 72



appearance from my property, balcony would be an incongruous feature and result in overlooking,
width and depth much greater than adjoining dwellings, re-planting should be undertaken, adverse
affect on adjoining properties, bulk of building when viewed from Alderton Hill would be too great.

16 ALDERTON HILL — object - over development, existing on going building has caused
disturbance, would give the impression of terracing along this road, may effect the amount of light
to our property, concerned about the amount of vegetation and mature trees that have been
removed from the site and worry that sufficient landscaping plans have not been given thought to.

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: The Committee OBJECTED to the application which was
considered an overdevelopment of the site, and overbearing in size and proportion on the
neighbouring properties. Members were also concerned by the removal of the greenery from the
site boundaries.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issue is whether the design differs materially from designs that were given planning
permission at appeal. Both designs that were the subject of appeals were considered by the Local
Planning Authority to be unacceptable due to an adverse impact to the occupiers of no. 19.

The Inspector commented that in the case of both appeal schemes the proposed development
would result in a building being closer to the shared boundary between No 21 and No 19 Alderton
Hill. Both previous schemes involved new built form 1.2m from the boundary with no. 19. In both
schemes the sides of a rear balcony would have been 5.4m from each side boundary. The only
difference between EPF/2682/15 and EPF/0697/16 is that in the later application a rear corner,
adjacent to no. 19, was subtracted by a sufficient amount such that a line drawn at 45 degrees
from a rear window of no. 19 did not cut across the proposed built form.

The scheme the subject of this report involves new built form 2.2m from the boundary with no. 19.
In all other respects the design is the same as that for planning permission EPF/0697/16.

The Inspector considered that neither of the developments the subject of the appeals would have
a detrimental effect on the living conditions of the occupiers of No 19 Alderton Hill. Consequently,
no conflict with Policy DBE9 of the Local Plan was found.

Conclusion:

In the light of an Inspector’s decision to grant planning permission for an almost identical design,
approval of the application is appropriate.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jonathan Doe
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 73



Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 4

Unauthorised reproduction infringes

Crown Copyright and may lead to Application Number: | EPF/2256/16
prosecution or civil proceedings. - - -
Site Name: Willow Park Farm, Millers Lane,
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Chigwell, IG7 6DG
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534
Scale of Plot: 1/5000
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail

Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 74



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2256/16
SITE ADDRESS: Willow Park Farm
Millers Lane
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 6DG
PARISH: Chigwell
WARD: Chigwell Row
APPLICANT: Mr Tariq Hussain
DESCRIPTION OF New single-family dwelling house
PROPOSAL.:
RECOMMENDED Refuse Permission
DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586813

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposal amounts to conspicuous and inappropriate development in the Green
Belt that would have an excessive adverse impact upon the openness of the Green
Belt for which appropriate special circumstances do not exist. The development is
therefore contrary to policies CP2, GB2A and GB7A of the adopted Local Plan, and
to the NPPF and National Planning Guidance.

2 The proposed development would have a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of the countryside in an area of local landscape significance for which
no special demonstration of need has been put forward. The proposed development
is therefore contrary to policies LL1 and LL2 of the adopted Local Plan and
Alterations and the NPPF

3 Notwithstanding the first two reasons for refusal, the proposed building and
associated development by reasons of its siting, bulk, mass and form would be a
prominent and intrusive development out of character with the pattern of form of
development in the area and detrimental the general amenity and the character of
the area, contrary to policies DBE1 and DBE4 of the adopted Local Plan and
Alterations and the NPPF.

4 Notwithstanding the first three reasons for refusal, the application is inadequate and
deficient in detail in respect of the extent of the residential curtilage of the dwelling
such that the Local Planning Authority is unable to fully satisfy itself that the
proposed curtilage and associated managed landscape would not further impact on
the open character of the landscape, contrary to policy GB4 of the adopted Local
Plan and the NPPF

Page 75



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586813

This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Knapman
(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application relates to an open field located on the north-east corner of the junction of Gravel
Lane and Millers Lane. Access to the site is currently from a gated entrance at the northern end of
the frontage to Gravel Lane and a single width track extends across the whole of the northern
edge of the land, which contains no buildings.

The site address in the application is given as Willow Park Farm, the main buildings of which lie on
the south east corner of the Gravel Lane / Millers Lane junction. There are no obvious visible
connections between the two sites.

The site and surroundings lie wholly within the Green Belt. Three dwellings lie along the road
frontage to the north and three immediately to the south fronting Millers Lane, otherwise the
surroundings comprise open fields.

Description of Proposal:

The application proposes a detached dwelling house located centrally to the western half of the
site. The building, in a mock Georgian style occupies three floors, the upper level in a mansard
style roof. A driveway from the existing vehicle access is proposed to a frontage that includes 6
parking spaces: the Design & Access Statement is contradictory on this issue as it refers to a
garage in the floor space figures but elsewhere refers to parking. It is noted that the building
matches design of previously approved dwellings on the main Willow Park Farm site to the south.

The application has been revised to resolve inconsistencies in the original submission. The
dwelling proposed would be intended to replace a dwelling approved under EPF/2862/15 which
relates to the replacement of the existing dwelling on the land to the south, but with a
10%reduction in footprint on the previously agreed scheme. The applicant has indicated that they
would enter a legal agreement to that effect.

Relevant History:

There are no previous applications identified specifically for the application site. Two dwellings on
the land to the south have been permitted — EPF/2862/15 was a renewal of a 2012 permission to
replace the existing dwelling and EPF/2864/14 replaces outbuildings to the rear (as previously
developed land)

Policies Applied:

CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
GB2A Development in the Green Belt
GB7A Conspicuous Development
GB15A Replacement dwellings

RP4 Contaminated land

RP5A Adverse environmental impacts
DBE1 Design of new buildings

DBE2 Effect on neighbouring buildings
DBE4 Design in the Green Belt

DBE9 Loss of Amenity

LL1 Rural landscape

LL2 Inappropriate rural development

Page 76



LL11 Landscaping schemes
ST6 Vehicle parking

NPPF The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national
policy since March 2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant
policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above
policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received

Number of neighbours consulted:  Four
Site notice posted: 15 September 16

Responses received:

One objection received from neighbour at THRIFT HOUSE to the north stating that the
development would be inappropriate to the area, would cause overlooking and loss of privacy, and
that the building would be overbearing and out of scale and character with the area.

CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL: Objection
“The proposed development would be thoroughly inappropriate in the Green Belt and there are no
special circumstances”

It should be noted that the Parish Council were not aware when they considered the application of
the proposal to surrender the earlier permission for the adjoining site and this was a primary
reason for the calling in of the application.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The application falls to be determined on the Green Belt issues. This site lies wholly in the Green
Belt and is agricultural land that has not previously been developed in any form. The construction
of any building on the site would evidently have an impact on openness and would be
conspicuous, notwithstanding the approval of the same design of building on the other site, in this
location proposed the building would be bulky and visually intrusive. Thus, the proposal is contrary
to Green Belt policy

The applicant has offered to surrender the existing planning permission for the rebuilding of the
existing dwelling on the land to the south. The building is designed in the same style as that
approved with the 10% reduction in footprint referred to above. The applicant has argued that this
should be considered as very special circumstances.

Officers consider that there are significant differences between the character of the two sites. The
previously approved building lies within the setting of existing buildings, notwithstanding the
permission that exists to replace some of these with a second dwelling. The proposal relates to
land that is evidently open in character and not previously developed. As such the significant harm
to the openness and the character of the Green Belt would not satisfy any special circumstances
test.

The site has also been identified as being a positive representation of the local landscape
character, while the application suggests the building can be screened, it appears too large for this
to be realistic and in any event the change to the identified character would have a significant
impact on its landscape function. The application also fails to identify a residential curtilage,
implying the whole of the site could be turned to curtilage garden with further impact on landscape
character.

Page 77



Representations from the neighbouring owner relating to direct impact on living conditions of Thrift
House would be difficult to support, particularly as the proposed building is some 45 metres from
the boundary.

Conclusion:

The Green Belt issues in this case appear to be clear and the proposal would represent
inappropriate development adversely affecting the Green Belt and the local landscape.

Officers have considered the proposal to provide this as a replacement for the previously approved
dwelling on the adjoining land but for the reasons set out regard this as falling substantially and
fundamentally short of constituting recognised special circumstances to justify such a harmful
development.

Accordingly, the application should be refused.

Way forward

For the avoidance of any doubt, the development is unacceptable in principle and Officers
consider there is no way forward.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: lan Ansell
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564481

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 78



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 79



Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 5

£ 7
>¢, SN
S 4

N AX

-,
s N N \
s {< 9 >{ .
i 7/
A
il ' 4
— - - /
A / \

Unauthorised reproduction infringes - -
i Application Number: | EPF/2445/16
osecution or civil proceedings - -
Site Name: Flat C, 66 Valley Hill, Loughton,
nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn IG10 3AT
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 80



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/2445/16
SITE ADDRESS: Flat C

66 Valley Hill

Loughton

Essex

IG10 3AT
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton Roding
APPLICANT: Mr Robin Minchin
DESCRIPTION OF Provision of studio flat in roof space, formation of car park to rear
PROPOSAL: and landscaping of front garden area.
RECOMMENDED Grant Permission (With Conditions)
DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587734

CONDITIONS

1

Within one month of the date of this permission, a scheme for the re-instatement of
the former front garden, the area between the entrance door serving flats B and C
and the footway with Valley Hill, shall be submitted in writing to the local planning
authority. Such scheme is to include details of the planting of a tree, ground surface
treatment and means of enclosure at the boundary with the highway. Within two
months of the date of written approval of such scheme the scheme is to be
implemented and retained as such.

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos:

Site location plan

Block plan

R.4.A. Revision B

Within one month of the date of this permission, a scheme for parking and
landscaping to the area to the rear of the flats, to the western side of The Meadway,
shall be submitted in writing to the local planning authority. Within two months of the
date of written approval of such scheme the scheme is to be implemented and
retained as such.

Within two months of the date of this planning permission, the Developer shall be
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council, to include five
one day travel vouchers for use with the relevant local public transport operator. The
Residential Travel Information Pack for sustainable transport, including vouchers,

Page 81



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587734

shall be delivered to all three flats within the building hereby granted planning
permission for a third flat within four months of the date of this planning permission.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application site comprises a two-storey building, made up of an original end of terrace house
with attached flats designed to appear as a single end of terrace house. The flats are a one-
bedroom flat on the ground floor, a one-bedroom flat on the first floor and a studio flat in the roof
space. The site is at a corner of Valley Hill with The Meadway.

The site has no listed building and is not in a conservation area.

Description of Proposal:

Provision of studio flat in roof space, formation of car park to rear and landscaping of front garden
area.

The studio flat has been created within the roof space of the flatted part of the building. It is
accessed via an entrance door in the front elevation that also provides access to the first floor flat.
The studio flat is essentially of an open plan arrangement with a food preparation and dining area
within a rear gable and a sleeping and sitting area taking up the remainder of the floor space. The
kitchen type area is illuminated by two roof lights on a north-eastern side roof slope and the
remainder of the floor space is illuminated by a window in a side facing gable.

The flat is in addition to the two flats approved under planning permission EPF/2384/10. The
development includes external changes to the building comprising the provision of a gable end to
the rear bay, two roof lights, a window in the side gable and an entrance door in the side elevation
to serve the previously approved ground floor flat. The entrance door to the upper flat has been
built in a recessed position thereby losing a sloping roof above the entrance door. The gable
ended front bay has been built wider than previously approved plans and the ridge back from the
apex of the gable end has been built level with the main roof ridge.

The application also proposes the formation of a 5 space car park in the rear of the site to serve all
three flats and the original house. The car park would be accessed via an existing vehicular
access off The Meadway. A hedge on the boundary with The Meadway would be retained as part
of landscaping proposals that would achieve the greening of the front garden area of the site and
its enclosure by a 0.9m picket fence.

Relevant History:

EPF/2384/10 Proposed 2 no. one bedroom maisonettes. — Granted 10/01/2011
ENF/0283/15 Investigation of alleged formation of flat in loft. Found breach of planning control

had taken place and developer requested to submit a planning application for the
flat.

Page 82



EPF/2597/15 Retrospective application for studio flat on second floor. — Refused 06/05/2016,
appeal withdrawn 04/10/2016 (parked cars dominating streetscene, inadequate
landscaping, failure to represent high quality design)

Policies Applied:

CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
CP7 Urban Form and Quality

H4A Dwelling Mix

DBE2 Effect on Neighbouring Properties
DBEG Car Parking in New Development
DBES Private Amenity Space

DBE9 Loss of Amenity

DBE11 Sub-Division of Properties

LL11 Landscaping Schemes

ST6 Vehicle Parking

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans
according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received

Number of neighbours consulted: 11
Site notice posted: No, not required

Responses received:

1 THE MEADWAY - object — garden area to flats remains an unsightly mess, parking has caused
problems, inconsiderate parking on The Meadway could block emergency vehicles and has
created a hazard to for parents and children walking to a primary school off The Meadway, there is
not enough amenities for three flats, the three proposed parking spaces does not belong to this
plot and a right of way would prevent implementation of the parking layout.

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: Objection

The Committee deplored this retrospective application. Members OBJECTED to this application,
which was considered an overdevelopment of the site. With reference to EPF/2597/15, members
remained concerned by the lack of parking provision and private amenity space, and questioned
whether there was now sufficient provision on these issues for the three flats. Members also
commented about the lack of windows in the built studio flat.

Noting the previous application EPF/2384/10 included a tree planting scheme, the Committee
expressed doubt whether the magnolia tree, shown on the current plan, would be planted on the
site.

ECC Highways — confirmed in writing no comment.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issue is whether the design adequately overcomes the reason for refusal to the previous
application, ref EPF/2597/15.

The reason for refusal to the previous design (the design as built) was:

Page 83



The studio flat has necessitated physical alterations from a previously approved design. The
alterations, in combination, have created a building and layout of an insufficient standard to
represent high quality design. The design for which planning permission is sought in this
application causes parked cars to visually dominate the streetscene and fails to provide adequate
landscaping. As such the design is contrary to Policies CP2 (iv), DBE6, DBE11 (i) and (iv) and
LL11 of the Local Plan and Alterations and the provisions of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

The alterations from the design granted planning permission, EPF/2384/10 are broadly described
above. The site is set in a suburban environment characterised by interwar housing, though with
varied built development around the wider setting, which has had various modifications. Given the
nature of the site and its setting it is considered that a refusal based solely on modifications made
from the design approved would not be supported at appeal.

The design has been significantly altered from that previously refused in that the front garden
would not to be used as a parking area. Since the site visit for the refused application this part of
the site has had a 0.9m height picket fence erected around it and a bed created that could be
planted up. Records show that a magnolia tree previously existed in the position contained by the
picket fence. Subject to a condition to require a replacement tree, as originally envisaged when
planning permission was granted for the two flats, it is considered that this aspect of the currently
proposed design would be acceptable.

The current design shows 5 car parking spaces for the occupiers of the house at no. 66 and the
three flats. The parking area would be largely hidden behind a privet hedge and use an existing
access to the highway. The plans approved for the house at no. 66 and the two flats showed 5 car
parking spaces though in a somewhat contrived arrangement that would have necessitated
another dropped kerb. The presently proposed arrangement is considered to have a more
acceptable arrangement and better integrates the development within the street scene.

In relation to the number of parking spaces proposed, that accords with adopted parking
standards. It is noted the site is in a reasonably sustainable location with the Local commercial
centre of Roding Road/Valley Hill some 400m away. Valley Hill is on a bus route. It is considered
that a refusal based on parking provision would not be sustainable.

The quality of accommodation proposed is referred to in consultation responses. The Town
Council’'s comments refer to numbers of windows for the studio flat. A neighbour refers to amenity
space provision. In relation to the Town Council’s comments, there is opportunity to provide
additional windows for the flat in the front and rear gables that may have an acceptable
appearance. This will be explored with the Applicant’s Agent prior to the meeting and addressed
verbally.

In order to meet the Council’s adopted parking standards there has been a significant reduction in
private amenity space for the flats and slight reduction for the original house compared to the
originally approved development. The usable space would be reduced from some 60m? for two
flats to approximately 40m? for three, whereas adopted amenity space standards require the
provision of 75m? for the flats. That shortfall is somewhat mitigated by easy access to good public
open space within 300m of the application site. In these circumstances it would be difficult to
defend a reason for refusal on the basis of insufficient amenity space provision.

On the above analysis it is concluded the quality of accommodation proposed is adequate with
some scope for improvement, which will be explored.

Page 84



Conclusion:

The principle reason for refusal to the previous application was the poor appearance of parking
accessing directly onto Valley Hill. It has been overcome in the current application. Other matters
including the overall provision of off street parking spaces and their manner of provision together
with the quality of accommodation have been assessed as adequate. Subject to a condition to
require landscaping, in the form of a magnolia tree to replace one previously at this position, the
three flats have no adverse impact of a degree sulfficient to justify refusal.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jonathan Doe
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 464103

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 85



@ Epping Forest District Council
‘ Agenda Item Number 6

tttttttttt
°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°°° ber: | EPF/1214/16

prosecution or civil proceedings. Site Name: 17 Algers Ro ught G1
ontains Ordnance Survey Data. 4ANG

Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: S 1/1250




Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1214/16

SITE ADDRESS:

17 Algers Road

Loughton

Essex

IG10 4NG
PARISH: Loughton
WARD: Loughton Forest
APPLICANT: Ms Valerie Martin

DESCRIPTION OF

Siting of a mobile home in rear garden for use as a "granny

PROPOSAL: annexe" - amended scheme deleting access from Algers Close
RECOMMENDED Grant Permission (With Conditions)
DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=584426

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The proposed development shall only be used as ancillary accommodation for the
existing dwellinghouse and shall not be occupied as a unit separately from the
dwelling known as 17 Algers Road, Loughton.

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally
permitted by virtue of Classes E and F of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal. In addition,
the development is of a type that cannot be determined by Officers if more than four objections
material to the planning merits of the proposal to be approved are received (Pursuant to The
Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Page 87



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=584426

Description of Site:

The application site comprises of a detached two storey dwelling house located on the south west
side of the road. The site occupies a significantly wider plot than others in the vicinity with a double
garage to the east side of the frontage. As a result the property has a substantial rear garden of
around 900 sg.m.

The site lies within a wholly residential area; properties on Algers Road are primarily two storey,
single dwellings. Much of the north western site boundary abuts properties in Algers Close which
comprise two storey purpose built flats, and the rear part of the flank adjoins a parking and turning
area within Algers Close.

Description of Proposal:

The application seeks consent for the installation of a mobile home on the rear most part of the
site for use by a dependant relative. The unit measures 12.8 metres in length, 4 metres in width
and 3.3 metres in height and is indicted as being sited east-west across the rear of the site. A
terrace is provided along the north and east sides of the building which is sited 6 metres from the
rear site boundary, 4.9 metres from the west side and 5.9 metres from the east side.

The application has been revised and all access to the unit is from the existing Algers Road
frontage.

Relevant History:

None

Policies Applied:

CP2 Quality of rural and built environment

DBE2 Effect on neighbouring properties

DBE9 Loss of amenity

DBE10 Residential extensions

ST6 Vehicle parking

NPPF The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national

policy since March 2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant
policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above
policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received

Number of neighbours consulted: 29
Site notice posted: No, not required

Responses received:

All neighbour responses have been received from residents of ALGERS CLOSE; individual
objections have been received from 10 properties (nos. 1, 7, 13, 14, 15, 18.19, 20, 23 and 24) and
a petition signed by owners and or occupiers of 17 of the properties in the Close. Residents were
re-consulted after the plans were amended. Objections raise the following issues:

- Noise and disturbance from use
- Visual impact of the building on immediate neighbours and on general character

Page 88



- Overlooking

- General parking issues in the area

- Loss of trees from the site (including general site maintenance works that had already been
undertaken including some removal of unprotected trees)

- Concern at possible future use — selling the site off, occupation by others etc.

- Siting — other locations within the site, including adjacent to the building, are more suitable

Comments were also made about the initial proposal to provide access to the site from Algers
Close but this has now been removed. Comments were also made in respect of matters of sewage
capacity and the impact on property values.

THE LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION PLANS GROUP has also objected arguing that
the proposed building is not a mobile home and concerned at the possible sub-division of the plot
(an issue in the way the original site plan was submitted). If Committee is minded to approve,
conditions relating to furture occupation and hours of work are suggested.

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: Objection

Loughton Town Council objected to the original application which was considered a garden
grabbing proposal contrary to National Planning Policies. Members were concerned by the
separate entrance proposed at the rear to facilitate access to the mobile home. There was also
concern for the loss of amenity to neighbours. If the Committee was minded to grant this
application the Committee requested a condition to ensure ancillary use of the mobile home with
the main dwelling only.

On re-consultation on the revised scheme, the Committee reiterated the previous comments
made.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The mobile home is a maximum of 3.3 metres high and is located a minimum of 4.9 metres from
any boundary. It is therefore significantly smaller than a garden building that could be constructed
as permitted development. Thus the scale of the building is not inappropriate in this location, nor
could it be argued that it has a significant physical impact on surrounding occupiers.

The application must be considered on the basis of the submitted information, that it is to be used
for occupation by a member of the applicant’s family and should thus be considered as a similar
‘granny annexe’ type building. In this regard, the character of the use and the level of activity and
potential for disturbance are considered to have a minimal impact on general amenity of
surrounding properties. The frontage of the building

It is evident that much local concern arose from the details submitted in the original application,
particularly around the inclusion of an access from Algers Close and the resultant nominal site
boundary that implied sub-division of the plot. Algers Close is a private road and the owners have
made it clear that they would not permit this to be used. As a result the application drawings have
been amended to remove any doubt on both issues.

There is a growing need for accommodation for dependant family members and there are no
specific policies which would preclude such accommodation, provided it can be safeguarded
against future changes to independent accommodation and sub-division. National planning policy
encourages in general terms a flexible approach to ensure accommodation is adaptable to meet
changing needs, and officers consider such facilities are consistent with this approach.

Page 89



Conclusion:

The application should be considered on the basis of the revised submission only and should not
be unduly affected by the initial suggestion of a separate access or concerns over future uses
which would need to be subject to further applications.

The principle of providing additional accommodation for dependant relatives is well established
and can be adequately controlled by condition. In all other regards, the building is well sited in
relation to surrounding properties, is smaller than an outbuilding that could be built under permitted
development and will not generate such activity as to cause undue disturbance.

The application is therefore recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: lan Ansell
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564481

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 90



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 91



Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 7

Car Park

+ 39.3m

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number:

EPF/2817/16

Site Name: Car park adjacent to Buckhurst Hill
Underground Station, Victoria Road,
Buckhurst Hill, IG9 5ES

Scale of Plot: 1/500

Page 92




Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/2817/16

SITE ADDRESS: Car park adjacent to Buckhurst Hill Underground Station
Victoria Road
Buckhurst Hill

Essex
IG9 5ES
PARISH: Buckhurst Hill
WARD: Buckhurst Hill West
APPLICANT: CTIL (Vodafone and Telefonica)
DESCRIPTION OF Prior notification application for a telecommunications installation
PROPOSAL: comprising of the erection of a 12.5m high Pandora Pole

supporting 3 no. shrouded antennas, the installation of 2 no.
equipment cabinets located within a compound at ground level and
associated development. To be located in the south east corner of
the car park 8m away from the station building.

RECOMMENDED Prior Approval Required and Granted
DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588778

This prior approval application for a telecommunications installation is before this Committee since
a decision needs to be arrived at in 55 days, and objections to the proposal may be received from
Buckhurst Hill Parish Council or from 3 or more neighbours.

Description of Site:

The site is a small area of fenced off land (belonging to Transport for London) that lies between
the side of the Buckhurst Hill underground station building and the commuter car park that serves
the station.

Description of Proposal:

Prior approval determination for a telecommunications installation consisting of the erection of a
12.5m Pandora street works pole with 3 no. shrouded antennas, together with two ground level
cabinets, to be located in an enclosed compound.

Policies Applied:

U5 - masts and aerials under 15m

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans
according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Page 93



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588778

Relevant History:

EPF/0401/11 was a refusal of prior approval for a 12.5m high pole with cabinets on a site near to
the station on the south west corner of Palmerston and Victoria Roads. It was refused on grounds
including its proximity to homes and adverse effect on residential amenity, and the impact of a
‘pavement’ installation on visual amenity in the street scene.

EPF/2649/15 was a refusal of a planning application to erect a 20m high pole with cabinets on a
site some 300m to the south of the station building - in the south west corner of the Queens Road
pay and display car park. It was refused on grounds including its height would make it conspicuous
in the outlook residents enjoyed from their nearby homes, and that it adjoined rear domestic
gardens and would therefore detract from residential amenity and security.

Summary of Representations:

At the time of writing this report only some 9 days of the 21 day consultation period has expired.
PARISH COUNCIL — comments not yet received — to be reported verbally at Committee.

76 neighbouring properties have been consulted and as yet no replies have been received. Any
replies received will be reported verbally at Committee

TRANSPORT FOR LONDON - | confirm that the applicants have been in contact with us and
subject to legal requirements being in place we have no objections to this proposal.

Issues and Considerations:

Telecommunication poles/columns up to 15m in height lie can be erected as permitted
development. However, mobile phone companies must first of all obtain prior approval from local
planning authorities (LPA’s) before being able to utilise this permitted development right, and
LPA’s can only consider issues of siting and appearance in their assessment of whether prior
approval should be granted or refused. Section 5 of the NPPF supports the development of high
quality communications infrastructure, and advises Local Planning Authorities to deal with
applications in a positive and constructive manner.

This proposed monopole installation would be shared by two mobile phone companies Telefonica
(02) and Vodaphone. The application is accompanied by various written submissions and one
section states that ‘coverage plots are submitted with this application and it can be seen that there
are (network) coverage holes. The site will provide much needed coverage and capacity to this
area of Buckhurst Hill where there are no other existing sites, or suitable buildings where there is a
willing landlord.’

In refusing the 2011 prior approval proposal at the corner of Palmerston Road and Victoria Road
planning officers suggested that a less problematic site could be the station car park to this
underground station. However the agents have stated that at that time TFL ‘did not work with’
telecommunications operators — but this position has now changed — and hence this new
application has been submitted.

The site comprises a small section of the car park and a slightly larger area of enclosed land also
in TFL’s ownership. Trees around the car park site provide some screening of the site from a
majority of dwellings in the neighbourhood. However 3 houses at 11, 13, and 15 Palmerston Road
do not have intervening screening trees - but the proposed pole would lie some 58m from the front
windows of these houses. At this distance the proposed pole, of a relatively modest height of
12.5m, will not cause a significant loss of outlook, and nearby trees on the railway embankment to

Page 94



the immediate east of the installation, together with the backcloth of the station building, will also
help to reduce the conspicuousness of the proposed pole. Furthermore the applicants have
agreed to paint the pole and cabinets dark green rather than steel grey and this too will help in
making the pole less strident in appearance. For these reasons the proposed pole will not unduly
detract from the visual amenity of residents living in the locality.

In terms of visual amenity in the street scene, or rather in the station forecourt, the pole structure
will have some detrimental impact. However the general appearance of the station car park and
surroundings is somewhat utilitarian in nature. In addition the ground level cabinets will be
screened from view by an existing front wall and in this respect the proposals will be an
improvement on other installations that are found in more open positions on the back edge of
street pavements.

Conclusions:

It is difficult to find an ideal site for a telecommunication pole and associated cabinets. The better
sites are those where trees and greenery provide some of screening or background, and where
installations are not close to windows of houses. This particular site goes some way to meeting
these general requirements, and given the need for these installations to improve personal and
business communications, and general Government support for them, it is recommended that prior
approval be granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qgov.uk

Page 95



Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Iltem Number 8

O O A
)|

LB an

Unauthorised reproduction infringes

Crown Copyright and may lead to Application Number: | EPF/2269/16

prosecution or civil proceedings. - -
Site Name: 16 Scotland Road, Buckhurst Hill,

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © IG9 5NR

Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:

100018534
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail

Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 96



Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/2269/16
SITE ADDRESS: 16 Scotland Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5NR
PARISH: Buckhurst Hill
WARD: Buckhurst Hill West
APPLICANT: Mr Vijay
DESCRIPTION OF Two storey rear extension (Revision to withdrawn application
PROPOSAL: EPF/0899/16)
RECOMMENDED Grant Permission (With Conditions)
DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586894

CONDITIONS

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window
openings in the flank elevations of the extension hereby approved and of the original
house shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height
of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall
be permanently retained in that condition.

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Page 97



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=586894

Description of Site:

The application site is a two storey semi-detached property with two storey flat roof side extension
located on the south side of Scotland Road within the built up area of Buckhurst Hill. Scotland
Road has a mix of detached and semi-detached properties of varying designs. The property
follows the same building line as those to the west but is set some 11m forward of the unattached
property at No. 14 Scotland Road. The site is not within the Green Belt or a Conservation Area.

Description of Proposal:

The application seeks consent for part single storey, part two storey rear extension. The single
storey element will have a maximum depth of 4.5m and have a slightly angled side wall to the east
due to the angled boundary. The first floor element will have a depth of 3m and width of 3.9m and
located centrally on the main house. The first floor element will have a pitched roof with the
remainder of the single storey element having a flat roof. The proposal also shows some new
windows — a Juliet balcony to the rear, and side facing ground and first floor windows.

Relevant History:

EPF/0899/16 — Two storey rear extension — Withdrawn

EPF/1087/15 - Proposed loft conversion with 1 x roof light on front roof slope. (Part of the loft
conversion previously approved under Ref. No. EPF/2949/14) — App/Con

EPF/1088/15 - Proposed loft conversion. (Part of the loft conversion previously approved under
Ref. No. EPF/2949/14) — Refused

EPF/1089/15 - Proposed loft conversion (Part of the loft conversion previously approved under
Ref. No. EPF/2949/14) — App/Con

EPF/1090/15 - Proposed loft conversion with rear dormer and juliet balcony, 3 x roof lights on front
roof slope, 1 x roof light on rear flat roof — Refused

EPF/2949/14 - Change roof form to extend pitched roof across to side. Flat roofed rear dormer
with Juliet style balcony. Two rooflights on front roof slope. Rooflight on side roof slope. Rooflight
on rear roof slope — App/Con

Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations

CP2 — Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE9 — Impact on Amenity

DBE10 — Design

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans
according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Summary of Representations:

BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL: Objection — Concerns over the first floor design. Out of
keeping with the rest of the building.

11 Neighbours consulted:

Page 98



14 SCOTLAND ROAD - Strong Objection concern from new side facing windows due to
overlooking, litter throwing, loss of security, trespassing

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with this proposal are considered to be impact on neighbours and design.
Neighbouring Amenity

The proposal results in a 4.5m deep single storey rear extension at the boundary with the attached
property (No. 18). Although relatively deep it is not dissimilar to other neighbouring extensions.
The roof height will be kept low at 2.9 and therefore this will mitigate against any excessive loss of
light or outlook. The first floor element is set in from the shared boundary with No. 18 by 2m and
respects the 45 degree rule in plan form from the nearest first floor window. In terms of light to the
ground floor window there may be some loss of light but given the relatively low height of the two
storey element and the 2m set in from the boundary again this is not considered so excessive to
justify a refusal.

With regards to the unattached neighbour at No. 14, the existing relationship between these two
properties is poor due to the set back from the road edge of No.14. The single storey element is
set in from the shared, angled boundary by a minimum of 0.5m and due to this angle will not be
prominently visible from No. 14 particularly given the existing fencing and low roof height. It is
unusual as this ‘rear’ extension will in part be to the front of No. 14 but this is alone is not
justification for refusal. The first floor element is set in from the shared boundary by a minimum of
1.9m to a maximum of 2.9 and this set in, coupled with the overall low height is again considered
to minimise any excessive impact on the amenity of No. 14 and does not exacerbate the existing
unusual situation.

The neighbour at No. 14 has particular concerns with regards to the side facing windows on the
existing gable. Planning permission is not required for the proposed windows provided any first
floor side facing windows are obscured glazed. The relationship between the two properties, as
stated above, is unusual and the concerns of the neighbour are noted, however the proposed
windows do not require planning permission in their own right. However, as they have been
shown on the proposed plans, for the avoidance of any doubt in the future, it is considered
reasonable to condition that all side facing windows on both the existing and the proposed
extension are obscured glazed to avoid any overlooking issues.

Design

The proposed design is considered acceptable. It follows a withdrawn design which was for a two
storey flat roof addition the full width of the main house. Although there is a two storey flat roof
side extension it was not considered appropriate to repeat this to the rear. The proposed
extension is subservient to the main house and although slightly unusual, as it results in a double
ridge, is considered to complement the existing property. In additional there is no uniformity to the
extensions to properties in Scotland Road.

The proposal will be partly visible from the streetscene due to the large set back of the
neighbouring property. However as the two storey element is set in from the side boundary it will
not result in any excessive increase in the size of the large flank wall.

Conclusion:

Page 99



The proposal is not considered to cause significant harm to the amenity of neighbours given the
modest height and set in from the boundaries and is considered an acceptable design therefore
approval with conditions.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564414

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 100



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 101



@ Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 9

0l Ml

L]
—'7

‘/ I oS i

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Application Number: EPF/2295/16

Crown Copyright and may lead to

prosecution or civil proceedings. Site Name: 33 Amberley Road, Buckhurst Hill,
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 1G9 5QW

Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:

100018534 Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail

Copyright & Database Right 2013

Page 102



Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2295/16

SITE ADDRESS: 33 Amberley Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
1G9 5QW
PARISH: Buckhurst Hill
WARD: Buckhurst Hill West
APPLICANT: Mr Paul Hiam
DESCRIPTION OF Single storey side extension.
PROPOSAL:
RECOMMENDED Grant Permission (With Conditions)
DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587095

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

3 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place

until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives
its written consent to any variation.

4 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

5 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning

Authority.

Page 103



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587095

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Planning Services — Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1,
Appendix A.(g))

Description of the Site:

A chalet bungalow with rooms in the roof space, located on irregular shaped but a generous
corner plot, at the junction of Russell Road and Amberley Road. Ground levels fall towards the
west and north of the site. As such, the existing building sits on lower ground levels. The site is
well screened from all the surround roads by a timber fence of about 1.8m high. The site is not in a
conservation area and the property is not listed.

Description of the Proposal:

Single storey side extension.
Details of Proposal:

- Depth: 5.57m

- Width: 3.5m

- Height: 5m

- Roof: Pitched with roof light to front and rear roof slope.

- Setin by: 1.66m from the front wall of the original house.

- Setin by: 2.3m from the rear wall of the original house.

- Set down by: 1m from the ridge of the original house.

- External materials/finish: White painted render & grey weather boarding.

- Due to site constraints, ground will be excavated to create a favourable level to sit the
extension —a condition will be required to remove excavated materials.

- Retaining wall is proposed with wider access around the development from the front to the
rear.

Site History
No relevant planning history.

Policies Applied

Local Plan Policies:

CP2 Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment;
DBE9 Loss of Amenity;
DBE10 Residential Extensions;

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since 27
March 2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to the relevant policies in
existing plans according to the degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are
broadly consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received

Number of neighbours consulted: 11
Site notice posted: No, not required

Responses received:

Page 104



Two responses were received from neighbours at 26 and 28 Amberley Road objecting to the
proposed development on the following grounds:

Objections from 26 AMBERLEY ROAD:

1. Unacceptably high density of the development.
2. Impact on adjacent trees; | would prefer TPO trees to remain.
3. Similar development was refused in December 2001.

Objections from 28 AMBERLEY ROAD;

| did not receive a notification letter from the Council but | am on neighbours list.
Overdevelopment of the site.

Unacceptable high density.

Impact on adjacent trees; the tree officer’s concerns should be dealt with.

PO~

BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL: Objection

Unacceptably high density and overdevelopment of the site.
Tree Officer's concerns shared.

Trees and Landscaping Team: No objection in principle subject to a tree related condition which
will be reflected on the decision notice in the event that the application was approved.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issues in this case are:

e Design.
e Living Conditions.
e Impact on Trees.

Design:

The design complements the character and appearance of existing building, particularly in
terms of scale, form and materials.

The extension has been set in from the front and rear wall, and also set down from the ridge of
the existing building. As such, it will not dominate the original house in terms of size and
height.

The design takes into account the changes in ground levels within the site. It has a substantial
setback from Amberley Road which, together with the screening effect of existing timber
fencing around the site boundaries, will ensure the proposal would have limited visibility from
any vantage point.

On the matter of design, it is concluded the proposed side extension will harmonise well with

the original appearance of the building itself and would not be detrimental to the character and
appearance of the street scene and general locality.

Page 105



Living Conditions:

The proposed side extension is positioned away from any neighbouring boundaries and it would
therefore not result in any harmful impact upon the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers.

Impact on Trees:

There are trees adjacent to the development, which are the subject of Tree Preservation Orders
(TPO). The Council’s tree and landscaping team was consulted on the application. It initially
commented that the submission did not include sufficient information regarding all the trees in the
vicinity of the development and requested the submitted tree report be updated to deal with those
matters. The requested information was subsequently submitted and assessed by the tree and
landscape officer who stated she has no objection to the approval of the proposed development in
principle. Notwithstanding the submission of additional information, the tree and landscape officer
requests a standard planning condition dealing with the protection of trees in the course of
construction.

Discussion of objection received:

Buckhurst Hill Parish Council objected to the proposed development primarily on the grounds that
it considers the proposal to result in an unacceptably high density of development amounting to an
overdevelopment of the site. The application site is a corner plot. Whilst this site is constrained by
significant changes in ground levels, there is sufficient land to the west which would be more than
enough to accommodate the proposed development without resulting in a cramped appearance.

In addition, number 33 Amberley Road on which the proposal relates is the only building on site.
This existing building is a bungalow that occupiers a footprint of 75.2m2. The proposed extension
would project from the site of the existing building into a rising land by way of some excavation
work. Retaining walls will be constructed and a path around the extension from the front to the rear
shall be created, ensuring circulation around it and site. The proposal would occupy a footprint of
about 20m?, which is considered proportionate in relation to the footprint of the existing building
and the size of the application site.

In light of these findings, there would be no way the proposed development could be said to have
resulted in unacceptable density or overdevelopment of this site. Indeed, it would make the best
use of that part of the site. The Local Planning Authority could therefore not refuse the application
on these grounds.

Objections were also received from the occupiers of neighbouring properties no.26 and 28
Amberley Road. However, these objections have generally been covered in the body of this report.

Conclusion:

The proposal represents a simple and well designed single storey side extension that would sit
comfortably within this corner plot without harming the character and appearance of the locality. In
addition, the design approach makes the best use of the existing site levels to screen the
development. Furthermore, circulation around the development and the site in generally is taken
into account which will ensure no cramped appearance would result from this scheme. Therefore,
having taken all the material considerations into account, including the objections received from
the Parish Council and neighbours, it is concluded the proposal is acceptable. Accordingly, it is
recommended that planning permission be granted.

Page 106



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Moses Ekole
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564109

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 107



@ Epping Forest District Council
S Agenda Item Number 10

Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown Copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. ©
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: | EPF/2406/16

Site Name: 131 Queens Road, Buckhurst Hill,
IG9 5BH

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 108




Report Item No: 10

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2406/16

SITE ADDRESS: 131 Queens Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
1G9 5BH
PARISH: Buckhurst Hill
WARD: Buckhurst Hill West
APPLICANT: Mr Mark Sathyaseelan

DESCRIPTION OF

Rear extension, of a single storey, with a floor level set some 0.7m

PROPOSAL.: lower than the floor level of the lower ground floor; with a floor level
3.5m lower than natural ground level. Sunken courtyard to side of
proposed extension with steps up to rear garden.

RECOMMENDED Grant Permission (With Conditions)

DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587594

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

3 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning

Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Page 109



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587594

Description of Site:

The application property is a detached house on northern side of Queens Road. Itis set 1m from
the site boundary with 129 A Queens Road, three-storey house set at slightly lower ground level.
The western flank of the house is set on the boundary with 133 Queens Road. The house at no
133 projects 1.2m beyond the adjacent rear elevation of the house at the application site and is set
at slightly higher ground level.

The existing rear elevation consists of a lower ground floor, ground floor and first floor then side
gable roof. There is a rear projection adjacent to the boundary with 129A Queens Road. It is set
approximately 1m from the common boundary. Off the lower ground floor, between the rear
projection and boundary with 133 Queens Road, is a small courtyard set below natural ground
level. The courtyard is some 1.8m in depth. Steps lead up from the courtyard to the garden. The
courtyard is accessed from the house by a door at lower ground floor level. A door at first floor
level has steps leading directly down to the garden.

The application property is not listed nor in a Conservation Area.

Description of Proposal:

Rear extension, of a single storey, with a floor level set some 0.7m lower than the floor level of the
lower ground floor; with a floor level 3.5m lower than natural ground level. Sunken courtyard to
side of proposed extension with steps up to rear garden.

The proposal is essentially for a basement with a side access to an enlarged open courtyard. A
replacement side boundary wall and two balustrades would be the only elements that would be
above natural ground level.

The open courtyard would have open steps up to the rear garden. A glass balustrade would be set
around one side and the rearmost edge of the open courtyard. The side of the open courtyard on
the boundary with no. 133 would be a retaining wall continued up 1.2m in height above natural
ground level.

The property as existing has a sunken courtyard next to the boundary with no. 133 measuring
4.2m wide (including the steps) by 1.8m long back into the rear garden . The sunken courtyard as
proposed would be 2.2m wide by 7.4m long into the rear garden.

The basement would have a side elevation onto the open courtyard. This elevation would consist
for the greatest part of full-height glazed sliding doors. Another extensive glazed area would be set
on the rear elevation of the existing footprint of the lower ground floor and this would face onto the
sunken courtyard.

The lower ground floor of the house as existing is set 2.75m below natural ground level. The floor
of the proposed basement would be set another 0.7m lower, at 3.5m below natural ground level.

The rear extension/basement would be 7.5m wide by 7.4m long into the rear garden.

The sunken courtyard as proposed and rear extension/basement would take up the full width of
the house.

Relevant History:

EPF/1419/16 Rear extension at lower ground floor level with excavated area for lower ground
floor courtyard. Rear extension at ground floor level with full-height glazed section to
side and rear sliding doors. — Refused 22/07/2016

Page 110



EPF/2321/16 Extension of lower ground courtyard. Extension of ground floor with new rear sliding
doors and new brickwork to match existing stock. — Undetermined, recommended
for approval on this agenda.

Policies Applied:

CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
DBE10 Residential Extensions

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans
according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received

Number of neighbours consulted. 21
Site notice posted: No, not required

Responses received: No response received from neighbours.

BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL: OBJECTION.

Over-bearing in character and appearance to Neighbours. Unacceptably high density. Visual
impact of the building, particularly at the rear. Adverse effect on the residential amenity of

neighbours, by reason of overlooking and loss of privacy.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issue with this application is considered to be whether any adverse impact would result
to any neighbour.

Although the proposal involves extensive glazing on a side elevation to a rear extension, this rear
extension would be below ground. The extensive glazing would look onto a retaining wall to the
sunken courtyard.

The design the subject of this application has something of a similarity with the non-contentious
par of a proposal previously refused, application ref EPF/1419/16.

This proposal effectively relates to the below ground level works only. Since they would be below
adjacent ground level, there is no possibility of them causing any harm to the living conditions of
neighbouring houses. Those elements above ground level — a 1.2m high above ground projection
of a retaining wall and glazed balustrades — would also have no adverse impact on the living
conditions of neighbouring houses.

Having regard to the objections raised by the Parish Council, they appear to be more relevant to
application EPF/2321/16 for a ground floor addition. That application is assessed elsewhere on
this agenda. Of the objections raised, that relating to density, which is equivalent to scale of
development at the site, is relevant. In this case the house to be enlarged is a large structure.
Furthermore, the size of the rear garden at just under 11m wide and over 30m in length is also
considerable. Having regard to that context it is considered that the proposed below ground level
rear addition would not amount to a disproportionate enlargement of the house and would not

Page 111



amount to a quantum of built form on the site that is inconsistent with the prevailing pattern of
development.

Conclusion:

As a below ground level structure, the proposal would not result in any harm to the living
conditions of neighbours. Moreover, the proposal would not result in a disproportionate
enlargement of the house or amount to development that does not respect the character of the
locality. On that basis it is concluded the proposal complies with relevant planning policy and it is
recommended that planning permission be granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jonathan Doe
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 112



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 113



@ Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 11

Unauthorised reproduction infringes

ight and may lead to Application Number: | EPF/2321/16
oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo Site Name: 131 Queens Road, Buckhurst Hill,
nce Survey Data. © 1G9 5BH

nnnnnnnnn
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No:

Scale érAge 114 1/1250




Report Item No: 11

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2321/16

SITE ADDRESS: 131 Queens Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
1G9 5BH
PARISH: Buckhurst Hill
WARD: Buckhurst Hill West
APPLICANT: Mr Mark Sathyaseelan

DESCRIPTION OF

Extension of lower ground courtyard. Extension of ground floor with

PROPOSAL: new rear sliding doors and new brickwork to match existing stock.
RECOMMENDED Grant Permission (With Conditions)
DECISION:

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587213

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Brickwork of external walls of the proposed development shall match that of the
existing house, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

3 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window
opening in the rear elevation to the cloakroom shall be entirely fitted with obscured
glass and have a fixed frame to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in
which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no window or other opening
shall be created to either flank of the rear extension hereby permitted at ground floor
level without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

5 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning

Authority.

Page 115



http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=587213

6 Access to the flat roof over the extension hereby approved shall be for maintenance
or emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a seating area,
roof garden, terrace, patio or similar amenity area.

7 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application property is a detached house on northern side of Queens Road. Itis set 1m from
the site boundary with 129 A Queens Road, three-storey house set at slightly lower ground level.
The western flank of the house is set on the boundary with 133 Queens Road. The house at no
133 projects 1.2m beyond the adjacent rear elevation of the house at the application site and is set
at slightly higher ground level.

The existing rear elevation consists of a lower ground floor, ground floor and first floor then side
gable roof. There is a rear projection adjacent to the boundary with 129A Queens Road. It is set
approximately 1m from the common boundary. Off the lower ground floor, between the rear
projection and boundary with 133 Queens Road, is a small courtyard set below natural ground
level. The courtyard is some 1.8m in depth. Steps lead up from the courtyard to the garden. The
courtyard is accessed from the house by a door at lower ground floor level. A door at first floor
level has steps leading directly down to the garden.

The application property is not listed nor in a Conservation Area.

Description of Proposal:

It is proposed to enlarge the existing lower ground courtyard and construct a single-storey rear
extension to enlarge the ground floor of the house. This application proposal is designed to
overcome the reasons for refusal of application reference EPF/1419/1.

The extended courtyard would be set 0.5m deeper into the ground, infilling the area between the
existing rear projection and boundary with 133 Queens Road at lower ground floor. Adjacent to
that boundary a replacement flight of steps leading up to the garden would be constructed beyond
the rear of the courtyard. The courtyard and steps would be contained by a retaining wall on the
boundary with 133 that would project 1.2m above the ground level at 133.

The proposed rear extension would wrap around the rear and side of the existing rear projection,
oversailing half the width of the proposed lower ground floor courtyard. The extension would have
a flat roof enclosed by a parapet that would be 3.4m above adjacent natural ground level. The
roof would be a sedum green roof surface and contain two roof lights. The extension would project
some 3.5m beyond the rear wall of the existing rear projection. It would project 6.8m from the

Page 116



recessed rear wall of the house and be set 2.5m from the common boundary with 133 Queens
Road. Patio doors would be provided in the rear elevation and external materials would match
those of the existing house. No windows would be in the flank walls.

Nearly all of the rear elevation of the rear extension would be taken up by full-height glazed double
doors. The current proposal differs from the previous application in that both side elevations to the
rear extension would be solid, without glazing, being wholly of matching brickwork. The previous
proposal that was refused included a substantial amount of glazing on the side elevation facing no.
133 Queens Road.

Relevant History:

EPF/1419/16 Rear extension at lower ground floor level with excavated area for lower ground
floor courtyard. Rear extension at ground floor level with full-height glazed section to
side and rear sliding doors. — Refused 22/07/2016

1. The proposals, by reasons of the position and relative height to natural ground
level of the glazing on the western elevation of the ground floor rear extension
and of the proximity to the boundary and relative height to natural ground level
of the roof at the side of the lower ground floor rear extension, would result in
overlooking of the property at 133 Queens Road to an extent that would be
materially detriment to the residential amenity of the occupiers of the property.
As such the proposals would be contrary to Policy DBE9 of the Local Plan and
Alterations and the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework
requiring high quality design.

2. By reason of a combination of the overall height of the proposed extension, its
siting adjacent to the boundary with 129A Queens Road, the fact that the
application site is at higher level than 129A Queens Road together with the
distance the ground floor of the proposal would project adjacent to the
boundary with 129A Queens Road, the development is likely to appear
excessively overbearing when seen from the rear garden of 129A Queens
Road. As a consequence, the proposed development would cause significant
harm to the living conditions of 129A Queens Road, contrary to Local Plan and
alterations policy DBE9, which is consistent with the National Planning Policy
Framework.

EPF/2406/16 Rear extension, of a single storey, with a floor level set some 0.7m lower than the
floor level of the lower ground floor; with a floor level 3.5m lower than natural ground
level. Sunken courtyard to side of proposed extension with steps up to rear garden.
— Pending decision, reported elsewhere on this agenda.

Policies Applied:

CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
DBE10 Residential Extensions

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans
according to their degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received

Page 117



Number of neighbours consulted. 21
Site notice posted: No, not required

Responses received: No response received from neighbours.

BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL: OBJECTION.

Over-bearing in character and appearance to Neighbours. Unacceptably high density. Visual
impact of the building, particularly at the rear. Adverse effect on the residential amenity of

neighbours, by reason of overlooking and loss of privacy.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issue is whether the current application is to a design which sufficiently overcomes the
previous proposal’s two reasons for refusal: loss of privacy to 133 and overbearing nature to 129A.
The proposals relate to the rear of the house and would not be seen from the public realm.

The current application differs from that previously refused principally by the deletion of glazing on
a side elevation facing no. 133 Queens Road. Subject to a condition that no glazing be added at a
later date without details being submitted, the proposal is now considered acceptable with regard
to the living conditions of no. 133 since there would be no possibility of it giving rise to excessive
overlooking of that neighbour. The previously refused extension would not have resulted in any
excessive loss of privacy for 129A Queens Road and that remains the situation for the current
proposal since the only windows proposed are in the rear elevation of the proposed extension.

The extension would be to the northern elevation. The existing built form of the house creates a
shadow to neighbours. It is considered that the proposed extensions would make no material
difference to existing overshadowing that could reasonably form a reason for refusal.

In relation to no. 133 Queens Road, the rear extension would be set 4m from the nearest flank of
no 133, placing it outside of a 45 degree line taken from the nearest edge of the adjacent rear
window at no. 133. As a consequence, the extension would not only have no impact on light, it
would also not have any harmful impact on outlook from no. 133.

In relation to no. 129A Queens Road, the depth of the proposed rear extension has been reduced
such that it would project 0.55m less than the depth of an existing rear extension to 129A. The
reduction in depth in relation to no. 129A, together with the fact that it would be set 1m from the
common boundary and approximately 1.8m from the flank of 129A, is sufficient to ensure the
proposal will not appear overbearing when seen from the rear garden of 129A Queens Road.
Moreover, no harm to outlook would arise and, as indicated above, there would be no impact on
light.

In addition to raising concerns about the potential impact of the proposal on light, outlook and
privacy, which are considered above, the Parish Council raises concern about the scale of the
development and its impact on the appearance of the building. These matters, although not part
of the reasons for refusal of application EPF/1419/16, are considered below.

In relation to scale, having regard to the large size of the existing house and the size of the rear
garden (just under 11m wide and over 30m in length), it is considered the proposed single-storey
extension would be a proportionate enlargement of the existing house that would respect the
character of the locality. That conclusion is reinforced by the finding that the proposal would
safeguard the living conditions of neighbours. In relation to design, the proposal would be of
simple form that would not dominate the rear elevation. Such designs are not uncommon and it is
concluded the proposal, which it to the rear elevation of a house, would complement the
appearance of the existing house.

Page 118



Conclusion:

This amended design, with glazing to the side elevation deleted and a reduction in depth to
rearward projection, successfully overcomes the reasons for refusing application EPF/1419/16.
The proposal safeguards the living conditions of neighbours and is a proportionate enlargement of
the existing house that complements its appearance. It therefore complies with relevant planning
policy and it is recommended that planning permission be granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jonathan Doe
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 8

€

Epping Forest
District Council

Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee

Date of meeting: Plans South — 23" November 2016
Subject: Probity in Planning — Appeal Decisions, 15t April 2016 to 30 September 2016
Officer contact for further information: Nigel Richardson (01992 564110)

Democratic Services Officer: Jackie Leither (01992 564243)

Recommendation:

That the Planning Appeal Decisions be noted.

Report Detail:
Background

1. (Director of Governance) In compliance with the recommendation of the District Auditor, this
report advises the decision-making committees of the results of all successful allowed appeals
(i.e. particularly those refused by committee contrary to officer recommendation).

2. The purpose is to inform the committee of the consequences of their decisions in this respect
and, in cases where the refusal is found to be unsupportable on planning grounds, an award of
costs may be made against the Council.

3. Since 2011/12, there have been two local indicators, one of which measures all planning
application type appeals as a result of committee reversals of officer recommendations (GOV08)
and the other which measures the performance of officer recommendations and delegated
decisions (GOVO07).

Performance

4. Over the six-month period between 1 March 2016 and 30 September 2016, the Council
received 49 decisions on appeals (48 of which were planning related appeals, the other 1 was
enforcement related).

5. GOVO07 and 08 measure planning application decisions and out of a total of 48, 18 were
allowed (37.5%). Broken down further, GOVO07 performance was 8 out of 32 allowed (25%) and
GOVO08 performance was 10 out of 16 (62.5%).

Planning Appeals

Page 121



6. Out of the planning appeals that arose from decisions of the committees to refuse contrary to
the recommendation put to them by officers during the 6-month period, the Council was not
successful in sustaining the committee’s objection in the following cases:

COMMITTEE - APPEALS ALLOWED:

Area Committee South

Buckhurst Hill

EPF/1812/15 Proposed demolition of existing building and
construction of a replacement building providing
13 flats

Chigwell

EPF/1279/15 Proposed two storey new build house (Revision
to EPF/1505/14)

EPF/3207/15 Provision of front basement extension part
completed.

Loughton

EPF/2418/15 Demoilition of existing bungalow and erection of

2 no. 3 bed dwellings.

EPF/2983/15 Demolish garage and replace with two-storey
side extension. Attached replacement garage
with granny flat above. Front dormers. Ground
floor and two-storey rear extension.
Accommodation within roof space.

EPF/2580/15 Prior notification for a telecommunications
installation comprising the erection of 13.5m high
dual stack monopole supporting 6 no shrouded
antennas, a 0.3m dish,2 no. equipment
cabinets and ancillary development (Revised
proposal to previously refused EPF/0386/11 - it
is now not proposed to erect the installation on
the pavement - it is now proposed 6.5m to the
rear of the pavement in a grassland area).

Area Committee East

Epping

EPF/1399/15 Conversion of existing annexe to separate
dwelling, provision of car port, front canopy and
rear decking.

EPF/2163/15 Erection of 18 dwellings, including access,
parking, amenity and landscaping.

Lambourne

EPF/0300/14 Retrospective application for replacement

dwelling incorporating further revisions to
roof and dormers and provision of

Page 122

West Lodge
32 Palmerston Road

26 Meadow Way

170 Manor Road

21 Priory Road

24 Alderton Hill

Land close to junction of
Westall Road and
Burney Drive

15 Bell Common

Allotments rear of 8
to 22 Institute Road
Coopersale

Great Downs Farm
London Road
Abridge



landscaping. (Amended from EPF/2414/09 and
EPF/1737/11)

North Weald Bassett

EPF/0183/15 Erection of three storey building to accommodate North Weald Golf Club
20 no. apartments (to replace existing clubhouse Rayley Lane
and Essex barn to be demolished under Prior
Notification application EPF/0267/15)

Area Committee West

None

7. The appeal performance for GOV08, committee reversals, was outside of target at 62.5%. It
is of course understood that these are the more contentious planning applications but the
committees are urged to continue to heed the advice that if they are considering setting aside the
officer’'s recommendation, it should only be in cases where members are certain they are acting
in the wider public interest and where the committee officer can give a good indication of some
success at defending the decision. The 6 cases where the committees were successful are as
follows:

COMMITTEE - APPEALS DISMISSED:

Area Committee East

Epping

EPF/1783/15 Demolish existing dwelling, erection of two 16 Kendal Avenue
storey structure with rooms within roof space
providing 4 no. self contained two bedroomed
flats. Removal of Cypress tree.

EPF/2484/15 Demolition of existing two storey dwellinghouse 33 Chapel Road
and garage, the construction of a new two
storey residential building with loft and
basement accommodation containing 3x1 bed and
4x2 bed apartments, with associated car, bicycle
parking and refuse facilities.

EPF/3024/15 Demolition of a two storey extension and 9 Church Hill
conservatory on the rear elevation of Dane
Lodge and its conversion into three apartments,
the demoilition and replacement of the rear
outbuildings to provide one apartment and the
erection of a new detached two storey building
providing two mews houses, together with the
provision of associated on-site covered parking
and a bin store.

North Weald Bassett

EPF/1737/15 Proposed 1 no. 2 bed flat and 1 no. 1 bed flat in 94 - 96 High Road
existing roof of the property and front, rear and
side dormer and raised ridge height level to rear
roof.

Page 123



Area Committee South

Loughton

EPF/1973/15 Demolition of existing house and construction of 51 High Road
eight residential flats with associated car parking
spaces, amenity space and refuse collection area.

EPF/2111/15 Subdivision of site and proposed 1 no. 1 bed 257 Chester Road

dwellinghouse with parking and garden area.

Area Committee West

None

8. Out of 1 ENFORCEMENT NOTICE APPEAL decided, 1 was allowed. This is as follows:

ENF/0249/14 Without planning permission the change of The Outlook
use of stables to a building used as a single Moreton Bridge
residential dwelling Moreton

COSTS

9. There was no award of costs against the Council for unreasonable behaviour in the reasons
for refusal in this 6 month period.

10. National Planning Practice Guidance on Award of Costs advises that, irrespective of the
outcome of the appeal, costs may only be awarded against a party in the following two
circumstances:

- a party has behaved unreasonably; and

- the unreasonable behaviour has directly caused another party to incur
unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal process.

Conclusions

11. Whilst performance in defending appeals at 37.5% appears high, there is no national
comparison of authority performance. Members and Officers are reminded that in refusing
planning permission there needs to be justified reasons that in each case must be not only
relevant and necessary, but also sound and defendable so as to avoid paying costs. Whilst there
is clearly pressure on Members to refuse in cases where there are objections from local
residents, these views (and only when they are related to the planning issues of the case) are
one of a number of relevant issues to balance out in order to understand the merits of the
particular development being applied for.

12. Finally, appended to this report are the appeal decision letters relevant to each Plans sub-
committee area, which are the result of Members decision at planning committees.
13. A full list of appeal decisions over this six month period appears below.

Total Planning Application Appeal Decisions 1t April 2016 to 30" September 2016

Allowed With Conditions

Page 124



Buckhurst Hill
1 EPF/1812/15

2 EPF/1348/15

Chigwell
3 EPF/3207/15

4 EPF/1279/15

Epping
5 EPF/2163/15

6 EPF/1399/15

Lambourne
7 EPF/0300/14

Loughton
8 EPF/2442/15

9 EPF/2580/15

10 EPF/0194/16

Proposed demolition of existing building and
construction of a replacement building providing
13 flats

West Lodge
32 Palmerston Road

Demolition of the existing outbuildings to the 158 Queens Road
rear of 158 Queens Road. Erection of two part 2

and part 3 storey buildings at the rear containing 4

flats. Ground floor rear extension of the retail units

proposed. First floor part rear extension proposed.

New gable roof proposed with 3 dormer windows in

connection with conversion of floors above shop to

2 flats. (Revised application to EPF/1684/13)

Provision of front basement extension part 170 Manor Road

completed.

Proposed two storey new build house (Revision
to EPF/1505/14)

26 Meadow Way

Allotments rear of 8
to 22 Institute Road
Coopersale

Erection of 18 dwellings, including access,
parking, amenity and landscaping.

Conversion of existing annexe to separate 15 Bell Common
dwelling, provision of car port, front canopy and

rear decking.

Great Downs Farm
London Road
Abridge

Retrospective application for replacement
dwelling incorporating further revisions to

roof and dormers and provision of
landscaping. (Amended from EPF/2414/09 and
EPF/1737/11)

Single storey front extension and new external 62 Queens Road

front steps.

Prior notification for a telecommunications
installation comprising the erection of 13.5m high
dual stack monopole supporting 6 no shrouded
antennas, a 0.3m dish,2 no. equipment

cabinets and ancillary development (Revised
proposal to previously refused EPF/0386/11 - it
is now not proposed to erect the installation on
the pavement - it is now proposed 6.5m to the
rear of the pavement in a grassland area).

Westall Road and
Burney Drive

Two storey rear extension with balcony, 71 Queens Road
balustrades and 2m high privacy screens on

either side of the balcony area. Relocation of

Page 125

Land close to junction of



11 EPF/2983/15

12 EPF/2682/15

13 EPF/2418/15

14 EPF/0697/16

Nazeing
15 EPF/0437/16

16 EPF/1060/13

existing external steps and landing area to
provide egress and access to the garden.

Demolish garage and replace with two-storey
side extension. Attached replacement garage
with granny flat above. Front dormers. Ground
floor and two-storey rear extension.
Accommodation within roof space.

Demolition of existing property and erection of
a replacement dwelling.

Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of
2 no. 3 bed dwellings.

Demolition of existing property and erection of
a replacement dwelling.

Raise ridge height to bungalow and provide loft
extension

Change of use of land for stationing of
caravans for occupation by Gypsy/Traveller
families with ancillary works (demolish two
rows of glasshouses, fencing, portacabin
amenity blocks, hardstanding and septic tank).
Part Retrospective.

North Weald Bassett

17 EPF/0183/15

Waltham Abbey
18 EPF/2021/15
Dismissed

Chigwell
19 EPF/0957/16

20 EPF/1621/15

Erection of three storey building to accommodate
20 no. apartments (to replace existing clubhouse
and Essex barn to be demolished under Prior
Notification application EPF/0267/15) Appeal
Lodged 21/9/15

Double storey side and single storey rear
extension.

Two storey side extension

Use of double garage as a dwelling house, and

carrying out associated external alterations

Epping
21 EPF/1783/15

Demolish existing dwelling, erection of two
storey structure with rooms within roof space
providing 4 no. self contained two bedroomed
flats. Removal of Cypress tree.

Page 126

24 Alderton Hill

21 Alderton Hill

21 Priory Road

21 Alderton Hill

2 Middle Street

Sedgegate Nursery
Sedge Green

North Weald Golf Club
Rayley Lane

20 Halfhides

11 Ely Place
Land adjacent to 26

Maypole Drive
Chigwell Row

16 Kendal Avenue



22 EPF/2484/15

23 EPF/0109/16

24 EPF/3024/15

Fyfield
25 EPF/2154/15

High Ongar
26 EPF/3026/15

Loughton
27 EPF/0181/16

28 EPF/3245/15

29 EPF/2706/15

30 EPF/2255/15

31 EPF/2855/15

32 EPF/0866/15

33 EPF/1973/15

Demoilition of existing two storey dwellinghouse
and garage, the construction of a new two
storey residential building with loft and

basement accommodation containing 3x1 bed and

4x2 bed apartments, with associated car, bicycle
parking and refuse facilities.

Single storey front extension.

Demolition of a two storey extension and
conservatory on the rear elevation of Dane
Lodge and its conversion into three apartments,
the demolition and replacement of the rear
outbuildings to provide one apartment and the
erection of a new detached two storey building
providing two mews houses, together with the
provision of associated on-site covered parking
and a bin store.

Proposed first floor side extension. Two storey
rear extension with first floor balcony. Loft
conversion including dormers to rear. Enlarged
patio area to rear.Two storey bay windows to
front elevation. Two vehicle standing areas.

Formation of a second vehicular entrance to the
property

Retrospective application for two storey side
extension, loft conversion, including rear
dormer, porch and single storey rear extension.

First floor rear extension.

Two storey side extension.

Change of use of the premises 6a Valley Hill
from use as shop premises (Use Class A1) to
use as a hot food takeaway (Use Class A5).
Demolition of existing bungalow and erection
of two detached bungalow-style townhouses,

with integral garages.

Two detached two storey cottage properties,
with garages at basement level.

Demolition of existing house and construction of
eight residential flats with associated car parking

spaces, amenity space and refuse collection area.

Page 127

33 Chapel Road

100 Hemnall Street

9 Church Hill

Blakeney
Clatterford End

Harley Cottage
202 Nine Ashes Road

7 Colebrook Lane

26 The Crescent

47 Deepdene Road

6A Valley Hill

54 Ollards Grove

54 Ollards Grove

51 High Road



34 EPF/2990/15 Retention of existing annex as separate 56 Oakwood Hill

dwelling.

35 EPF/2111/15  Subdivision of site and proposed 1 no. 1 bed 257 Chester Road
dwellinghouse with parking and garden area.

Nazeing

36 EPF/3158/15 Extensions to and conversion of double garage Nonsuch Cottage
to form a two bedroomed self-contained Back Lane
granny annexe to Nonsuch Cottage

37 EPF/2015/15  Conversion of existing bungalow into 2 no. 2 Middle Street

detached dwellings. Small frontal extension and
partial demolition to achieve separation. Raise
ridge height and erect front dormer windows.

North Weald Bassett

38 EPF/1737/15 Proposed 1 no. 2 bed flat and 1 no. 1 bed flat in 94 - 96 High Road
existing roof of the property and front, rear and
side dormer and raised ridge height level to rear

roof.
39 EPF/2218/15 Retention of workshops and storage units in Chase Farm
buildings 15 & 16 Vicarage Lane
Ongar
40 EPF/1628/15  Single storey rear extension. Orchard Cottage

Greensted Hall
Church Lane

41 EPF/1721/15  Grade II* listed building application for a single Orchard Cottage
storey rear extension. Greensted Hall
Church Lane

Roydon

42 EPF/3215/15 To replace the front garden fencing around Grade Brick Lock Cottage
Il listed building, with the same height and
length of fencing as the existing, but with an
altered design and materials.

Stanford Rivers

43 EPF/2737/15 Detached dwelling 153 London Road

Theydon Mount

44 EPF/0949/16  Retention of raised patio with addition of 6 Hill Hall Cottages
natural screening Mount Road

Waltham Abbey

45 EPF/3230/15 The extension and conversion of an existing North Villa

dwelling to create two dwellings. The erection of  Mott Street
a new dwelling, creating three dwellings in total

46 EPF/3032/15 Proposed 3 bedroom bungalow in the rear garden Rear garden of 16 Pick
of 16 Pick Hill. Hill

Page 128



Waltham Abbey

47 EPF/2512/15  Application for approval of details reserved by Bantham Cottage
condition 2 'Materials', condition 5 'Landscape Wellington Hill and
Scheme' and condition 6 'Flood Risk Bowls Club Site
Assessment' of planning permission EPF/2101/12 Rats Lane
(Extension of time limit on EPF/0025/10) (which
gave approval to the erection of a two storey
detached house to replace existing dwelling.)

Willingale
48 EPF/0551/16  Erection of stables and change of use of land Tarrymans
for the keeping of horses Birds Green

Enforcement Appeals

Allowed With Conditions

ENF/0249/14 Without planning permission the change of The Outlook
use of stables to a building used as a single Moreton Bridge
residential dwelling Moreton

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



72@% The Planning Inspectorate

AN

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 15 June 2016

by John Morrison BA (Hons) MSc MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 30 August 2016

Appeal Ref: APP/J1535/W/16/3146296
21 Priory Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 1AF

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr Brendan McParland on behalf of Brenland Ltd against the
decision of Epping Forest District Council.

The application Ref EPF/2418/15, dated 25 September 2015, was refused by notice
dated 6 January 2016.

The development proposed is the demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 2 no.
3 bed dwellings.

Decision

1.

The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for the demolition of
existing bungalow and erection of 2 no. 3 bed dwellings at 21 Priory Road,
Loughton, Essex IG10 1AF, in accordance with the terms of the application, Ref
EPF/2418/15, dated 25 September 2015 and subject to the conditions listed in
the attached schedule.

Main Issue

2.

The main issue is the effect of the proposed development on the character and
appearance of the area.

Reasons

3.

The street scene is characterised by a mix of semi-detached and detached
dwellings of mostly two storeys with the exception of the existing dwelling and
another to the opposite side of the road. Built development lines either side of
Priory Road, set in from the back edge of the footway and off street parking is
provided to front gardens. There is a large detached red brick flat roofed
telephone exchange building adjacent to the appeal site.

The proposed development would involve the demolition of a detached
bungalow and the erection of a pair of semi-detached dwellings with a similar
set in from the back edge of the footway. The proposed dwellings would also
follow the building line of the established street scene and introduce a form of
development which is prevalent in the area.

I acknowledge that the proposed development would use a simpler and modern
design approach to the frontage which would contrast with more traditional two
storey gable roofed designs with forward projecting bay windows. However,
this proposed frontage would be in the context of a number of mixed dwelling

Page 131



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/16/3146296

10.

types, designs and heights. In addition, the proposed development would have
a symmetrical frontage and a mixed render and brick finish, both of which are
very typical of the street scene and the wider area.

The proposed development would be wider in the plot than that the existing
detached bungalow and as a result would bring a new building closer to the
boundary of the immediate neighbour at Number 23. However, this would be
in the context of a lack of general uniformity to building spacing or garden
dimensions in the area owing to the existence of, amongst other things, single
storey detached buildings to side elevations, side and front extensions as well
as the mixed nature of development in the area more generally.

The proposed pair of semi-detached dwellings would be narrower than some
others that are established in the street scene and wider area and as a result
their respective internal floor areas and indeed their gardens would be smaller.
I am not provided with any evidence to suggest however that these matters in
themselves would necessarily result in any material planning harm. The size of
the resulting dwellings in terms of their internal floor area and garden size was
not a matter on which the Council objected to the scheme.

I also consider that the proposed development would represent, in overall
height terms, a pair of two storey semi-detached dwellings. The design would
include a third bedroom in the roof space and the use of dormer windows. The
proposed dormer windows would be of the box type design with a flat roof.
However, they would be well contained within the roof space, set in from the
side, the ridge and the eaves. They would be in proportion with the
fenestration detail of the rear elevation and being to the rear would be well
screened from any public views in any event. I therefore do not consider that
they would result in any adverse visual effect.

For the above reasons, the proposed development would not introduce an
uncharacteristic form, siting, design or pattern of development that would
result in harm to the character and appearance of the area.

Consequently, I find no conflict with saved Policies CP2, CP7 or DBEL1 of the
Local Plan'. These Policies seek to ensure that, inter alia and along with
section 7 of the Framework?, new development is of a good quality and
contextually appropriate design and safeguards and enhances the setting,
character and townscape of the urban environment and maintains the
environmental quality of existing urban areas.

Other Matters

11.

Whilst there would be some reduction of light into the side kitchen window of
Number 23 Priory Road as a result of the proposed development, the kitchen
window is within close proximity to and directly faces the side elevation of the
existing bungalow and thus light into it is already constrained. Whilst the
proposed development would be taller against this window, the affected room
also has double patio style doors facing into the rear garden which afford the
room considerable light. I do not therefore consider that light into this room
would be constrained by the proposed development to the extent that it would
justify dismissal of the appeal.

! The Adopted Epping Forest District Local Plan 1998 and Alterations 2006
2 The National Planning Policy Framework 2012

Page 132



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/16/3146296

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Any views from first floor or roof space windows of the proposed development
would be of the far end of neighbouring gardens which is not an uncommon
situation in suburban areas. The main area of private garden space to a
dwelling is commonly the immediate rear of the dwelling and as such the
proposed development would not impinge on the privacy of the occupiers of
neighbouring dwellings.

I note that there is some dispute over the precedent value that has been
attributed to other examples of similar developments in the area that have
been recently approved. In this case I have not had regard to any other
examples of recently approved developments in my findings and consequently
have considered the proposed development entirely on its own merits.

I acknowledge that the adjacent telephone exchange building by virtue of its
large scale and utilitarian design is not a positive feature in the street scene.
This is an existing situation over which the proposed development would have
no direct influence. I do not agree therefore that, in the context of the lack of
harm that I have identified in respect of the effect of the proposed
development on the character and appearance of the area, the proposed
development, on its own merits, would in any way exacerbate the existing
situation.

I note the concern expressed over the effect of the proposed development on
highway safety with specific regards to possible increased demand for on street
parking. However the proposed development would include a single off street
parking space per dwelling which the Council considered appropriate. I also
note that the proposed development would be within easy reach of a range of
local services, all of which can be accessed via sustainable means. I am
therefore satisfied that the proposed development would not actively
encourage parking on the street and consequently would not have a
detrimental effect on highway safety.

Some concern has been expressed over the loss of the existing bungalow that
would, in itself, be of benefit to the elderly community. With respect to this
matter I do not have any evidence before me to suggest that bungalow
accommodation is in short supply in the area relative to demand and as such
can afford this matter limited weight in my findings.

Conditions

17.

18.

I have had regard to the various planning conditions that have been suggested
by the Council. In addition to the standard condition which limits the lifespan
of the planning permission I have, for certainty, specified the approved plans.
I have also imposed conditions requiring the agreement of external materials
and finishes to ensure that the appearance of the proposed development would
be satisfactory which, since it goes to the heart of the planning permission,
need to be agreed prior to the commencement of development.

Since they are not stated clearly on the approved plans and in the interests of
ensuring that levels are not built up in gardens which may compromise the
privacy of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings, I have included a condition
requiring details of finished external site levels. I do not consider details of
finished internal floor levels are required since they are specified on the
approved plans and thus addressed by a separate condition.

Pagé 133



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/16/3146296

19.

20.

21.

To ensure the proper functioning of the proposed development I have imposed
a condition requiring the agreement of a scheme to control the discharge of
foul and surface water and to limit the effect of noise disturbance to
neighbouring residents I have imposed a condition restricting the hours for
demolition and construction. Since there is no dispute over the timings for this
as suggested by the Council, I agree that they are reasonable.

I do not consider it necessary however to require the landscaping of private
gardens and nor do I find there to be any exceptional circumstances that would
justify the removal of rights under permitted development. In addition, the
appeal site is within a residential area and development would take place within
an existing garden and as such I cannot agree that the provision of wheel
washing facilities is necessary to make the development acceptable.

I have not been provided with any evidence relating to land contamination that
is specific to the appeal site and as such I do not agree that conditions
requiring further information or work in response to these matters can be
justified.

Conclusion

22.

For the reasons given above, I conclude that the proposed development would
not give rise to harm to the character and appearance of the area and as such
the appeal is allowed.

John Morrison

INSPECTOR

Page 134



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/16/3146296

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: 2015-687-001, 2015-687-002 Rev A,
2015-687-010 Rev A, 2015-687-011 Rev A, 2015-687-012 Rev A and
2015-687-014.

No development shall commence until details/samples of the materials
and finishes to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
dwellings hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved details/samples.

No development shall take place until full details of finished external site
levels have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved details.

No development shall take place until details of methods for the disposal
of foul and surface water have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

Demolition or construction works shall take place only between the hours
of 07:30 and 18:30 Mondays to Fridays, 08:00 and 13:00 on Saturdays
and shall not take place at any time on Sundays or on Bank or Public
Holidays.

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



| 72@% The Planning Inspectorate

AN

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 21 June 2016

by S J Buckingham BA (Hons) DipTP MSc MRTPI FSA
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 11" August 2016

Appeal Ref: APP/]J1535/D/16/3149197
24 Alderton Hill, Loughton, Essex, IG10 3]JB

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant outline planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Balbir Bagria against the decision of Epping Forest District
Council.

e The application Ref PL/EPF/2983/15, dated 20 November 2015, was refused by notice
dated 3 February 2016.

e The development proposed is two storey side extensions, part single and part two
storey rear extensions, dormer windows and associated alterations.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for two storey side
extensions, part single and part two storey rear extensions, dormer windows
and associated alterations at 24 Alderton Hill, Loughton, Essex, IG10 3]B in
accordance with the terms of the application, Ref PL/EPF/2983/15, dated
20 November 2015, and the plans submitted with it, subject to the conditions
set out in the schedule to this decision.

Main Issues

2. The effect on the living conditions of the occupiers of number 26 Alderton Hill
with respect of outlook and sunlight and daylight.

Reasons
Outlook

3. Alderton Hill is a residential area consisting of large detached houses sitting in
large plots. Number 24 Alderton Hill sits just downhill and to the south-west of
number 26 and has a front building line that sits just forward of the garage of
number 26. The boundary between the two properties at the front of the site
is a brick wall of something over 3m in height, and further in is characterised
by mature vegetation.

4. The appeal proposal includes two flank extensions, that to the left-hand side
comprising a granny-annexe over a garage. The proposed extension to the
right-hand side would be set around a metre back from the flank boundary
wall, and would be around 7 metres away from the main flank elevation of
number 26. The two storey element would roughly follow the footprint of the
existing garage, projecting back from the front building line to around halfway

Paaa 137
L] rJli

LaTal
Uy



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/D/16/3149197

along the garage of number 26, and some distance forward of the rear
elevation of that house.

Being set forward in this way, the two storey element of the proposal would not
be visible from principal windows to the rear of number 26, and views of it
from the front would be oblique or and shielded at ground floor level by the flat
roofed canopy, walkway and garage of humber 26. I do not consider therefore
that it could form an obtrusive element in the outlook of the occupiers of that
property.

I do not consider that the proposed extension would appear overbearing in the
outlook of the occupiers of humber 26, and that it would not therefore conflict
with policy DBE9 of the local plan, which seeks to protect the outlook of
adjoining occupiers where buildings are extended.

Sunlight and Daylight

7.

10.

The orientation of the appeal property and its neighbour mean that direct
sunlight to the north-west facing garden elevations is already limited. The
garden room to number 26 is a glass-roofed lean-to attached to the high
boundary wall, therefore precluding sunlight from the south-west also. At the
time of my site visit, I noted from the highway that the flat roofed walkway
from the house to the garage is open sided, and that in the mid-morning light
was passing through and over that to reach the garden room from the south
east. Given these facts, the proposed two storey extension element, located to
the south west is not likely to make a material difference to levels of sunlight
or daylight reaching the garden room or sitting out area of humber 26.

The appeal includes a sunlight and daylight study which supports this
assessment, concluding that there would be a limited effect by the appeal
proposal in terms of reductions in daylight or sunlight.

I do not, therefore, consider that the proposed extension will cause an
unacceptable loss of daylight or sunlight to number 26, and will not therefore
conflict with policy DBE9 of the local plan which seeks to protect the daylight
and sunlight conditions for adjoining occupiers where buildings are extended. .

In arriving at this conclusion I have taken into account the previous appeal
decision. However, the massing and siting of the proposed extension in
relation to number 26 have changed, and information has been submitted
which clarifies the effect of the proposed extension in terms of sunlight and
daylight. This does not, therefore, alter my decision.

Other Matters

11.

An objection to the proposal suggested that the proposed two storey extension
on the left hand side of humber 24 would affect the privacy of the occupiers of
number 22 Alderton Hill through overlooking. This extension would contain a
garage at ground floor level, and the residential accommodation at first floor
level would have only an obscured glazed window on the flank elevation
adjoining number 22. The installation and retention of obscured glazing can be
secured by condition. I conclude therefore that the living condition of the
occupiers of number 22 would not be compromised.

Page 138



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/D/16/3149197

Conditions

12. I have had regard to the various planning conditions that have been suggested
by the Council. Drawing 1406/304 Revision D indicates that the granny-
annexe will have an internal link to the main house, and will share the drive
and parking, so I do not, therefore, consider it necessary to impose a condition
to ensure that it shall not be occupied as other than for purposes ancillary to
the residential use of the main house. I have attached a condition specifying
the relevant drawings, as this provides certainty. A condition relating to
materials is appropriate in the interests of character and appearance.
Conditions securing the installation and retention of obscured glazing and
controlling the insertion of new windows in the flank elevations are necessary
in the interests of the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining premises. Adequate
off street parking should be retained in the interests of highways safety, and I
have therefore imposed a condition to secure the retention of parking in the
new garage. A condition limiting the hours of construction and demolition
works is attached to safeguard the living conditions of the occupiers of adjacent
properties.

Conclusion

13. For the reasons given above therefore, and having regard to all other matters
raised, I conclude that this appeal should be allowed.

S J Buckingham

PLANNING INSPECTOR

Pagé 139



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/D/16/3149197

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

SCHEDULE

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years
from the date of this decision.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: Site Location Plan, 1406/100;
1406/102; 1406/107 Revision A;1406/303 Revision B;1406/304 Revision
D; 1406/305 Revision B; 1406/306.

The external surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall be
constructed in the materials to match those used in the existing building
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The extensions hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the windows
to the eastern and western flank elevations above ground level,
comprising those to the granny flat/studio, bedroom 2, bedroom 3,
bedroom 4, bedroom 6 and bedroom 7, have been fitted with obscured
glazing, and no part of those window that is less than 1.7 metres above
the floor of the room in which it is installed shall be capable of being
opened. Once installed the obscured glazing shall be retained thereafter.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no
windows other than those expressly authorised by this permission shall
be constructed on the flank elevations of the house without the prior
written permission of the local planning authority.

The garage hereby permitted shall be kept available at all times for the
parking of motor vehicles by the occupants of the dwelling and their
visitors, and for no other purpose.

Demolition or construction work shall take place only between the hours
of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday, 08.00 to 13.00 on Saturday and
shall not take place at any time on Sundays or on Bank or Public Holidays
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 140



%

w The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 22 March 2016

by Andrew McCormack BSc (Hons) MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 09 May 2016

Appeal Ref: APP/]J1535/W/15/3139227
26 Meadow Way, Chigwell, Essex IG7 6LR

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Peter Argyrou against the decision of Epping Forest District
Council.

e The application Ref PL/EPF/1279/15, dated 19 May 2015, was refused by notice dated
26 August 2015.

e The development proposed is a two storey new build house.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for a two-storey new
build house at 26 Meadow Way, Chigwell, Essex IG7 6LR in accordance with the
terms of application ref: PL/EPF/1279/15, dated 19 May 2015 and subject to
the conditions set out in the attached schedule to this decision letter.

Main Issues
2. The main issues are the effect of the proposed development on:
e the character and appearance of the area; and

e the living conditions of neighbouring residents with particular regard to
outlook, noise and disturbance.

Reasons
Character and appearance

3. The surrounding area is one of large detached dwellings, positioned on
generous plots within a well-landscaped streetscene, establishing an open and
verdant character. The appeal site consists of an area of grass land situated
within a gated cul-de-sac accessed from Meadow Lane which serves three
detached dwellings. The appeal site is situated towards the front of the cul-de-
sac between 22 and 28 Meadow Way (Nos 22 and 28), in front of 24 Meadow
Way (No 24) but behind a sizeable front boundary gate and wall. It is adjacent
to, but not within, the Chigwell Village Conservation Area (CA), albeit the south
western boundary wall of the site does form the boundary of the CA.

4. The proposed dwelling would be of a traditional design which would be in
keeping with the prevailing character of the nearby dwellings and the
surrounding area. In terms of its elevations, the dwelling would have a dual




Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139227

aspect design which would address the main Meadow Way frontage to the
south east, as well as the private road of the cul-de-sac to the north east.

5. When viewed from Meadow Way the scheme would appear somewhat smaller
in scale than its neighbouring properties. However, while there are larger
properties in the immediate locality, a number have been extended over time
and were originally smaller dwellings and the proposed dwelling’s appearance
would reflect its surrounding context well and would not be inappropriate or out
of keeping. The position of the proposed dwelling and its set back from the
main building line between Nos 22 and 28 would not have a significantly
adverse effect on the streetscene.

6. The dwelling would be partially concealed behind the substantial front boundary
wall of the cul-de-sac and also behind the mature trees to the front on Meadow
Way. Furthermore, given the separation distances to neighbouring properties,
the dwelling would complement the character and appearance of the area by
providing a more defined frontage to Meadow Way than is currently provided
by No 24 which is set back considerably further.

7. Whilst I accept that the scheme would introduce further built form to the area,
the design and scale of the proposed dwelling would not reduce the spacious
character and the generous plot sizes to the surrounding properties would be
maintained. The proposed private garden space comfortably exceeds the
relevant requirements. Furthermore, the proposed dwelling would sit
comfortably on, and be in proportion to, its slightly smaller plot and would not
represent cramped development.

8. Whilst the proposed dwelling would result in the loss of a grassed area within
the gated cul-de-sac, it would provide a new dwelling in an established
residential area. The scheme would be proportionate in size and scale to its
plot and although it would be smaller than its neighbouring properties, its
traditional design would be in keeping with its surroundings. As a result, its
position and appearance would not have an adverse effect on the area.
Consequently, in my assessment, the proposed development would not cause
any significant harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding area.

9. Accordingly, I conclude that the appeal scheme would comply with Policies
CP2(iv), CP7 and DBE3 of the adopted Epping Forest Local Plan and Alterations
(the Local Plan). These policies, amongst other matters, seek to ensure that
development safeguards and enhances the character and townscape of the
area, makes full use of existing urban areas where it would not result in over-
development, unsympathetic change or loss of amenity and provides defined
spaces which are functional, attractive and safe.

Living conditions: neighbouring residents

10. The proposed dwelling would be positioned approximately 32 metres in front of
No 24 to the north and be separated by approximately 11 metres from No 28
to the east. The effect on the outlook of neighbouring occupiers would
therefore be limited. Whilst the view from No 24 would clearly be altered, the
separation would be sufficient such that there would be no undue loss of
outlook. Furthermore, from No 28, while the new dwelling would be visible, it
would be set behind the principal windows and at sufficient distance and angle
such that it would not have an adverse effect on outlook, particularly given the
residential nature of the area.

Page 142



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139227

11.

12.

The scheme would result in some additional traffic passing along the private
lane to the courtyard and garage area. There would be additional manoeuvring
within the courtyard and the possibility of cars meeting along the access lane.
However, such movements already exist and the small increase represented by
this additional dwelling would be insufficient to lead to material harm to the
living conditions of neighbouring occupiers as regards noise and disturbance
associated with this.

Consequently, I conclude that the proposed development would not cause any
significant harm to the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers. It would
therefore conform with Policies CP7 and DBE9 of the adopted Local Plan which,
in part, seek to ensure that development does not result in any loss of amenity
for neighbouring occupiers.

Other matters

13.

14.

15.

16.

I note local residents’ concerns regarding the loss of views, sunlight and
privacy. The right to a view is not a material planning consideration and
therefore I do not give this any significant weight in my decision. With regard
to potential loss of sunlight, there would be sufficient separation between the
proposed dwelling and nearby properties so as not to cause any substantial
overshadowing of other nearby gardens or dwellings. Any loss of sunlight
experienced by the occupiers of 28 and 30 Meadow Way would be during late
afternoon or evening and the effect of such loss would be limited due to the
screening effect of the existing dense tree cover along the public footpath.
Accordingly, I find that any such loss of sunlight would not have a material
effect on the levels currently enjoyed by neighbouring occupiers.

With regard to privacy, the separation distance to No 24 would be sufficient to
protect privacy. Other neighbouring occupiers have raised concerns about
overlooking from the proposed windows positioned on the north eastern
elevation of the proposed scheme. However, the windows to the proposed
stairwell and the first floor en-suite bathroom, which would face the private
road and the rear gardens of Nos 28 and 30 beyond, would be obscure glazed.
Indeed, such a measure could be secured by condition. The ground floor
windows facing north east would not have any substantial adverse effect on
privacy due to their height, their distance from, and the screening effect of the
boundary fencing of No 28. Furthermore, in my assessment, any variance in
ground level as a result of the scheme would be unlikely to have any
substantive adverse effect on the privacy issues raised. However, a levels
condition could be imposed to ensure that levels do not alter significantly as a
result of the proposed development.

Concerns regarding highway safety and parking, access for emergency service
vehicles, the potential impact on bats and on trees and ecology have also been
raised. The proposed dwelling would create a requirement for two additional
parking spaces. Planning permission for, and the construction of, the garaging
associated with the proposed development has already occurred. Thus, the
provision of two additional parking spaces, which can be secured by condition,
would be sufficient. I note also that the highway authority has raised no
objection to the scheme in this regard. From what I have seen before me and
on my site visit, I have no reason to differ from that view.

The proposed dwelling would not alter the existing arrangements for access by
emergency service vehicles and I, therefore, have no substantive concerns

Page 143



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139227

regarding this matter. In relation to the potential impact on bats, trees and
ecology, any effects would be limited, and tree protection can be secured by
condition.

17. The Council raise the issue of the potential lack of natural daylight and sunlight

available to the future occupiers as a result of the relationship with the

boundary wall. In light of the design and orientation of the property, with its
dual aspect configuration, I am satisfied that any effect arising from the close
proximity of the wall would be insufficient to warrant dismissal of the appeal.

Conditions

18.

19.

20.

I have had regard to the planning conditions that have been suggested by the
Council. Where necessary, and in the interests of conciseness and
enforceability, I have altered the suggested conditions to better reflect the
relevant parts of the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). I have not imposed
some suggested conditions for the reasons set out below.

In addition to the standard implementation condition (1), I have imposed a
condition specifying the relevant plans as this provides certainty (2).
Conditions relating to materials (3), landscaping (4, 5) and tree protection (6)
are appropriate in the interests of character and appearance. A condition
relating to the protection and retention of the south western boundary wall (7)
is appropriate and necessary for similar reasons. Further conditions relating to
site levels (8), land contamination (9), a construction method statement (10),
windows (11) and foul and surface water drainage (12) are necessary to
ensure that living conditions are satisfactory for future and neighbouring
occupiers. I have imposed a condition to require that the approved garaging is
retained solely for the parking of cars in the interests of highway safety (13).
Given the residential character of the area, it is appropriate that controls are
placed upon the hours of construction work and I impose a condition
accordingly (14).

I have not imposed a condition relating to the Public Right of Way as I do not
consider this to be necessary or relevant to the approved development. I am
also not persuaded that it is necessary to remove permitted development
rights, as the Council suggests. The PPG indicates that such restrictions should
be exceptional and I do not consider the circumstances in this case to be so. It
is essential that the requirements of conditions 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10 are
agreed prior to development commencing to ensure an acceptable form of
development in respect of the design, landscaping, tree protection,
contamination and preservation of the character of the CA.

Conclusion

21.

For the above reasons, having regard to all matters raised and subject to the
conditions set out in the attached schedule, I conclude that the appeal should
be allowed.

Andrew McCormack,

INSPECTOR

Page 144



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139227

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans: Drawing nos. 2015.105.PA-01; 2015.105.PA-
02 rev A; 2015.105.PA-03; 2015.105.PA-04; 20015.105.PA-05;
2015.105.PA-06; 2015.105.PA-07; 2015.105.PA-08 rev A; 2015.105.PA-09
rev A; 2015.105.PA-10 rev A; 2015.105.PA-11 rev A; 2015.105.PA-12 rev A;
2015.105.PA-13 rev A; 2015.105.PA-14 rev A; 2015.105.PA-15 rev A and
2015.105.PA-16 rev A.

No development shall commence until details of the materials to be used in
the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby
permitted have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local
planning authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

No development shall commence, including site clearance or other
preparatory work, until details of both hard and soft landscape works
(including tree planting and an implementation programme) have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The
hard landscaping details shall include:

i) earthworks showing existing and proposed finished levels or contours;

ii) means of enclosure and retaining structures;

iii) car parking layouts; and

iv) minor artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and
functional services above and below ground.

The details of soft landscape works shall include:
v) planting plans;

vi) written specifications (including cultivation and other operations
associated with plant and grass establishment); and

vii) schedules of plants noting species, plant supply sizes and proposed
numbers/densities where appropriate.

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the completion of the development hereby permitted; and any
trees of plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and
species.

No site clearance, preparatory work or development shall take place until a
scheme for the protection of the retained trees (the tree protection plan) and
the appropriate working methods (the arboricultural method statement) in
accordance with paragraphs 5.5 and 6.1 of British Standard BS5837: Trees
in relation to design, demolition and construction - Recommendations (or in
an equivalent British Standard if replaced) shall have been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The scheme for the
protection of the retained trees shall be carried out as approved. In this
condition “retained tree” means an existing tree which is to be retained in
accordance with the approved plans and particulars.

No development shall commence until details of how the existing wall along
the south western boundary that forms part of the Chigwell Village

Page 145



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139227

8)

9)

10)

11)

Conservation Area shall be retained and protected during construction is
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The
development shall then be carried out and maintained thereafter in
accordance with the approved details.

No development shall take place until full details of all finished floor levels,
above ordnance datum, in relation to existing and proposed site levels for
the building and external space and to the adjacent buildings have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved levels.

No development shall commence until an assessment of the risks posed by
any contamination, carried out in accordance with British Standard BS
10175: Investigation of potentially contaminated sites - Code of Practice and
the Environment Agency’s Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination (CLR 11) (or equivalent British Standard and Model
Procedures if replaced), shall have been submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the local planning authority.

If any contamination is found, a report specifying the measures to be taken,
including the timescale, to remediate the site to render it suitable for the
approved development shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
local planning authority. The site shall be remediated in accordance with the
approved measures and timescale and a verification report shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority.

If, during the course of development, any contamination is found which has
not been previously identified, work shall be suspended and additional
measures for its remediation shall be submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the local planning authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate
the approved additional measures and a verification report for all the
remediation works shall be submitted to the local planning authority within
30 days of the report being completed and approved in writing by the local
planning authority.

No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a

Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in

writing by, the local planning authority. The Statement shall provide for:

i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

i) loading and unloading of plant and materials;

iii) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;

iv) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;

V) wheel washing facilities;

vi) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;

vii) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition
and construction works; and

viii) the approved Construction Method Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period for the development.

The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the proposed
window openings at the first floor level of the north eastern flank elevations
have been fitted with obscured glazing, and no part of those windows that is
less than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which they are installed
shall be capable of being opened. Details of the type of obscured glazing
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning

Page 146



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139227

12)

13)

14)

authority before the windows are installed and once installed the obscured
glazing shall be retained thereafter.

The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the foul and surface
water disposal works shall have been completed in accordance with details
that have first been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local
planning authority.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or of any equivalent
provision in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order),
the garage indicated on drawing 2015.105. PA-08 rev A for use for number
26a, shall be permanently retained for use for number 26a so that it is
capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary storage in
connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be
converted into a room or used for any other purpose.

Construction works shall take place only between 0800-1800 Monday to
Friday and 0800-1300 on Saturdays and shall not take place at any time on
Sundays or on Bank or Public Holidays.

END OF SCHEDULE

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



%

w The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 26 April 2016

by Helen Hockenhull BA(Hons) B.PlI MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 09 June 2016

Appeal Ref: APP/]J1535/W/16/3143162
51 High Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 4JE

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Spring Grove Limited against the decision of Epping Forest
District Council.

The application Ref EPF/1973/15, dated 10 August 2015, was refused by notice dated
25 November 2015.

The development proposed is the demolition of the existing dwelling and construction of
eight residential flats with associated car parking spaces, amenity space and refuse
collection area.

Decision

1.

The appeal is dismissed.

Main Issues

2. The main issues in this case are:

e the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of
the area;

e the effect of the development on the living conditions of future occupiers of
the building with particular regard to outdoor amenity space and of
neighbouring residents with regard to outlook and privacy;

e the effect of the development on highway safety with particular regard to car
parking provision;

e whether the loss of a non designated heritage asset can be justified.

Reasons

Character and appearance

3.

The appeal site is occupied by a large detached late Victorian/early Edwardian
dwelling and is located in a prominent corner at the junction of High Road and
Spring Grove, Loughton. Spring Grove is residential in character with large
semi detached and detached properties of various architectural styles,
constructed in a range of materials including brick, render and timber boarding.
Properties have front gardens bounded by low walls with mature landscaping.
The part of High Road in the vicinity of the appeal site is more mixed in
character with older Victorian terraced cottages and more modern flat roofed

P a 1490
9

a0y
 ayc<o



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/16/3143162

three storey flats together with open land bounded by fences and vegetation
forming either part of the playing fields to Oaklands School or part of Epping
Forest.

4. The appeal proposes a large part three storey part two storey development of a
traditional design and materials with gable features, balconies and roof lights to
be constructed in brick with render and a tiled crown roof. Having regard to
the mixed character of High Road and variety of architectural style on Spring
Grove, I consider that the overall design of the appeal building and use of
materials would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the area.

5. The building would be sited approximately one metre back from the plot
boundary with High Road and at its closest point approximately the same
distance back from Spring Grove. In relation to the High Road frontage, other
neighbouring properties are set close to the highway, particularly the Victorian
cottages which have a small frontage area bounded by railings. Other more
modern substantial buildings such as The Willows flat development are set
further back to allow for boundary planting and screening. In the case of the
appeal proposal, this would form a large development on a prominent corner
site. The close proximity of the building to High Road results in a limited ability
to provide screening to create a setting to the building. This would accentuate
the building’s scale and prominence in the street scene. In an area where, with
the exception of the historic cottages, buildings are set back from the highway
with significant mature boundary planting, I consider that the proposal would
not maintain the quality of the built environment in this locality.

6. In relation to existing properties on Spring Grove, the appeal proposal would
be positioned much closer to the highway with little frontage planting. This
would be at odds with the character of this area with properties set back from
the road with landscaped front gardens. I therefore consider that the
development would not be in keeping with the established pattern of
development on Spring Grove and would not respect the prevailing character of
the area.

7. The Council has raised concern about the proposed crown roof, that it may not
be successful in appearing as a hipped roof when viewed from Spring Grove.
However as a result of the level differences, with Spring Grove sloping up to
the appeal site and High Road, I consider that the crown roof would be
effective. The Council has also commented about the position of the terrace
balcony to Flat 3 facing High Road and the relationship of this to the narrow
strip of boundary planting and boundary wall detail on this frontage. This close
relationship would, in my view, accentuate the lack of visual setting and
landscaping to the building and result in a cramped appearance detrimental to
the street scene.

8. The appellant has commented that the provision of landscaping could be the
subject of appropriate conditions should the appeal be allowed. However it is
my view that in this case, landscaping cannot be left to be resolved by
conditions because of the importance of ensuring that the proposed
development would not have an adverse impact on the street scene and
character of the area.

9. Bringing the above points together, I consider that the appeal proposal would
cause harm to the character and appearance of the area. The scheme would
conflict with saved policies CP2(iv), CP7, DBE1(i), LL10 and LL11 of the Epping

Page 130



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/16/3143162

Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 2006 (LP) which amongst other things
seek to achieve buildings of high quality design, appropriately landscaped,
respecting their setting, and improving, maintaining and conserving the quality
of the built environment. I consider these policies to be generally consistent
with the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework), in particular
paragraphs 17 and 56 which aim to secure high quality design.

Living conditions

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The appeal proposal does not provide communal outdoor amenity space but
instead each flat has a terrace or patio area, varying in area from around 20 sq
metres for the ground floor Flats 1 and 2 to approximately 3 sq metres for the
single bed Flat 5. The Essex Design Guide requires 25 sq metres of outdoor
amenity space for a 2 bedroom flat. It welcomes a similar provision for single
bed flats but recognises that the occupants of such accommodation may be
happy to forgo this amenity and make use of other local open space. In terms
of the appeal proposal, a development of two 3 bed flats, five 2 bed flats and a
one bed flat, the level of provision proposed would be below that
recommended.

The appellant has provided evidence to demonstrate that there are areas of
public open space, including Epping Forest within 200 metres of the appeal
site. It is not uncommon for flat developments to have little or no communal
amenity space but to have private balconies or terraces providing private
amenity space. The Council has raised concern that many of the proposed
balconies would be open to public view and not particularly private; however
this is very often the case in this type of development.

I consider that having regard to the above points, the proposed amount of
outdoor amenity space to serve the future occupiers of the development would
be acceptable and would not result in harm to their living conditions.

Turning to the impact of the development on the outlook of neighbouring
properties, the appeal proposal would provide a building occupying much of the
site. The three storey element of the building would extend no further into the
site than the existing dwelling. It would be set back approximately one metre
from the common boundary with No. 53 High Road where it neighbours the
dwelling itself and would then be set back into the site by approximately 3
metres. The building then continues at two storey height and because of the
angled nature of the side boundary at this point, would be between 2 and 3
metres from the boundary with the neighbouring property.

No.53 has a long but very narrow rear garden. I consider that the three storey
element of the proposed building would have little additional impact than the
existing dwelling on the neighbouring property in terms of outlook. However,
the appeal proposal would result in two storey built development in close
proximity to and extending along most of the side boundary with No.53. 1
consider this would result in a significant enclosing and overbearing effect,
particularly in relation to the narrow rear garden. This poor outlook would
adversely affect the living conditions of the occupiers of the property.

With regard to privacy, the proposed window openings on the north east
elevation of the building overlooking the garden of No. 53 would serve either
bathrooms or storage rooms and are proposed to be fitted with obscure glazing
or would be high level windows serving circulation areas. I therefore consider

Page 151



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/16/3143162

16.

17.

that there would be no loss of privacy for the occupants of the neighbouring
property.

I note the sunlight and daylight evidence put forward by the appellant that
demonstrates that the development would comply with BRE guidelines in terms
of daylight, sunlight and overshadowing. This is not disputed by the Council.

In summary whilst I have found that the appeal proposal would provide
adequate outdoor amenity space for future occupants and would not result in
the loss of privacy for adjoining neighbours, I consider that it would result in
harm to the living conditions of the occupants of No.53 High Road in terms of
outlook. The development would therefore conflict with saved LP Policies DBE2
and DBE9 which aim to safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties. I
consider these policies to be generally consistent with the Framework in
particular paragraph 17 which seeks to secure a good standard of amenity for
all existing and future occupiers of land and buildings.

Highway safety

18.

19.

20.

21.

The proposed development includes undercroft car parking providing 8 spaces,
one per flat. The Council have raised concern that this level of parking would
be insufficient and would be below the minimum 19 spaces required by the
Essex Parking Standards 2009. In the submitted Transport Statement the
appellant suggests a parking level of 15 spaces would be required, however it
appears to me that parking for visitors has not been included in this
assessment. The Standards allow for a reduction in car parking where a site is
located within an accessible urban area. High Road is a bus route with regular
services to Walthamstow, Loughton, South Woodford and Debden. The site is
also within walking distance of Loughton Underground Station and the shops
and facilities that Loughton provides. The appeal site can therefore be
considered to be in a sustainable location.

I have also noted the appellant’s parking survey assessing the parking stress
within 200 metres of the site. This concludes that 22 vehicles were parked
within 129 available spaces, an average parking stress of 17%. I note that
Spring Grove the closest road to the appeal site exhibited significant on street
car parking with a parking stress level of over 90%, however Newham Close an
adjoining side road had a very low stress level of around 16%. The Council has
not disputed the survey results and I note the lack of objection to the proposal
from the Highway Authority.

Having regard to the sustainable location of the appeal site, together with the
car parking survey results, I consider that the 8 parking spaces proposed would
be adequate to serve the development. Additional demand for on street
parking would be modest and would be absorbed onto surrounding streets
without severe impact on highway safety.

I consider the appeal proposal to be acceptable in terms of highway safety and
in compliance with saved LP Policy ST6 which aims to ensure adequate car
parking in line with the adopted standards, a policy generally consistent with
the Framework.

Non designated heritage asset

22. The Framework in paragraph 135 states that the effect of an application on the

significance of a non designated heritage asset should be taken into account in

Page 182



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/16/3143162

23.

24.

determining the application. It also states that a balanced judgement will be
required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of
the heritage asset. The Council considers that the loss of the appeal building,
a non designated heritage asset, would be harmful to the character and
appearance of the area and that it can only be justified if it is replaced by a
development of high quality design.

The appeal building forms an attractive late Victorian/early Edwardian Arts and
Crafts style property. It is not a building on the Council’s Local List of heritage
assets. I have been provided with very little evidence, such as a heritage
statement, to explain the significance of this building. I observed on my site
visit that the dwelling, whilst being attractive, forms a typical property of its
age and I have sympathy for the Council’s view that it would be preferable for
the building to be converted and extended.

I have also had regard to the Council’s view that the loss of the dwelling could
be justified if the building that replaces it would be of a high standard of
design. Bearing in mind my findings that the proposal would cause harm to the
character and appearance of the area, I consider that the proposal would not
be of a sufficiently high quality design to justify the loss of the building. It
would therefore conflict with saved LP Policies CP2 (iv) and CP7 which seek to
maintain the environmental quality of the urban area and the objectives of the
Framework to conserve and enhance the historic environment.

Conclusion

25.

26.

I have found that the appeal proposal would not cause harm to the living
conditions of future occupants with regard to the provision of outdoor amenity
space and that it would be acceptable in terms of highway safety and the
provision of car parking. Whilst these factors weigh in favour of the proposal
they do not significantly or demonstrably outweigh the harm I have identified
to the character and appearance of the area, the living conditions of the
occupants of the neighbouring property at No. 53 High Road and the lack of
justification for the loss of the building, a non designated heritage asset.

For the reasons given above and having regard to all matters raised, I dismiss
this appeal.

Helen Hockenhull
INSPECTOR

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



. The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 25 August 2016

by Timothy C King BA (Hons) MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 19 September 2016

Appeal Ref: APP/]J1535/D/16/3152857
170 Manor Road, Chigwell, Essex, IG7 5PX

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against
a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr Sylvein Pinto against the decision of Epping Forest District
Council.

The application Ref PL/EPF/3207/15, dated 22 October 2015 was refused by notice
dated 30 March 2016.

The development proposed is '‘Basement Extension.’

Decision

1.

The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for a basement
extension at 170 Manor Road, Chigwell, Essex, IG7 5PX in accordance with the
terms of the application Ref PL/EPF/3207/15, dated 22 October 2015, subject to
the following conditions:

i) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: SK/201015.1 and 201015.2.

ii) Prior to the basement, hereby approved, being brought into use,
sufficient provision shall be made for the parking of two private motor
vehicles, in accordance with drawing No SK/201015.1, and the two
spaces shall be retained for such purposes thereafter.

Procedural Matter

2.

It appeared at my site visit that the proposal is currently in the process of being
implemented, pursuant to a previous planning application relating to the
dwelling’s extension and also general renovation works. This has not affected
my conclusions and I am treating the intended basement extension as a
development proposal.

Main Issue

3.

The main issue in this appeal is the effect of the proposal on the character and
appearance of the area.

Reasons

4. The appeal property, similar to No 168, its semi-detached neighbour, comprises

a two-storey dwelling which has recently undergone development by way of

Page 155



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/D/16/3152857

front and rear extensions approved under an earlier planning permission

ref: EPF/1271/13. Both dwellings are significantly set back from the footway,
and the appellant intends to use this area to the front of No 170 as a driveway.
Accordingly, the submitted drawing No SK/20105.1 shows two cars easily
accommodated within.

5. The Council’s concerns, by way of its reason for refusal, relate to the proposed
basement’s size being inappropriate and disproportionate to the size of the
dwelling involved and inconsistent with the character of the locality. The
basement would be significantly larger than the one that was granted by way of
the previous planning permission. However, despite representations made to
the contrary, the officers’ case report confirms that the extended basement’s
roof would be no higher than that of the original ground level or the ground
levels of the neighbouring properties. Indeed, my site visit gave no indication
of a departure from this. The only features that would be visible are three small
proposed lightwells that would be installed into the driveway, but significantly
set back from the front boundary with the public footway, and an additional
lightwell below the steps to the dwelling’s front door entrance. The intended
boundary walling is not untypical in its context.

6. Given that the enlarged basement is fully accommodated underground I cannot
see how the development can adversely affect the property’s appearance,
irrespective of the additional floorspace involved. The small lightwells would not
be unsightly and, save for these, there would be no indication as to the
accommodation situated below. The recently built front extension, although
appearing as an unusual physical arrangement, has the benefit of an earlier
planning permission. Consequently, the character of the immediate locality
would be unaffected by the basement development.

7. The Council’s other two concerns relate to an absence of landscaping and the
lack of provision made for Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS). However,
although SUDS is desirable for rainwater run-off I understand that the said
2013 planning permission did not require for such measures to be incorporated
and neither was there a requirement for a planting or landscaping scheme to be
incorporated into the development. As such, the use of the property’s front
curtilage and its appearance is a matter for the householder. In this instance it
is intended that space be allotted for the parking of two cars, as the Council has
suggested in its list of recommended conditions should this appeal be allowed
and planning permission granted.

8. Interested parties have made representations objecting to the proposal, some
of which I have already covered. A common ground of complaint is that the
excavation works were commenced without the necessary planning permission.
This is not an offence in itself so long as the unauthorised development is
subsequently regularised. In instances were planning applications are made
retrospectively the fact that development has already been carried out should
not advantage the applicant but, equally, it should not be to the applicant’s
disadvantage as the development must be assessed on its planning merits, or
otherwise. The issue of Building Regulations is a separate matter with planning
permission and approval under current building regulations not necessarily
being concurrent or mutually dependent.

Page 156



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/D/16/3152857

9.

I have not found that any harm in planning terms would result from the
enlarged basement, and the Council has not justified its consideration that the
proposal represents an unsustainable form of development. Also, the
explanatory text to Policy LL.11 of the Epping Forest District Adopted Local Plan
(LP), cited in the Council’s reason for refusal, refers to new developments which
require ‘comprehensive landscaping’. In essence, such a requirement must
relate to larger proposals for development which go beyond that of householder
scale such as is the case with the current appeal. Accordingly, I do not find this
policy to be directly applicable in this instance.

10.I conclude that the development would not be harmful to the character and

11.

appearance of the area, and there would be no material conflict with LP Policy
LL.11, Policy CP3(v) of the Council’s Local Plan and Alterations nor relevant
advice within the National Planning Policy Framework.

For the above reasons, and having had regard to all other matters raised, the
appeal succeeds. In terms of conditions, as the development has already been
partially implemented and due to its nature, it is only necessary, out of the
standard three conditions applied to householder proposals, for me to impose a
condition requiring that the development be implemented in accordance with
the approved plans. This will be for the avoidance of doubt and in the interests
of good planning. Finally, I have imposed a condition relating to off-street
parking, in the interests of highway safety.

Timothy C King

INSPECTOR

Pagé’ 157



This page is intentionally left blank



"1l punode

aseds a3 23eucp pinaam |esodoud ayl spul 31 ‘eade 3yl u Buiping 3jgeledwiod
AUE 3¥I|Un 20 pInoM Yoigs ‘1o punolb pasmays a4l 10 wiol snonlbueoul sl
yum Jayiabo ‘padwels Jeadde 11 3xeWw pinom jualabuelie Uoness|3 19315

pue ‘yipim 101d paus|geiss syl wody sunpuedap s esodoad syl spul IDunod Ul v

‘Wwjead Hqnd ayl w adeoaspue| 10s Jo seaue Jaiealb pue
SISNOY JO SMOU Usamlaq ssoeds uado ‘||ews 1o JuswaBueile 216212118 347 WO
ved able| ul paalLap J210edeyD snoiceds s AQ paysinBunsip s Udiym 2ade 13pim
YT Ul pUR *132.015 3Wes 3yl Wl 2| si2u10d uado auow pue ‘201s 2u1 asoddo sa|
1202 uado Jewis v Busnoy Jo smol Jenapuadisd aml ussmlsg Nooo ydium
‘egie 243 JO 2IN1B3) UOWILLICD pUR SAIIDURSIP B 20. SIYY 3| Slauios uady 'sselb
23 p12 2oeds uado Jo Jsuios abue) 2 su|o[peE 301d Ss0oym SN0 2R3 JO pud ue
Jo uspueb aesl sy Jo ped pue uspeel apis ayj s1asnoy pasodold ayy jo aps eyl (£

eaue ayl jo adueieadde pug ia1oeleyd ayf
SUosEaYy

‘aceds Auuawie 'aleand Jo sula) Ul s12idnooo adndng o) suonipuos
Buan 21geidesse spiacad pinom Juswdopasp pesodoud syl 1aylagm -

4
pue
‘eale 3U] Jo 2dueleadde pue Ja1peleyd 3y} U0 JUSWdo|RASD S JO 1032 3] .

12JE 58N55] UIBW 3yl 7
SONSS[ UIep
‘passiwsip si eadde ayl 1

uoISIa3Qg

‘@snoy buljamp

pag-T "OUT |0 UONIala ay] pue a71s 3] Jo UoIsiApgns auy 51 pasodoad Juslldo@ran ay)
"STQE 20QWUsA0N 52

palEp 230U AQ PSNUE Sem ‘STOT 1SNbNy £7 pajep ‘ST/TT1Z/4d43 Jay uoneddde ayy  »
[IounoT}

19141810 153104 Buiddg 1o uoisiep oyl 1suebe gays uesg dW AG Spew S eadde ayy -
uoissiuLad Buluueld JuelB of |esnyad g Jsuebe

ORET 197 Buluueld ALTUnos pue usmo] 347 J0 §7 UDI1Das J9pun apew 5 esdde ayy =

ME 0TI9I Xxa5s3 ‘uolybno ‘peoy 191s5aU) £67
TPS6TTIE/OT/M/SESTC/ddY Joy |eaddy

ST0Z SNBNY 57 @jep uoisizag
JUILILISADS 2007 PUE S21HUNWUIUIOT 104 21815 10 .h.hmn_mwhuuﬂ.m 241 h.ﬁ— H—W“_.-..__H-H_H_m h.n!—.n—ﬂﬁ_..m_..-“_” e

Idld ¥EIH SHY 2SKH YW uddy dig (SuoH)vda ue|dym xaujed Aq
9TQZ AINC 6T UD SpEL NSIA 315
uols139q |eaddy

sjeioloadsuy Bulued sy |

Page 159



GIE0FTOZ-$Z0-07 A1 '$Z0: Udeibeled ‘papusLe se pTIZ 9720 *2oUEpING 2310kl BUILLEL |

SEupng Buiuslpe 03 USIIEIRY U PRJISPISUDD 30 PINOYS "Mau 10 Busixs
JBgeym ‘seaue Jo jnodr| auyy jey) pue ‘seceds puer siealls ‘sbuipping jo noAe)
Buisixe ayy 03 A|l=qedoldde pucdsad pinoys Juswdoleasp mau eyl sisebbns
Y21y ,20UERIND 22130E.d Buluue|d 2y Ul a01Ape 243 03 AJEJJu0D ag pinom

1 “luBuoJdiauz 1ng syl cul Juswdojasap mau o uonelbaqu ay) ssalppe
pUB JFSeIeyS |B00| 0] pucdsad saualldo|aaap 18U 3.nsUa pINoYs suoisioap
12yl pue uBisap 0] SaYIETIR JUALLLISACD 347 aouepodwl 3yl Ina 5125 Uoium
HIOMSLWEL4 31 JO T9 pue g5 ‘gg sydelbeled Ul 331ApE 23U ISUIEBE UM pINoMm 11

‘Buiys jo swual ul Buipnjzu) Buipas syl 1oadsad sbuipjing mau

ey ‘sbuiyl Jey3o sBuowe ‘ssainbad Uoiym §66T LUELd |B2CT 2U3 4O T394a Adlcd
Ys 001 SPPO 18 2Q pnom 31 ‘adedsumol pue Jajoeseyd ‘Buimss s31 Buinueyus
pue Buiplenbajes AQ IUSWIUGIIALS JING ay3 aoueyua pue paiodd o3 ‘sBuiyl
Jayio jsbuowie "@3s yoiym 900z SUCIIRI3)Y Ue|d |E207 2Y3 4O /4D pue (Al)T4D
53131104 YliM 1D1JU0Z Ul 39 pinos 3] 'eade 3y o scueleadde pue Jajoeleys

By waey pinom uslidoasp pesodoid aul 18Uy 2055 SIY3 U0 SIPNEU0D T

‘2520 si1Y1 Ul jesadosd 207

Uy} pado|aAap A|2AIISUDS 210 2Q 0] 31 0 paleadde pale 2yl Ul s32eds Jaulnd
uado o3 1xau s10|d Jo Ajuolew syl sealaym ased pane|os) Ue S| ]l ISA0SI0k
(WIomalleld 3U1) 2T0Z Ydomaweld Adljng Buluue|d [euoiien syl Jo uoiesgnd
2y} saaep-aad 31 12y 230U 1 uswdgEasp 1247 01 PO USIYM SSOURISILINID 34T JO
SRR U Yum papacad ussd 30U aa2y T 2pyan Caieds aauwads uado ue spisa
NG fsuspaen AS|Piy £ 12 3SNAY J2Ius e 0 Sdusdagad siuedde 2y 9300 |

‘Pade 3yl U Juswdoesap jo wesned

Ssnojaeds ayl Jo 21nieal e ale Yiiysm saoellay pa|Bue-1yBu uazmiag sadeds
JB0I00 uSdd ay) 10 1S10E1eyD SAITJUISIP SU SUIWLSPUN pInom Juswdo@asp

DU} IKSIU00 51y3 Ul CASI01S 31Buis ul Ajuo padopasp ac padoj@aspun

Aleaaush aae gy suspaeb apis syl Ag papiaoad sasnoy juatelpe 10 syuel
a3 pue sebpe Jizy3 usemieqg aoeds Buiyiesdq 2yl AQ PISUIDBIBYD B4 L2IYM
BaEIR 3Y] Ul S323eds 18UI00 18110 O] JB|IUs S )] "80eds UsLlioD ‘uado 3] 1esqsac
pInoa 321d 243 Jo Algpunog spis 343 03 dn jybil sAzu035 oml Jo Juswdojsasp

=243 ‘aoezy Buisixa syl 01Ul 5313 A|nyssacons [esodoud syl 1ey3 Buipuelsyiimion

BYS BUY 10 JuswdaEaspasa ue se J0 padwess aesdde pinos 1esodoud 03 3203
1sebEns Jou Op 540108y syl ‘sSLInolpeq-eadyl BARy O Jeadde yiym 22elda] o3
Ul SBSN0OL 83 JO 158 8yl ayijun asnoy woaipag-sus e 10) 5 jesodold ayy ybnoy
5422 A0y Duiyded o 42A0 usalb ussg SARL LoIYmM sesnoy BulnogyBiau Auewl

40 suspueb Juol) 8yl 01 JUBIBYIP B[AY| B pinosm siy] 18sa1s ayl pue Buiping

3] usamiaq adedspur| Yos 33| Alaa alelodlooul pinoMm juswdo|sasp ayl 3|y

‘2aJe 33
Ul 5301d J2Ud0D Jepuws Uo peloeds sebedel o3 ucigeoo) pue Jybiay s u JusialIp
7)331| 29 p|nom uoizoslold o0y punodl pameys 3y "peoueleq pue psbuele
[|BM 20 pINOM UQIIRPAR]2 122415 =241 Ul sBuuade =41 ‘paulucs s1ow sBulusds Jo
Buipeds ayy pue sinogqyBlau s UBYl 53| 29 P|NOM 2SNOY 34T JO UIpIw 207 )1Ysn
"3IL113] 2T Ul S2sn0yY JaYlo 341 01 LUIO) Ul JPIWIS 2 pjnom Juaws|2 Asuols
-0M3 347 Usasmoy 1Buiping U3 40 ubisap 343 IN0gEe LISou0D 341 20p3mMOouyde |

0T

'S

TLSBLTE/ST/M/SESTL/ddY Uoisieeq [eaddy

Page 160



HOLDI3dENI

LAY YILIDD

‘paESsIWSIp 2Q pinoys |eadde

2U7 18U 2pnDuas 1 'pasiel Sianew (B 1o unosie Bulel pue ‘aaoqe uasb
SUOSESY YT 404 “A0mBLledd s pue ued Juswdo@asp augl 40 ssined gl Y
J2AU00 48317 Ul S Yogs Tesae 3yl 4o sousieadde pue aalosaey 3Ud 0} SSNed
pInoma 3 waey 2qeidasoeun 2yl AQ paybieaming si syl Addns Buisnoy (200 O3
BSN0Y |EUCIIPPE BUD JO Wjeus]d 1Sapow B 2piacld pinos Juslwidoaasp 203 IS|IYym

51

uoISN|2UG)

'sBuip|ing pue pug| jJo sjuedni>g 84njng 1oy Ajluswe

10 paepuels poob B 2IND3S 0] 53935 YIIUa YJomallely 343 Jo ss|dipuld s103

U1 JO 2U0 UM SPPRO 12 3g ) PINOM JON padse Juns pue ponb B im pue Jeal
241 01 ‘aiqissaooe Buiag se [|sm se ‘aunieu pue adeys ‘azis 2|geucses) e Jo soeds
Ajlualle anealid aplacud o3 JualidoaAsp saainbal YoIiym 8661 UB|4 |07 2Ul Jo
£330 A3N0d PRARS Ul 12114ucD Jou pinom (esodoad ay3 ‘snsst syl Jo 1osdsas ug

"25N0oY 8yl Wwod) Aj30s0p passadce

1sam aU1 01 1padse 1es|D B 3ARY PINOM Udiym uapled aleaud o eale ue

apinosd 01 paleuiwl|s ag pInco syl Jo yonw Buizueld Jo Bulusalos 2ge1ns yiim
13Aamol ‘asnoy Bunsixa ayl ul SMopuim 1S3S0[2 3L Wody UOISIA JO aUl| 12alIp
Y3 [lesi2A0 pInom uspaeh pasodoud Sl Jeyl 210u 1 Cpaidanlie ag o) sueadde
pue INOAE| Y20[g 1220315 3l JO 3Snedaq Bale 3yl Ul ugwwos st suapleb yoeq

40 DURCOISAC |2NINW 34| "DIGESNUn 2au2 Buiuiewas 3yl axew 10U pinom aades
33 pue 35N0L Yl 40 X2EQ 2U) 2PIseq ApoRup uldeap 21gesn Jua121Yns splagdd
pincs sdeys 531 IsAsMOH  SMmopuim 100)) Jeddn Bulinoqubizu Ag psyoolIBAD

8Q p|nom 31 pue sdeys ppo ue sey uspleb yoeq pesodoid sy eyl salbe 1

A TlalplleTa)

2NN JO SPEDU 2] 193W PINom uapuelb yoeg 2yl 4o 2215 au) ‘Duidedspue| yos
40 saubep 2 yjim ssaooe pool pue 1e2 e 104 soeds ajdwe sepiacid yaiym uspleb
JUDUY B Ul PBIRD0| BQ O3 PRIBDIPUI S| 24038 UIq BY3 IBY3 pUB ‘Usdp|IyD JBp|0

AQ peidnooo Bq 03 AlEYI|un BsN0LY WOCIpsd-au0 B 10y S jesododd 8yl 843 UsAID

"aokds AJUSLLE 3|Esh 1o JUNoLWE 3|dgeldadseun ue aplacdd pinos ‘uspleb 511
A PRIEUIUCP pUR 3snoy Duinsixs 2ul AQ poyoapaad Duiag AQ pue adeys pausder
53 J0 asnexeq ‘|esodosd oyl Jo uspaeh yoeq 243 I8y SISRISU0D [RUNDD a4y |

I

!

1

SN0 SUNIY O SLOIRDUDD Butal]

TLSBLTE/ST/M/SESTL/ddY Uoispeeq [eaddy

Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



Jguuew awes 3y u esdde siyy peuiwlaep
aaey I "souelesdde pue Buigis 540 S15EQ 23 U0 AjR|0s Juzwdo|aasp
pasodoud a3 ssesse o) Ajuoyine Buuue|d |eoo) 2y saanbal 0ado a4yl 7

1911 |eInpad0dd

=2sn ojul bnouq aue Asyl
a10/aq (G009 1v¥yd) usalD di4 pauied 3q ||eys s1suiged pue ajodouow =24y1 {7

‘saioads pue
BZ|IS Je||uWIs Jo siayln yiim uoseas Buiueld jxau syl v pecedal aq ||BysS
paseasip J0 pebewep A|SnolIes awoseq 10 paadwsad ale ‘aip juswdoasp
247 1o uonadwos sy woll siead g 1o pousd B ouigaia yoigm sjued
10 s3243 Aue pue juswidoaasap ayl Jo uonaidwod ayy Buimolo) suosess
Buipaas pue Buiued 15414 343 Ul N0 pallied ag ||eys buidedspue| Jo s|1e1sp
paacidde syl Ul pasudwod Buying Jo Buipaas ‘Buiueld |1y Buideaspue|
J0 awpyos g AJuoyne Suiuued 220 2yl AQ Duiium ul pasoudde pue

01 PEINWANS USad 3AEY ||BUS 20347 |1IUn 3JUswwod 1eds uswdapsasp oy i1

1SUONRIPUGD BUIMO||0d 343 03 102[qns ‘3 yim

peRiwgns sueid Suy3 pue 'STOZ 4200320 £T PRIPP 'S1/0852/443 99 ueneddde

3L JO SWLIZY 3UT YUM SOUBPIOIDE Ul XHT 0TS ¥2s53 ‘uciyBnoT ‘peoy

abpuayig/peoy |eisap 40 uanaunl ayj Je pug| Je oleuayl Aejoue Juswdoaasp

pue sysuiges Juswdinba gy 7 ‘UsIip we g g ‘seuusjue papnodys gy 9 Buipoddns

g|odounul {oels |enp WS ET B 40 soueleadde pue Bunls 2y3 40l (0a49)

5107 Jepi0 (puebul) (Quewdopaag pelilded |=auan) Buluued AlJunod pue
Ao 2Ll Jo suoisiaodd auy1 Japun peiueldb s jeacadde pue pamoje S| eadde a4y T

UIsI0a¢]

‘0l=4EYyl A IouE JuswdojEaap pue slouiged Juawdinbs g 7 ‘YsIp WL E ‘sEUUsIUE

peprnolys ;N 9 Buinoddns sodoudll 12815 |enp WS'ET B 51 pesododd Juswdapazp aul =
STI0Z 2qui=aad £

pa1ep 22110U AQ pIsnal sem ‘STOZ 1900100 £T PAEP ‘ST/08SZ/443 Jod ucnedidde syl -
NAUN0T FHASI0

152404 Buiddy Jo uoisizap 23Ul 1sUIEBR PO WA BEDILGLSIEL R 110 AQ Bpelld 5| eadde aly) -
12plo Jualidopasp B Japun padinbad jeacadde juelf o jesnjad e js5uiebe

QRBT 107 Buluueld Aunod pue umo] 3yl Jo g7 uD3aas Japun spew 5 eadde ayy  «

XHZ 0191

x25%3 ‘uoaybno ‘peoy abpuayla/pecy (1R159M 30 vonounl ayl 1e pue

TESSTTE/QT/M/SESTL/ddY J2u |eaddy

ST0Z SNBNY TZ @jep uoisizag
JUILULIZAQD 2307 PUE S21HUNWIUIOT 104 21815 10 .h.hmn_mwhuuﬂ.m 241 h.ﬁ— H—W“_.-..__H-H_H_m h.n!—.n—ﬂﬁ_..m_..-“_” e

IdLd |dg (5UOH) va@ Jauwjed ¥MN Aq
9T(QZ IsNBNY Z U0 apew WSIA 3115

uols139q |eaddy

sjeioloadsuy Bulued sy |

Page 163



5 Lanas |

‘ebieiaand JO 34T

padinbady syl buipiacad Jo swael ) sauswsdinbas yaomisu 203 yim 2giReduos

20 JOU pINOM SUDIIR||RISUI JBLI0 JO 85N 2U) pUB 3|0B|IEAE S2INJINIYS JOOI B|qeuns

ou ale 243yl "esle Buipunodlns syl ul SUoiRe||e1sul sUoI3e2IuNLILLoD=| 2] J3ylo
pue sBuippng Buisixe Buisn jo Algissod syl peiediiseall sey jue|edde ayl ‘s

EeUR o) 40 souelgadde pug Jeseieys

U U0 3249 sH bunebiw Jo swazl v jesedoud syl Jo anoagy ul syblem os|e

SIYL Csysew Jo uoielsyold Adessadauun ue Buipioag jo suued u) Domawely

2U3) Hlomaweld ADljod Buiuueld [euQi3Ey 243 YIIm PJOSOE PINosm siojedado omg

Ag 1sew 21 o Buueys 2yl Cs321Ad3s OfF pue oF Bunsixa auyp GuipeiBdn se |jam

Se 8IS OF B 3piacJd pinom 3 "EJIUDJE|31 PUE SUCJEpOA AlPWEL ‘siojelado
SUCNEIUNLULLIOISS] 0mM] Jo) abelanaos pasoadw apiaoad pinos (esodoud syl g

UOISI2RR AL U UDIJEISPISUCD |2lSe L
g 51 s1y3 g uejd juswdopasp 243 0] pey 3q o plebal siinbad jou ssop
CadD 24l JO 9T Hed Jo ¥ SSe|D "ueld [BD07 3U3 JO 5 ADljod UJim pIOISE pInosm
jesodold 243 si1seq siy3 up -sbuljamp 3sedeau 243 03 UuQizejsd Ul |esododd aug Jo
uoie>o] 243 pue Buidecspue| pascdold pue Builsixs AQ paebiniw 2q pnom sigl
eade oyl Jo saueleadde pue Jayeleys =4l oaye pihom esodold syl yBnolie
12Ul pull [ sSuoseal aacde au Jo4 CAea Jo sayBu ;gnd woyy sausuiwold
pue Auadold [eluapisad o1 Ajwxold pue uonejabBan Ag BuiuaaUDs ajqIssad
8115 AU 1o smEia TAYdeaDodol DuIpn U JUNooae 03Ul USHE] 2 01 s1311eL

10 Jaquunu e sannbzd (g&6T) Ueld |BJ0T 1311151¢] 152004 Bulddg ayy o s Adljog © 7

'S3UNJoNU}s Bunsixa

25CU3 03 uosuedwos ul AYng 33inb ag ppnosm ped Jaddn sy pue AJiuisia sy Ul

BINJIUIN 332038 1330 ueyy Jaybiy aq 13A3MOoly PN 2|0doUoWd BU | "MBIA LU0
S39UIQED AW INba a4yl usauds pInom Uiy pasodoad 5 bupued adesspue 9

‘S234] 2507
2ADQE 2|9ISIA 20 DINoMm 2jodouoll Y] Jo U0I1Das Jaddn 241 Ing 2AL0 ASUIng Uo
s25n0Y 2yl wod) Bulusaloss Jo jaas) Juedyiubis e spiacud asincoldalem auy] Bugpe
saad} ayl ‘s|qissod aq Aew 3Bue anbiqo ue je smalAa YBnoyye (esodold augl
SO AIDSUID 10U PINGs SAMODUIM JI2UT PUE SUDIISSU D Y100 Ul 3% S0 Wod) Apme
ZoUBIS|p BWOS 3le peoy aBpuaylg uo sasnol 1saieau syl ADadip 311s aul
222y jou ap Anadoud 247 40 saopuim Liew 303 120 ng Ansdoad ey o Juody
U3 e 2aJe DuiIeRes JOOpINe ue si adeyld 384T USIA AL UQ MES ] TPECY [|EISeM

pue peoy =0pIiayl3 4o 42102 B3 uo esnoy 21gqnd e of uscelpe st s31s 8yl g

‘peoy s0pusylg uo 250y} uewy) 23| Jaybiy e Je sue

3ALG A3UINg Uo sasnoy a3yl "eade 3yl o3 Buinas sArperle ue saplaocdd yoiym

soeds uado U1 QU0 FoR SPROS YIog Dugie sa5noH "asinoiiaiem 2yl Duge

S924] U2 auay] pue passelt s eoeds usda 8y eseds uedo jo eoue ue yinoay
SUnJ Y2Iysm ssinozizies e AQ 2AQ Asudng wWoly psleledss S| pecy sbpusyly '+

gorussroddy pue 1oLy
SUO5EDY

EadR 93 10 soueleaddde
PUE Jz30RIeYD U3 uo |esodoad 243 Jo Josyie ol 51 Eedde aug ul Bnsst uiew a2yl g

BNSST VIR

I6SSLTE/GT/M/SESTL/ddY Uoispeeq [eaddy

Page 164



g=EN]=
213 40 2oueleadde pue Jajoeleyd By O wey peiusp eyl o] uaalb saey 1 3eY)
JyBiem pauw] 243 sybiemino 1yBiem Juediuubis Jeyl -A|BI20S pue Aj|EJILUOUCOE

Yyioq |escdodd syl Jo sjgeusq auyl 01 1yfiem Juedubs uamb aaey [ "9T
aouejeqg
'SUQISN|2UOD AL 13]|E 10U Op SJ3118W 3504l 1Ng ucingjod
pue Buipool] BUipn|zul ‘pasied SIa11eLl Isylo ||B JUNa33e oJuUl U3y el aaey
1 "U3WaA0LW ueLisapad apadwl 10U piINoM pue ABmI00) aU1 Wod) yoeq 125 29
pinoms |esodald ayy ang Alales AemyBiy 1noge apell OS|E 2lam suaneiuasasday
oedssa S1Y3 U uosun S1oaedul) o pinosm pue 2oeds 12yl o esae
[[BWS B ACNZO0 pINam uOpe|elsu 243 Ing Aoy |eud)esuosl 2 se aoeds uado
aU3 JO 250 au] uo (esodaad 2yl 10 Peus oyl Inoge passaudxs Suam SuID0u00) 5T
“SluapISad |B20| 1o Jaquinu B pue 3snoly gnd jusaelpe ayy o1 se
[|2f4 SB |00UIS AQIESU D] |0 13U2e3] peaH U PUP JUaWEel|[1Bd JO 12qLa)) auy]
"SI0 IDUNOD IS0 IPUNSD UM ] UOIYBNoT IDuno SU3 03 JUSS Suam S18313|
LORENsU0D vopesdde-aad 12yl pauayuod sey e Bdde 203 NG woneyNsuoD
vopemdde-aad 10 ¥ae) e INoge wRoudd pasiel sey Aped pajseaaiul uy T
‘BIAPE SIUY apise Bupas AJnsnl o3 Ajlouyine Juainigns Jo
LaINPPRE USaq SeY a3Uaplaa O ‘aUIWlSIap 0] SIoyeW-uoIsioap 1oy Bulyiswos
10U 21 spuenDaEs U3 Eey 8] SSSIARE HJOMBLUET] 3] "SRoUEISILINIID
DEDYL U] U010 UoEIpEY DUISIUO[-UO U0 LOISSIWIWOT) |Budeulsiu]
3yl AQ paysignd ssunapinb suy yiim Alduwos o) paubissp uaag sey jesodond
243 3243 swIuoD Jueedde 2yl 3ng LUOREBISRISUOD |BUSIELU B BUR SUIEIU0D
Lans ‘yje=y uo sjoedlll |enusiod 1Noge UiEdU0D paesiel aAry seilled peasslalu] (CT
SIRJici AS4I0
“A1jod jeuoneu Ag uaalb voddns ayy Bunoalad

SUOEIBDISUND 25347 01 1YBIam JUedIuBls aalB 1 pue |esodoud ayl Jo Jnoae)

Ul yBiam abelaanz SUDIIEZILUNWILICDIS|3] paacldwl 1o Ss]IjaUaq 2ILUoUDIa pue
[BID0S 3l WSISAS SUOIEIIUNLILINIS|S] 31l J0) paau syl uonsanb 1o siojelado
W2aBYIP uszmiag uarmesdwuod Jusasad 01 ¥29s 10U pINays s3130043ne Duiuue|d
|B20| JBY] S30R1S Yiomaleld auy) 1o o ydelaBeled -1auaq JLI0UODS pUE B3OS

40 21 Y2 U doBaap SUQIEDIUNWLIOIZS] JO An0ddNs S aomawel ] 34 FT

SUDESIBISLOT S840

‘wiey ey o1 WbiEm pRaiwi) a5
I ‘|nswdey yBnoyie siseq siyj U0 puUB pelIWI] 20 pInom eade 243 Jo =ousieedde
pue la]oeleyd 311 uo |esodoid syl Jo 1088 BY] SUDSER] BA0QE Bl 104

= al-NEY Xale)

40 [2A2| padinbad 2yl apiacad JoUu pinos U2iym pue sis eadde au3 03 4500

2le 1243 SUQI3E||BISUI o 350 243 peiefilsaall sey jue|edde au3 ‘s31s 18138 AU
03 oedsad y3ip 2w B40j2q AJRJlUoD 343 03 SJUBRIAR OU S| 2l2U3 puR |esododd
2171 se 20 lsA0d 0 [2A8| aWUes 3] spiactd 61 uoiIe20| 1841 12 pelinbal 89 pjnom
1S J3||e] B 1RY] §3187S Jue|j2dde auyy ‘1auii10) 341 0] padsal yua C2ueT sallAd
12 271s 15PLU BUiisiXe UP pUP 2nUanay pooMy00y pue peoyd 2eBuinm 1o ucpounl
U1 BLpnDun suoiesd) 2qissod Jsyl0 0 paaaad sapy saded paassuaiul

1

‘o1

i
Page 165

LTE/QT/MM/SESTL/ddY Uoisieeq |eaddy



HOLI3345MI

AU YN
‘pEMmOE 3q pinoys |eadde syl eyl SpNauos [ uaab suosesd oyl Jd] 8T
uoISn|ouo)

'sBulpunoains sy yiis Ul pus|q 03 31 djsy pue
LOI32||BISUI BUT JO 12247 |ENSIA 2] 2INPpad 03 12040 Ul sue|d 2u] Yim Soueplosoe
u Buue|d sdedspue| Jo UoisiACId BU] pue s1auiges pue 3|odeusu aug

Jo Bunuied ayy bulinbad I2unc 2yl Aq paissfbns se sucnipuco pasodul) 3aey 1 AT

SUDIHPUO)D

I6SSLTE/GT/M/SESTL/ddY Uoispeeq [eaddy

Page 166



%

w The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 26 April 2016

by Helen Hockenhull BA(Hons) B.PlI MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 09 June 2016

Appeal Ref: APP/J1535/W/15/3139697
West Lodge, 32 Palmerston Road, Buckhurst Hill, Essex 1G9 5LW

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Paul Spencer against the decision of Epping Forest District
Council.

e The application Ref EPF/1812/15, dated 24 July 2015, was refused by notice dated
28 October 2015.

e The development proposed is the demolition of existing building and construction of
replacement building for 13 flats.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for the demolition of
the existing building and construction of 13 flats at West Lodge, 32 Palmerston
Road, Buckhurst Hill, Essex IG9 5LW in accordance with the terms of the
application, Ref EPF/1812/15, dated 24 July 2015 subject to the conditions in
the attached Schedule.

Main Issues
2. The main issues in this case are:

e the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of
the area;

e whether the proposed development provides acceptable living conditions for
future occupants with particular regard to outdoor amenity space;

e the effect of the proposal on highway safety;

e whether the loss of a non designated heritage asset can be justified.
Reasons
Character and appearance

3. West Lodge forms a large detached late 19*" century Victorian building
previously in use as a Care Home that has been altered and extended over
time. The site slopes up to the west where it is neighboured by a pair of semi-
detached Georgian dwellings, Nos.34 and 36 Palmerston Road. Down the slope
to the east is a traditional style two storey building providing 8 flats, known as
Richard Burton Court. The area is predominantly residential in character with

Paace 187
L] LAY |

LaTal
Uy



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139697

large Victorian dwellings together with modern two, three and four storey flats,
resulting in a variety of design and materials in the locality.

The Council has raised concern about the height, bulk and density of the appeal
proposal particularly in relation to the neighbouring properties. It would be
part three storey and part four storey with the lower part of the building
neighbouring Richard Burton Court. The appeal building would be between 2
metres and 4.5 metres higher than Richard Burton Court and would have a flat
roof whilst the neighbouring property has a pitched roof. I consider the
stepped nature of the building, together with the site being at a higher level to
Richard Burton Court, results in a proposal that would not appear overly bulky
or dominant. The proposed development would therefore provide an
acceptable transition between the two sites which would be in keeping with the
character and appearance of the area. The appellant has brought my attention
to a revised proposal for 12 flats on the site which was approved by the Council
on 2 March 2016'. I am mindful that this approved scheme is similar to the
appeal proposal in terms of its height and relationship to Richard Burton Court.

With regard to the relationship of the appeal proposal to No.34 Palmerston
Road, the appeal building would be approximately 1.1 metres higher than its
neighbour at its highest point and have a slightly lower ridge height than the
existing building on the site. The neighbouring property has a pitched roof with
a gable facing the boundary with the appeal site and a hipped roof element to
the other side of the building. The proposed roof structure would be hipped,
reducing the bulk and mass of the roof and reflecting the hipped roof design of
No 34. The roof top apartment and associated roof structure would be set back
from the front elevation which would assist to reduce its bulk and prominence
in relation to the neighbouring property and in the wider street scene. The use
of slate materials for the roof structure responds to the slate roof of the
neighbouring property and assists to blend this floor of the building into the
roof scape. Whilst the orientation of the roof would be different to the
buildings on each side, having regard to the variety of roof design in the wider
area, I consider that the proposal would not be materially out of character or
adversely affect the street scene.

The appeal proposal would therefore comply with Policies CP2 (iv), CP7 and
DBE (i) of the Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 2006 (LP) which
aim to safeguard the setting, townscape and environment of urban areas and
achieve high quality design. These policies I consider to be generally
consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) in
particular paragraphs 17 and 56 which seek to secure high quality design.

Living conditions

7.

LP Policy DBES8 requires 25 square metres of outdoor amenity space per each
unit of accommodation which would result in a requirement of 325 sq metres
for the appeal proposal. The Essex Design Guide however requires a lesser
amount of outdoor amenity space, seeking 25 sq metres for a two bedroom
flat. In terms of a single bed flat the Guide welcomes but does not require a
similar provision recognising that the occupants of small flats may be happy to
forego this amenity if there is access to other local open space. On this basis
the minimum requirement for the appeal development would be 175 sq metres.

! Application Ref EPF/3035/15

Page 188



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139697

8. The appeal proposal includes a rear communal garden area of around 181 sq
metres which would be above the requirement of the Essex Design Guide.
However this space is also used to gain access to the car parking area. I
consider that this factor would discourage future occupants from using this
facility. However all but four of the proposed flats are proposed to have a
private balcony or patio space which would provide a further amenity area for
future occupants. Furthermore as the appeal site is located within walking
distance of other public areas of open space, I consider that adequate provision
for outdoor amenity space would be provided.

9. The development would therefore provide acceptable living conditions for
future occupants in respect to outdoor amenity space. Whilst it would not
comply with LP Policy DBS8, in this instance, having regard to the requirements
of the Essex Design Guide, appropriate provision of outdoor amenity space
would be made.

Highway safety

10. Vehicular access to the site would be from the rear off Westbury Lane. The
proposed development would provide 13 car parking spaces in the basement of
the building accessed via a car lift. This would equate to one space per flat.
The Council have raised concern that this level of provision would be
inadequate and would fail to meet the minimum 24 spaces required by the
Essex Parking Standards 2009. The Council acknowledges that the Standards
do allow a reduction in the number of spaces required if a site is located within
an urban area, however in this instance the Council considers that a reduced
level to 13 spaces cannot be justified having regard to the site’s location and
the level of facilities in the vicinity.

11. The site is within approximately 5 minutes walk of Buckhurst Hill Underground
Station and Palmerston Road forms a bus route with regular services to
Chigwell, Loughton and Ilford. Local shopping facilities are available on Queens
Road around 4 minutes walk from the site. The appeal site would therefore be
in a sustainable location where alternatives to the car are easily accessible. I
consider that in line with the Essex Parking Standards, a reduction in on site
parking provision to one parking space per flat would be acceptable in this
location. I note the Highway Authority comments that the development would
be acceptable in regard to highway and transportation matters.

12. I therefore conclude that the appeal proposal would not cause harm to highway
safety and would comply with LP Policy ST6 which aims to ensure adequate car
parking in line with the adopted standards, a policy generally consistent with
the Framework.

Non designated heritage asset

13. The Framework in paragraph 135 states that the effect of an application on the
significance of a non designated heritage asset should be taken into account in
determining the application. It also states that a balanced judgement will be
required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of
the heritage asset. LP Policy CP7 does not specifically refer to non designated
heritage assets but aims to protect and enhance buildings of historic
importance in order to maintain the environmental quality of the urban area.
The Council considers the loss of the appeal building, a non designated heritage
asset, would be harmful to the character and appearance of the area.

Pagé 169



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139697

14.

15.

16.

The appeal property forms an attractive Victorian building which was originally
square in plan form. It is not a building on the Council’s Local List of heritage
assets. It has been considerably altered and extended to the side and rear. A
further addition has been the mock Tudor bethan timber motifs to the front
elevation as well as the conversion of the roof space and installation of roof
lights. These alterations have resulted in the building’s form and many of the
original features being lost.

As referred to earlier in this decision, the Council has recently given approval to
a revised scheme on the site for 12 flats. The demolition of the appeal building
has therefore been accepted by the Council.

Accordingly, I consider that the building no longer retains its historic
significance and its demolition would in my view not be harmful to the
character and appearance of the area. The loss of the building would therefore
be consistent with the objectives of LP Policy CP7 and the Framework.

Conditions

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

I have had regard to the conditions suggested by the Council in light of the
requirements of the national Planning Practice Guidance and the Framework.
In addition to the standard timeframe condition I consider it necessary for the
avoidance of doubt that the development should be carried out in accordance
with the approved plans. I also consider it necessary to impose conditions
regarding materials, hard surfacing, soft landscaping and tree protection
measures in order to ensure a high quality development and protect the
character and appearance of the area.

The Council has suggested conditions regarding the submission of floor and
ground level details. As a result of level differences I consider such a condition
is required. A condition regarding surface water disposal I consider to be
necessary in order to appropriately manage surface water drainage from the
site. The Council has suggested an additional condition regarding the
submission of a flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan.
I do not consider this to be necessary as surface water management would be
addressed in an appropriate surface water disposal scheme.

The Council has suggested conditions requiring a construction method
statement and hours of working on the site which I consider to be necessary to
protect the amenity of adjoining neighbours. A condition regarding the
provision of obscured glazing to angled windows in the flank elevations is also
required to maintain the privacy and living conditions of adjoining neighbours.
Conditions regarding the construction of the private drive, dropped kerb
crossings and the surfacing of the access are necessary in the interests of
highway safety.

The Council has suggested a condition regarding the provision of a residential
information pack for sustainable transport. I have not been provided with any
evidence to explain why this is necessary or the policy basis for it. I have
therefore not imposed this condition.

Where necessary and in the interest of clarity and precision I have amended
the conditions to better reflect the guidance.

Page 170



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139697

Conclusion

22. I have found that the appeal proposal would not cause material harm the
character and appearance of the area or the living conditions of future
occupiers with regard to outdoor amenity space. The proposal would also be
acceptable in terms of highway safety and the loss of the building, a non-
designated heritage asset, would be acceptable.

23. For the reasons given above and having regard to all other matters raised, I
allow this appeal.

Helen Hockenhull
INSPECTOR

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: drawing numbers: 269-EX-01, 269-
EX-02, 269-PL-01, 269-PL-02, 269-PL-03, 269-PL-04 Rev A, 269-PL-05,
269-PL-06, 269-PL-07 and 269-PL-08.

No construction works above ground level shall take place until
documentary and photographic details of the types and colours of the
external finishes of the building have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with
such agreed details prior to the first occupation of the development.

No development shall take place including site clearance or other
preparatory work until full details of both hard and soft landscape works
(including tree planting) and an implementation programme (linked to
the development schedule) have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. These works shall be carried out
as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include details of
existing features to be retained, hard surfacing materials, vehicle and
pedestrian access and circulation areas and means of enclosure. The
details of soft landscape works shall include planting plans and full
written specifications and schedules of plants, including species, plant
sizes and proposed numbers/densities where appropriate. Any tree,
shrub or plant, which within a period of five years from the completion of
the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or
diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a
similar size and species.

Page 171



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139697

6)

7)

8)

9)

10)

11)

12)
13)

14)

No site clearance, preparatory work or development shall take place until
a scheme for the protection of retained trees (the tree protection plan)
and the appropriate working methods (the arboricultural method
statement) in accordance with paragraphs 5.5 and 6.1 of BS:5837:2012
Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction -
Recommendations) have been submitted to the local planning authority
and approved in writing. The scheme for the protection of retained trees
shall be carried out as approved.

No development shall take place until full details of the proposed finished
floor levels of the building, hard landscaped surfaces and landscaping
areas have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved
shall be removed from the site.

No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until
a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall
be adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall
provide for:

i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
ii) loading and unloading of plant and materials
iiil) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

iv) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including
decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where
appropriate

v) wheel washing facilities

vi) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction

vii) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition
and construction works.

Prior to the first occupation of the development, the proposed private
drive shall be constructed to a minimum width of 5 metres for at least
the first 6 metres from the back of carriageway and provided with an
appropriate dropped kerb crossing of the footway. The private drive as
constructed shall be retained thereafter.

Prior to first occupation of the development the existing dropped kerb
crossings to the site off Palmerston Road shall be fully reinstated to full
height kerbing and footway across the site frontage and thereafter
retained.

There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the
vehicular access within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations including
vehicle movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise
sensitive premises shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to
18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays.

Page 172



Appeal Decision APP/]J1535/W/15/3139697

15)

The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until windows in the
flank elevations have been fitted with obscured glazing and no part of
these windows that is less than 1.7 metres above the floor level of the
room in which it is installed shall be capable of being opened. Details of
the type of obscured glazing shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority before the window is installed and
once installed the obscured glazing and means of restricting opening shall
be retained thereafter.

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Plans South Map
	Area Planning Subcommittee South - members photo sheet 16-17

	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	35 Development Control

	7 Development Control
	8 Probity in Planning - Appeal Decisions
	21 priory road loughton
	24 alderton hill loughton
	26 meadow way chigwell
	51 High road, loughton
	170 manor road, chigwell
	257 chester road loughton
	land at junction westall Road-etheridge road loughton
	west lodge, 32 palerston road buckhurst hill


